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DIVISIONS
PLASTIC DIVISION
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AF ENTERPRISES LIMITED

PLANT & MACHINERY

INJECTION MOLDING MACHINE PAD PRINTING ULTRA SONIC
WELDING

PASL INJECTION MOLDING MACHINE WINDSOR INJECTION MOLDING MACHINE

NUMBER OF MACHINES -

INJECTION MOLDING Mfe - 33 no's CAPACITY - 100 to 850 Tons

PAD PRINTING - 6no's

ULTRA SONIC WELDING - 1no's




AF ENTERPRISES LIMITED

PLASTIC CRATES

Plastic Crates offering a wide range of products catering to
every user segment from pharma to fisheries and diary, from
automobile to textile and horticulture. Available and different

sizes, variants and colours.
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NOTICE OF THE 41°' ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that Forty-One Annual General Meeting (41* AGM) of the members of A F
Enterprises Limited (CIN: L18100DL1983PLC016354) will be held on Wednesday, September 25th, 2024
at 12:00 PM (IST) through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Video Means (VC/ OAVM), to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt

(a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 together with the
reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon with annexures;

(b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 together with the
report of Auditors thereon with annexures;

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha (DIN: 02994228), who retires by
rotation at this AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re- appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:
3. Appointment of Ms. Geetika Garg (DIN: 10643307) as an Independent Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special
Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof
for the time being in force) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), on the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors for appointment of Ms. Geetika Garg (DIN:
10643307) as an Additional Director in the capacity of an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. August
29, 2024, who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as provided under
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations and is eligible for appointment,
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act
and who holds office as such up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby, appointed as
a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a
period of five years with effect from August 29, 2024 till August 28, 2029.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to

this resolution.”

4. To alter the Articles of Association of the Company and in this regard, to consider and if thought
fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and subject to such other approvals,
consents, sanctions and permissions as may be necessary, the consent of the members of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to deletion of the clause 13(i)proviso calls on shares of Article of Association of the
company.

“Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or be payable at less than one
month from the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding call.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Directors of the
Company and Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be necessary or expedient in this regard.”

For AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/-

Neha Srivastava

Date: 29-08-2024 Company Secretary &
Place: New Delhi Compliance Officer
M.No. 43927
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NOTES:

1.

In view of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs circulars May 05,2022 and 28-12-2022 & SEBI circular
dated May 13,2022 and permitting holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video
conference (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members
at a common venue and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (““Act”), SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations™) and
earlier MCA Circulars, the ensuing AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The
deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY/PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF.
SUCH PROXY/ PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THE
ENSUING AGM IS BEING HELD THROUGH VC / OAVM, PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF
MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, THE FACILITY FOR
APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THE
AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE NOT ANNEXED TO
THIS NOTICE.

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/ Authorization etc.,
authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM on its behalf and to vote through
remote e-voting. The said Resolution/ Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through his
registered email address to cssumitbajaj@gmail.com with a copy marked to www.evoting.nsdl.com .
The cutoff date to decide the eligibility of members to attend and vote at AGM is 18" September, 2024.

The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Regulation 36 (5) of SEBI Listing Regulation in respect
to item no. 3 to 4 set out in the notice and pursuant to Section102(1) of The Companies Act, 2013 in
respect to item number 3 to 4 are set out in the Notice is annexed hereto and form part of the Notice.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday
the 19th September, 2024 to Wednesday, the 25th September, 2024 (Both days inclusive) for the purpose
of Annual General Meeting.

Brief resume of Directors who are proposed to be appointed/ re-appointed, nature of their expertise in
specific functional areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships/
chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships between directors are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual/ Notice/ Directors Report. The details of
appointment/re-appointment of retiring directors are given in Annexure ‘A’ is forming part of Notice for
Annual General Meeting.

E voting facility will be available to all the shareholders of the Company.

Annual Report is available at website of the company i.e. www.afenterprisesltd.in

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to communicate their change of postal address
(enclose copy of Aadhar Card), e-mail address, if any, PAN (enclose self-attested copy of PAN Card) and
Bank account details (enclose cancelled cheque leaf) quoting their folio numbers to the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
New Delhi110020. Similarly, members holding shares in Demat form shall intimate the above details to
their respective Depository Participants.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Non-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of
residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, any other document which may be required to avail
the tax treaty benefits by sending an email to info@skylinerta.com . The aforesaid declarations and
documents need to be submitted by the shareholders on or before the end of business hours of 18th
September, 2024.

Members who require any clarifications on accounts or operations of the Company are requested to write
to the Company Secretary of the company at registered office of the company or by email at
info.afenterprises @gmail.com so as to reach by 12th September, 2024 (5.00 pm IST). The queries will be
answered accordingly.

Members who want to participate in discussion and express their views at AGM must lodge their request
by 18th September, 2024, by 5.00 P.M. by post at registered office of the company or by email at
info.afenterprises @ gmail.com.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15,
2021, May 3, 2022, December, 28, 2022 and SEBI Circular dated May 13, 2022, Electronic copy of the
Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-2024 is being sent only through electronic mode
to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may
note that the Notice and Annual Report 2023-2024 will also be available on the Company’s website
www.afenterprisesltd.in and website of the BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act. In case of Joint holders, the member whose name appears as First
Holder in the order of names on the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map of the venue is not annexed to this
Notice.

The results of the remote e-voting and e-voting during the Annual General Meeting will be announced by
the Chairman or a person authorized by the Chairman within 2 days from the date of conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting at the Registered office of the Company. A copy of which will be posted on the
Company’s website and forwarded to Stock Exchanges.

The Registers and documents maintained under the Act, which are eligible for inspection, will be
available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the
Company and becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and holding
shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 18.09.2024, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e
voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your
password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset
Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000. In
case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company
and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off
date i.e. 18.09.2024 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-
Voting system”.

Updation of Permanent Account Number (PAN)/ Bank Account Details of Members:

The  Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular no.
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20.

21.

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73  dated 20™ April, 2018 has mandated registration of PAN and
Bank Account Details for all security holders. Members holding Shares in physical for are therefore,
requested to submit their PAN and Bank Account details to Share Transfer Agent of the Company along
with self attested copy of PAN and original cancelled cheque. The original cancelled cheque should bear
the name of the Member. In the alternative Members are requested to submit a copy of Bank
passbook/statement attested by the bank. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to submit
the aforesaid information to their respective Depository Participant.

Updation of Member’s Details:

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the
Companies Act, 2013 requires the Company / Share Registrars and Transfer Agents to record additional
details of members, including their PAN details, email address, bank details for payment of dividend etc.
A form for compiling the additional details is appended in this Notice.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled in form to the Company or its
Share Registrars and Transfer Agents. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit
the details to their respective Depository Participants

SEBI has decided that securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form, from
a cut-off date, to be notified. In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization,
members are advised to dematerialize shares held by them in physical form.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

1.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and
pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time,
physical attendance of the Members to the EGM/AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held
through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and
participate in the ensuing EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM.

. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the

facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this EGM/AGM.
However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the EGM/AGM
through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of

the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors
etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the
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Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the
AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of
casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM
will be provided by NSDL.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.afenterprisesltd.in The
Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM
Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com

7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No.
2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, 22"September, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, 24"
September,2024 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.e. 18" September, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be
in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 18"
September, 2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method
IndiYidual Shgr'eh(')lders 1. Existing IDeAS wuser can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
holding securities in demat https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-

mode with NSDL. Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is

available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of
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NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDLand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede”
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

" AppStore P Google Play

Individual Shareholders 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
holding securities in demat

; existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
mode with CDSL

without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System
Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-
Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website
directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL
website www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the
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evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
(holding securities in Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging
demat mode) login through | in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be
their depository redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
participants can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.

NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual ~ Shareholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
securities in demat mode with NSDL sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -

2499 7000
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
securities in demat mode with CDSL sending a request at helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.comor contact at toll free

no. 1800 22 55 33

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code
as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of  holding | Your User ID is:
shares i.e. Demat (NSDL
or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

hold shares in demat For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12%*%*** then your
account with NSDL. user ID is IN3QQ##* [ 2#4 k%,

b) For Members who 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

hold shares in demat For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12####kskxk%4%% then your user ID is
account with CDSL. [ QA Ak

¢) For Members holding | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
shares in Physical Form. | For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001 ***

Page | 9


mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/

6.
a)

b)
c)

d)

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your
vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your
8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders
whose email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”’(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.
Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of
NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?
1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
“VC/OAVM?” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.
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7.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders:

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to

with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other
than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority
Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in
their login.

. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep

your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts
to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call
on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000or send a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at
evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to (Company email id).

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company email
id). If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to
the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their
mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS
UNDER:

1.

2.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM.
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Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/ OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM?” placed under “Join meeting”
menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting
menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of
Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for
e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-
Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance
mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
info.afenterprises @gmail.com The same will be replied by the company suitably.

For AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/-

Neha Srivastava

Date: 29-08-2024 Company Secretary &
Place: New Delhi Compliance Officer

M.No. 43927
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item no. 3

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on August 29, 2024, appointed Ms. Geetika Garg (DIN:
10643307) as an Additional Director of the Company in the capacity of Independent Director for a term of 5 years with
effect from August 29, 2024, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company. In terms of section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have
recommended the appointment of Ms. Geetika Garg as an Independent Director pursuant to the provisions of Sections
149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has also received a notice in writing from a member proposing the candidature of Ms. Geetika Garg to

be appointed as Director of the Company. The Company has received a declaration from Ms. Geetika Garg confirming
that she meets the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, the Company has also received Ms. Geetika Garg’s consent to act as a
Director in terms of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a declaration that she is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Geetika Garg fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for his appointment as an
Independent Director of the Company and he is independent of the management. Considering Ms. Geetika Garg’s
knowledge and experience, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to
appoint him as an Independent Director for a period of five years with effect from August 29, 2024. Copy of letter of
appointment of Ms. Geetika Garg setting out the terms and conditions of appointment is being made available for
inspection by the members through electronic mode. Additional information in respect of Ms. Geetika Garg, pursuant to
Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial
Standards on General Meetings (SS-2), is given at Annexure A to this Notice.

Brief profile of Ms. Geetika Garg is given at Annexure A to this Notice. Except Ms. Geetika Garg, being the appointee,
or his relatives, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or
interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.3

Item no. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company proposes to alter the Articles of Association (AOA) by deleting the proviso under
Clause 13(i) concerning calls on shares. The existing proviso in Clause 13(i) of the AOA reads as follows:

"Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or be payable at less than one month from
the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding call.”

The proposed alteration aims to provide greater flexibility to the Company in making calls on shares. Under the existing
proviso, the Company is restricted from making a call that exceeds one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or
requiring payment of any call in less than one month from the date fixed for payment of the last preceding call. This
restriction limits the Company’s ability to manage its capital requirements effectively.

The deletion of this proviso will allow the Company to make calls on shares that exceed one-fourth of the nominal value
or within a shorter timeframe, if necessary, subject to compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Articles of Association. This flexibility is considered necessary to respond swiftly to the Company’s

financial needs and ensure more efficient capital management.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice as a Special Resolution for
approval by the shareholders.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any.

Annexure-A
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 41st Annual General Meeting to be held on
September 25, 2024 [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) and 26(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Name of the Director Mr. Santosh Kumar Ms. Geetika Garg
Kushawaha

Date of Birth 02/03/1987 17/10/1991

Age 37 Years 32 Years

Date of appointment 30.05.2019 29.08.2024

Relationship with Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel

No inter-se relationship
between the directors

No inter-se relationship between the
directors.

Expertise in specific functional
area

He has more than a decade of
experience in business
development, financing deals,
and corporate management. He
also possesses strong
leadership skills that contribute
to the company's growth.

Having experience in the legal
Sector, Secretarial and Compliance
departments. she  has  been
instrumental in managing corporate
governance, ensuring compliance
with regulatory requirements, and
supporting the company’s secretarial
functions.

Qualification Graduated Graduated
Board Membership of other listed | NA NA
Companies as on March 31, 2024

Chairmanships/Memberships of | Member in  Stakeholder’s | NA

the Committees of other public | Relationship Committee

limited companies as on March

31,2024

Number of equity shares held in | 300000 NA

the Company as at March 31,
2024
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1.

BOARD’S REPORT

To
The Members,

The Directors of the Company take pleasure in presenting the 41 Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for the

financial year ended 31" March 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY & HIGHLIGHTS

(Amount in Thousands)

Particulars Consolidated Financial Standalone Financial Results
Results

2023-24 | 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 |
Revenue From Operations 85,013.85 2,42,867.93 85,013.85 2,41,847.93
Other Income 10,073..87 54,279.45 9,956.68 53,768.83
Total Revenue 95,087.72 2,97,147.38 94,970.53 2,95,616.83
Cost of materials consumed 38,450.32 76,075.45 38,450.32 76,075.45
Purchase of Stock in Trade 5,184.20 1,49,972.18 5,184.20 1,49,972.18
Change in Inventories of Finished 165.25 718.80 115.15 718.80
Goods, Stock in Trade and work in
Progress
Operating Expenses 8,850.78 9.561.13 8,850.78 9,561.13
Employee Benefit Expense 3,229.83 19,051.20 3,229.83 13,108.72
Finance Cost 1,835.26 2,611.56 1,692.36 1,850.81
Depreciation and Amortization 11,112.83 12,544.99 11,010.14 12,296.92
Expenses
Other Expenses 37,064.31 30,921.64 36,035.24 27,124.88
Total Expenses 1,05,892.78 3,01,456.95 1,04,838.02 2,90,708.89
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items| (10,805.06) (4,309.57) (9,86.49) 4,907.87
and tax.
Exceptional Items 10,000 13,075.00 10,000 13,075.00
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (805.06) 8.765.43 132.51 17,982.87
Tax Expense 2577.46 5360.85 2,342.41 (7662.82)
Profit for the Year 1,772.4 14,126.28 2,474.93 10,320.05
Other Comprehensive Income 44.02 108.88 44.02 108.88
Total Comprehensive Income 1,816.42 14,235.16 2,518.95 10,428.93

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the financial year under review, the company experienced a significant decrease in total revenue. On a
consolidated basis, total revenue declined from 3242,867.93 thousand in FY 2022-23 to ¥85,013.85 thousand
in FY 2023-24. Similarly, on a standalone basis, total revenue decreased from 3241,847.93 thousand in FY
2022-23 to %85,013.85 thousand in FY 2023-24.

The net profit also saws a notable decline. On a consolidated basis, net profit decreased from X 3,404.58
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a)

b)

thousand in FY 2022-23 to X1,772.40 thousand in FY 2023-24. On a standalone basis, net profit fell from
%10,320.05 thousand in FY 2022-23 to 32,474.93 thousand in FY 2023-24.

THE CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year or subsequently.
CONTRIBUTION TO THE EXCHEQUER

The Company has contributed Rs. 54.55 Lakhs to the exchequer by way of Income tax, customs duty,
goods and service tax, etc.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and the
reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee,
the board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective
during the financial year 2023-2024. The details in respect of internal financial control and their
adequacy are included in the Management Discussion & Analysis, which forms part of this report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the company has not accepted any deposit under Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL & FINANCE

Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024 stood at Rs.41,00,00,000/- divided into
41,00,00,00 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2024 stood at
Rs.14,11,36,360/-divided into1,41,13,636 equity shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid.

The Company’s Authorized Share capital stood at 41,00,00,000 divided into 41,00,00,00 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each.

Finance

The Borrowings of the Company comprises of external commercial borrowings, term loan and working
capital facilities. The debts (including interest) are being serviced regularly.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees or Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are given in the notes to the financial statements.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

As per Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, top five hundred (500) listed entities
based on market capitalization shall contain the Business Responsibility Report in their Annual Report. As
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9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

the Company does not fall under top 500 listed Companies based on market capitalization, therefore, this
regulation is not applicable to the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

In terms of the Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR) is set out in the Annual Report.
Annexure-VII

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED

During the financial year 2023-24, no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in the future.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
During the year under review, the company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve.

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

The Company’s Wholly owned Subsidiary is Aunik IT Solutions Private Limited. Company do not have
any Joint Ventures or any Associate Companies. Pursuant to the provisions of the Rule 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the
Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies in FormAOC-list attached as
Annexure IL

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, every company having net worth of
rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of
rupees five crore or more during any financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee of the Board and shall formulate a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. The Company is not
falling under the preview of said section during the year.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return of the Company as
at 31st March, 2024 is uploaded on the website of the Company at https://afenterprisesltd.in/announcement/

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Vigil Mechanism Policy of the Company deals with instances of actual or suspected unethical
behavior, fraud, etc. The Audit Committee reviews the functioning of the Policy. The details of the Vigil
Mechanism has been elaborated in the Corporate Governance Report and posted on the Company’s website
https://afenterprisesltd.in/our-policies/

TRANSFER TO IEPF

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 124, 125 of the Act, read with the IEPF (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as “IEPF Rules”) the amount of dividend or any
other amount remaining unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven consecutive years is required to be
transferred to the IEPF Authority. The shares in respect of which dividend remained unclaimed or unpaid
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17.

for seven consecutive years or more, shall also be liable for transfer to the demat account of the IEPF
Authority. The shareholders may note that the Company has not declared dividend yet so this clause shall

not be applicable to the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Your Company is managed and controlled by a Board comprising an optimum blend of Executives and Non-
Executive Professional Directors. As on March 31, 2024; the Board of Directors consists of Five (5)
Directors including one (1) Whole Time Director, one (1) Executive Director Two (2) Non-executive
Independent Director and One (1) Non Executive and Non Independent Director including one Woman
Director. All the Directors possess the requisite qualifications and experience in general Corporate
Management, Finance, banking and other allied fields which enable them to contribute effectively to the

Company in their capacity as Directors of the Company.

Name Of | Designation
Director

Date Of | Date
Appointment

Appointment
At  Current

Of | Date Of
Resignation

1. Mr. Abhishek = Chief Financial 03603706
Singh Officer& Whole
Time Director
2. Mr. Santosh Managing Director 02994228
Kumar
Kushawaha
3. Mr.  Tinku Independent Director = 08699650
Kathuria
4. Ms. Preeti Independent Director = 09662113
5. Mr. Non-Executive 07656957
Manishkumar Director
Prafulbhai
Mehta

During the vear under review following changes took

30.05.2019

30.05.2019

14.02.2020

02.09.2022
03.09.2023

Designation

30.05.2019

03.06.2021

14.02.2020

02.09.2022
03.09.2023

31-08-2024

place in the Board of Directors and Key

Managerial Persons:

1. Mr. Manishkumar Prafulbhai Mehta appointed as Non-Executive Director w.e.f 03.09.2023

2. Ms. Payal Sachdeva the Company Secretary of the Company had resigned during the financial year 2023-

2024 w.e.f. 14" November,2023

3. Mr. Vikram Sharma has resigned as Non- Executive Director on 30.05.2023.

4. Ms. Neha Srivastava appointed as a Company Secretary of the company with effect from 19.03.2024.

None of the Directors have attained the age of seventy -five years.
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11.1 Meetings of Board and Committees

In accordance with the regulatory requirements, the Board of Directors has constituted Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Right Issue
Committee

The details with respect to the composition, terms of reference, number of meetings held, etc. of the Board
and that of the Committees are disclosed in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of the
Annual Report.

11.2 Board Evaluation

The annual evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors, Committee of the Directors
individually has been made as more particularly specified in the Corporate Governance Report.

11.3 Remuneration Policy

The details of the Remuneration Policy forms part of the Corporate Governance Report the information
relating to remuneration as required pursuant to Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

a. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company —18(Eighteen)

b. During the year every employee got 7% increment on the salaries of employees in last financial
year.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy of
the Company.

18. DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

19. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the
performance of individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters
such as level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the
interest of the Company.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The
performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors. The board also carried out an annual performance evaluation of the working of its
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration as well as stakeholder relationship committee. The Directors
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. The Board of Directors reviewed all the laws
applicable to the company, prepared by the company and taking steps to rectify instances of non-
compliances.

20. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
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None of the employees of the Company were in receipt of remuneration in excess of limits as prescribed
under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, are mentioned below:

(A) Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014

Name of The Designation Remuneration Remuneration in | Resignation
Director/and KMP (In Lakhs) 2023-24 | Consideration Dated

21.

Mr. Santosh Kumar | Managing Director

Kushawaha
Mr. Abhishek Singh = CFO 6 - -
Non-Executive - -
Mr. Tinku Kathuria | Independent Director 00
Non-Executive - 31-08-2024
Mrs. Preeti Independent Director 00
Non-Executive Non- -- -
Mr. Manishkumar Independent Director 00
Prafulbhai Mehta
Mrs. Neha Srivastav = Company Secretary 7.13 - -
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors of the company confirm that;

(a)

(b)

(©

d
(e)

®

22,

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
and there is no material departures;

They had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for that
period;

They had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

They had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

They had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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23.

24.

25.

26.

In compliance with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act, the transactions with related
parties are entered into with the approval of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. The omnibus
approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for transaction which are repetitive in nature.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions can be accessed at https://afenterprisesltd.in/our-policies/

All transactions with related parties were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business and
necessary approvals were obtained, wherever required. There were no material related party transactions.
The necessary disclosures regarding the transactions are given in the notes to the financial statements.

None of the Directors and the KMP has any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company
other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Company’s Internal Control Systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and
complexity of its operations. It comprises audit and compliance by internal audit checks by, M/s CAAN&
Associates a Chartered Accountant as Internal Auditors of the Company.

The Internal Auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and concurrently audit the
financial transactions and review various business processes. Independence of the Internal Auditors and
therefore compliance is ensured by the direct report of internal audit division and Internal Auditors to the
Audit Committee of the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has developed and implement the
Risk Management Policy for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which
is in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. These are discussed at the meeting
of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.

At present the Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the
Company.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in
securities by the Directors and certain designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the
Directors and designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company and during the period when the trading window is closed. The Board is responsible
for implementation of the Code. All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed
compliance with the Code.

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTOR INTER-SE

None of the Directors are related to each other.
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27.

28.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) whenever it has applicable. The Company will comply with the other
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)as and when they are
made mandatory.

AUDITORS
22.1 STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules frame thereunder M/s. S.
Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 000808N), were appointed as a Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting held in 2023 till the
conclusion of 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2028, at such remuneration plus
applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined in consultation with the Auditors and
duly approved by the members of the Company.

22.2 AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Auditor’s Report for financial year ended March 31, 2024, does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remarks. All Observations made in the Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes
forming part of the Financial Statements are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments and
also, there is no incident of fraud requiring reporting by the auditors under section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year. The Auditor’s report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Auditor’s
Report.

22.3 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s Sumit Bajaj & Associates,
Company Secretaries to carry out Secretarial Audit, for the financial year ended March 31,2024.

The Secretarial Audit Report does contain qualification, reservation of adverse remark.

The report of the Secretarial Auditor is given in “Annexure-I".

Management Response on Auditor’s Observation:

The management has responded on the matters that: The management takes all tax-related matters seriously
and ensures full compliance with the applicable laws and regulations. In instances where there are disputes or
demands raised by the tax authorities, we engage top-tier legal and tax experts to assess and address these
issues. We believe that the Company has a strong case in all such matters, and we remain committed to
defending the interests of the Company vigorously. We are optimistic that all outstanding issues will be
resolved favorably and that they will not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial health or
operations.

22.4 INTERNAL AUDITOR
Pursuant to provisions of Section 138, read with the rules made there under, the Board has appointed M/s

CAAN& Associates a Chartered Accountant Firm having FRN: 025675N as an Internal Auditor of the
Company for the financial year 2023-2024, to check the internal controls and the functioning of the activities
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29.

30.

of the Company and also recommends ways of improvement. He has provided an Internal Audit Report of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The Internal audit is carried out quarterly basis
and the report is placed in the Audit Committee Meeting and Board Meeting for their consideration and
direction.

22.5 COST AUDITORS
The Company has not appointed the Cost Auditor as pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the cost audit is not applicable
to the Company.

22.6 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION& FOREIGN
EXCHANGE

(A) Conservation of energy:

Q) Steps taken or impart on conservation of energy :- Required steps have been taken by the
Company
(ii) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:- Required steps have

been taken by the Company
(iii) Capital Investment on energy conservation equipment:- NIL

(B) Technology absorption

M Efforts made towards technology absorption:- As the Company is not using any borrowed
technology no such steps are required.
(1) benefit derived :- NA
(T In case of imported technology-N.A.
a) The detail of technology imported
b) The year of import
¢) Whether the technology been fully absorbed
d) If not fully absorbed areas where absorption has not been taken place, and the reasons
thereof
Iv) Expenses incurred on R & D: NIL

(©) Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo
(Amount in Rs. 000)

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Foreign Exchange Outgo Nil --
Foreign Exchange Earning Nil 13482.30

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

As per Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, top five hundred (500) listed entities
based on market capitalization shall contain the Business Responsibility Report in their Annual Report.
As the Company does not fall under top 500 listed Companies based on market capitalization, therefore,
this regulation is not applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate
Governance and a report on the same along with the Auditor’s Certificate confirming compliance is
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31.

32.

33.

attached with and forms part of this report.
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASMENT

The Company is an equal opportunity provider and has zero tolerance in any form or manner towards the
sexual harassment of women at work place. In accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work
Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,2013, the Company has formulated a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment of women at work place. The Company has constituted Internal
Complaints Committee which meets as and when required.

No complaints pertaining to sexual harassment of women employees were received during the year.
ISO CERTIFICATION

The Company continued to be certified under ISO 9001:2015 for quality management systems, ISO
14001:2015 for environment management systems and ISO 45001:2018 for Occupational Health
and Safety Management System by UK Certification & Inspection Ltd.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT

Our Company is subject to various legal proceedings from time to time, primarily arising in the ordinary
course of business. There is no outstanding litigation which has been considered material in accordance with
our Company’s ‘Policy for Determination of Materiality’, framed in accordance with Regulation 30 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. However, solely for the purpose of the Issue, the following outstanding litigations
have been disclosed in this section of this report, to the extent applicable: any outstanding civil litigation,
including tax litigation, involving our Company, where the amount involved is where the amount involved is
20% of Turnover or Net Worth of the Company for the immediately preceding financial year ("Materiality
Threshold") or above.

Except as disclosed below, there are no outstanding litigation with respect to (i) issues of moral turpitude or
criminal liability on the part of our Company; (ii) material violations of statutory regulations by our Companys;
(iii) economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company;(iv) any pending matters,
which if they result in an adverse outcome, would materially and adversely affect our operations or our
financial position.

-There is liability of Rs. 542.00 Lakhs on account of Demand from the GST Department, our Company has
filed an appeal with higher authority(ies) which is under process.

-In the matter of M/s. Findoc Finvest Pvt Ltd (Petitioner) and M/s. AF Enterprises Limited (Respondent) under
Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
at New Delhi concerning an amount of Rs 210.00 Lakhs. M/S Findoc Finvest Pvt Ltd sanctioned a loan of Rs
500 lakhs to M/S AF Enterprises Limited, but the sanctioned amount has not been fully disbursed.
Consequently, M/S AF Enterprises Limited has not been able to complete its project due to a shortage of
funds.

Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

Sr. Section Date of | Demand Reference QOutstandi | Accrued | Outstanding
No. | Code demand o ng Interest | Demand

raised Demand Amount
Amount
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U/s 154

U/s143(1)(
a)
U/s143(3)

U/s143(1)(
a)

17/03/2024

01/05/2020

28/03/2024

30/04/2024

202320174041587117
0C
202020193700217821
5C
202320223724654737
5C
202420233724726903
2C

34. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

2017

2019

2022

2023

The Board of Directors duly met 09 times during the year i.e.

30.05.2023
18.06.2023
14.08.2023
28.08.2023
03.09.2023
14.11.2023
27.01.2024
14.02.2024
19.03.2024

37,92,477
9,60,250
13,5,21,170

25,73,510

1,82,438
20,28,165

51,470

37,92,477
11,42,688
1,55,49,335

26,24,980

in respect of which notices were given and the proceedings were recorded and signed. The intervening gap
between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.The details of
Board meetings and the attendance of Directors in such meetings are given in the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Annual Report.

35. COMMITTEES AND THEIR MEETINGS

A. Audit Committee

The Company has an Audit Committee of Directors in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Committee comprises of:

Mr. Tinku Kathuria (Chairman & Independent Director),
Ms. Preeti (Member, Independent Director) and
Mr. Abhishek Singh (Member, Executive Director)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia include overseeing the financial reporting process,

reviewing the financial

statements

recommendations made by Audit Committee were accepted.

During the year Five (5) Audit Committee Meetings were held;

30.05.2023
18.06.2023
03.09.2023
14.11.2023
14.02.2024

and recommending the appointment of Auditors.

All the
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B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Directors in compliance with provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The Committee’s scope of work includes nominate the directors as per their qualifications, experience and
positive attributes, deciding on remuneration and policy matters related to remunerations of Directors and
laying guidelines for remuneration package or compensation etc.

The Committee comprises of:

Ms. Preeti (Independent Director & Chairperson)

Mr. Tinku Kathuria (Member, Independent Director)

Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non- Executive Director), Resigned on 30.05.2023

Mr. Manishkumar Prafulbhai Mehta (Member, Non-Executive - Non Independent Director) Appointed
on 03-09-2023

During the year (04) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting was held on;
30.05.2023
03.09.2023
14.11.2023
19.03.2024

C. STAKEHOLDERS & RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company has a Stakeholder Relationship Committee of Directors in compliance with provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to look into the redressed of complaints of investors such as transfer
or credit of shares, non-receipt of dividend/notices /annual reports, etc.

The Committee comprises of:

Mr. Tinku Kathuria (Independent Director& Chairman) and

Ms. Preeti (Member, Independent Director)

Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha (Member, Executive Director).

Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non-Executive Director) Resigned on 30.05.2023

The Company has a Stakeholder Relationship Committee of directors to look into the redressal of
complaints of investors such as transfer or credit of shares, non-receipt of dividend/notices /annual
reports, etc.

During the year (03) Stakeholders & Relationship Committee Meeting was held on;
e 30.05.2023
o 14.11.2023
e 27.01.2024

36. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
The Company believes that the essence of Corporate Governance lies in the phrase “Your Company”. The
Chairman and Directors are “Your” fiduciaries and trustees. Their objective is to take the business forward in

such a way that it maximizes “Your” long term value. Besides, adhering to the prescribed Corporate
Governance practices as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
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37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

company also endeavors to share information with its stakeholders openly and transparently on matters
which have a bearing on its economic and reputational interest. The Corporate Governance Report is a part
of this Annual report.

A certificate from Secretarial Auditors of the company regarding the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance by the Company as stipulated under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is also attached to this Annual Report.

HUMAN RESOURCES
The Management has a healthy relationship with the officers and the Employee.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION& DISCHARGE OF
THEIR DUTIES

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted under section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 for formulization the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Directors and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees. Further, the Directors of the Company are being paid
remuneration as approved by the Shareholders and Board as per the provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has formulated Evaluation Policy during the
year, which was approved by the Board of Directors. The Policy provides for evaluation of the Board, the
Committee of the Board and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The policy provides
that evaluation of the performance of the Board as a whole, Board Committees and Directors shall be carried
out on an annual basis.

WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR & CFO CERTIFICATE ON CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a specific code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the
Company. All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the
Code on annual basis. In this regard certificate from Whole Time Director and CFO as required under
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been
received by the Board and the same is attached herewith as per Annexure-V.

CAUTIONARY NOTE

The statements forming part of the Board’s Report may contain certain forward looking remarks within the
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Many factors could cause the actual results,
performances or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results,
performances or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward looking statements.

APPLICABILITY OF THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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The Board of Directors acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation extended by the Company’s Bankers
and also appreciates the continued trust and confidence reposed by the Shareholders in the management.
They also place on record their appreciation for the valuable contribution and whole hearted support
extended by the Company’s employees at all levels.

By the Order of the Board
AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Date: 29/08/2024 Abhishek Singh Santosh Kumar
Place: Delhi Director Kushawaha
DIN: 03603706 Managing Director

DIN:02994228
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ANNEXURE-I

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

A.F. Enterprises Limited

H 15/18, Basement B Portion, West Patel Nagar,
New Delhi, Delhi, 110008

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by A.F Enterprises Limited (hereinafter called the “Company’).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and accordingly, expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our inspection, verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 has
possibly complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under.

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act);

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on Saturday, January 27, 2024 has,
inter alia, considered the Lapsing of 50,00,000 share warrant at Rs. 101/- (Face value Rs. 10/-
including Rs. 91/- premium per warrant) aggregating to Rs. 50,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crores Fifty
Lakhs Only) Fully Convertible Warrants (“Warrants”) on 12th July, 2022, due to non- exercise of
option to convert warrants into equity shares within the stipulated eighteen-month period from the date
of allotment. Warrants have been forfeited by the company due to non-exercise of Warrants within the
Warrant Exercise Period date on 11th January, 2024.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and sweat equity)
Regulations, 2021; (No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)
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e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (No
transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (No transaction
has been recorded during the Audit Period)

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended.

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, I have relied on information/records produced
by the Company during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to that extent.

In respect of Direct and Indirect Tax Laws like Income Tax Act, Goods & Service Tax Act, Excise & Custom
Acts we have relied on the Reports given by the Statutory Auditor of the company.

Observation remarks:
Other Proceeding against the Company including matters which are considered material as per Materiality Policy

i) There is liability of Rs. 542.00 Lakhs on account of Demand from the GST Department, our Company has filed
an appeal with higher authority(ies) which is under process.

ii) In the matter of M/s. Findoc Finvest Pvt Ltd (Petitioner) and M/s. AF Enterprises Limited (Respondent) under
Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) at
New Delhi concerning an amount of Rs 210.00 Lakhs. M/S Findoc Finvest Pvt Ltd sanctioned a loan of Rs 500
lakhs to M/S AF Enterprises Limited, but the sanctioned amount has not been fully disbursed. Consequently,
M/S AF Enterprises Limited has not been able to complete its project due to a shortage of funds.

Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

SR | Section Code | Date of | Demand Reference Asses | Outstandin | Accrued QOutstanding

No. demand No. smen | g Interest Demand
raised t Demand Amount

Year | Amount

1 U/s 154 17/03/2024 2023201740415871170C | 2017 | 37,92,477 - 37,92,477

2 U/s143(1)(a) 01/05/2020 | 2020201937002178215C | 2019 | 9,60,250 1,82,438 11,42,688

3 U/s143(3) 28/03/2024 2023202237246547375C | 2022 | 13,5,21,170 | 20,28,165 | 1,55,49,335

4 U/s143(1)(a) 30/04/2024 2024202337247269032C | 2023 | 25,73,510 51,470 26,24,980

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1. Secretarial Standard issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and
general meetings.

2. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and there exist the system for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on
the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

All decisions of the Board were unanimous and the same are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the company and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that as informed to us, the Company has undertaken event / action having a major bearing on
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.
referred to above.

We further report that during the audit period there was no other event/action having major bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards.

For Sumit Bajaj & Associates
(Practicing Company Secretary)
FRN: S2019DE677200

Date: 29-08-2024

Place: New Delhi Sd/'. . .
UDIN: A045042F001068867 CS Sumit Bajaj
(Proprietor)

C. P. No: 23948

M. No.: 45042

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-1A forming part of an
integral.
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To,

Annexure-1A

The Members,

A.F Enterprises Limited

H 15/18, Basement B Portion, West Patel Nagar,
New Delhi, Delhi, 110008

Our report is to be read along with this letter.

L

IL.

III.

Iv.

VI

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on this secretarial record based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial record. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of the accounts of
the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company

For Sumit Bajaj & Associates
(Practicing Company Secretary)
FRN: S2019DE677200

Date: 29-08-2024

Place: New Delhi Sd/'. . .
UDIN: A045042F001068867 CS Sumit Bajaj
(Proprietor)

C. P. No: 23948

M. No.: 45042
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FormAOC-1

ANNEXURE “II”

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules,2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in( Rs.) Company does not

have any subsidiary/ associate companies/ joint ventures.

1. | Name of the subsidiary Aunik IT Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
2. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different No
from the holding company’s reporting period
3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of NA
the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreignSubsidiaries
4. Share capital 10,00,000
5. | Reserves & surplus (2,44,621.90)
6. Total assets 23,73370.61
7. | Total Liabilities 25,17,992.51
8. | Investments 0
9. | Turnover 0
10. | Profit before taxation 93,75,740.00
11. | Provision for taxation 0
12. | Profit after taxation (70,25,060)
13. | Proposed Dividend NA
14. | % of shareholding 95.27%
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures-NA

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and
Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end

No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

>Z.

Extend of Holding%
3. Description of how there is significant influence

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

> Z

6. Profit/Loss for the year

1. Considered in Consolidation
1. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

By the Order of the Board
AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Date: 29/08/2024 Abhishek Singh Santosh Kumar Kushawaha
Place: Delhi Director Managing Director
DIN: 03603706 DIN:02994228
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FORM NO. AOC-2

ANNEXURE-III

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions

under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c)Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

value, if any

(d)Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NIL

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

required under first proviso to section 188

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Name of related party | Nature of contracts/ | Duration of | Salient
and nature of arrangements contract Terms

relationship /transactions

Date of Amount (in
Approval by | Lakhs)
the Board

Mr. Abhishek Singh Remuneration Paid --
(Whole Time Director)

RDS Corporate Services = Loan --
private Limited

Mr. Santosh Kumar Loan -
Kushawaha
Mr. Santosh Kumar Remuneration --
Kushawaha
SNP Infosolutions LLP = Advanced Received -
Mr. Tinku Kathuria Sitting Fee --
Mr. Prateek Kumar Sitting Fee --
Sd/-
Date: 29/08/2024 Abhishek Singh
Place: Delhi Director

DIN: 03603706

-- 57.78

- 1.95
- A7
- 45

By the Order of the Board
AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/-

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha
Managing Director
DIN:02994228
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ANNEXURE-IV
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information required with respect to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read With Rule
5(1) Of The Companies (Appointment And Remuneration Of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014

(1) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year under review

Name of Director/ KMP  Remuneration (In Rs.) Ratio  of Directors Percentage

Remuneration to Increase
edian Remuneration Remuneration
2:1 NIL

Mr. Abhishek Singh 6,00,000

(ii))  The Median Remuneration of Employees is Rs.35,000.

(iii)  The Company has 18 Employees on the rolls of Company as on 31°* March,2024.
(iv)  During the Year 2023-24, there was no increase in the salary of Employees.

(v) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

Information required with respect to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read With
Rule5(2) Of The Companies (Appointment And Remuneration Of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014

None of the employee drawn remuneration more than of Rs. 1 Crore 2 Lakh per annum or Rs. 8.50 Lakh
per month if any part of the year. Hence the provision of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5(2) of The Companies (Appointment And Remuneration Of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 are not applicable for the period under review.

By the Order of the Board

AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Date: 29/08/2024 Abhishek Singh Santosh Kumar Kushawaha
Place: Delhi Director Managing Director
DIN: 03603706 DIN:02994228
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ANNEXURE-V
CERTIFICATE FROM THE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR & CFO
[As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

I, Abhishek Singh , Chief Financial Officer of AF Enterprises Limited, certify that:

1. T have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the period and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements give a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and of the results of operations and
cash flow. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity, in all material respects, with the
existing generally accepted accounting principles including accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions were entered into by the Company during the
year that is fraudulent, illegal or violates the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We accept overall responsibility for the Company’s internal control system for financial reporting. This

is monitored by the internal audit function, which encompasses the examination and evaluation of its
adequacy and effectiveness. Internal audit interacts with all levels of Management and statutory auditors,
and reports significant issues to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Auditors’ and the Audit Committee
are apprised of any corrective action taken with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

4. We have indicated to the Auditors’ and Audit Committee:
a. significant changes in internal control and overall financial reporting during the period;
b. significant changes in accounting policies during the period;

c. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and which involve Management or
employees, who have significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.
However, during the period there were no such changes or instances.

For AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/-

Abhishek Singh

Date:28-08-2024 Director
Place Delhi DIN: 03603706
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Annexure-VI

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015)

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March,
2024.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of governance in the way it carries business.
The Company strives to continuously engage with and is receptive to the concerns of its stakeholders and
the surrounding communities within which it operates. The principles of good governance can best be
achieved when the Board, the management, the employees and all those associated with the business
realize the inherent importance of ethics and channel their conduct accordingly. It is in this background that
the Company lays specific emphasis on mutual trust and respect towards all concerned stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition and category of the Directors

The Board of Directors, led by a Non-executive Non independent Chairman, comprises of five Directors
with diverse background and profession and having an optimum combination of Executive and Non-
Executive Non executive Independent Directors in conformity with Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). Mr. Abhishek
Singh, Whole time Director & CFO and Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha, Managing Director Mr.
Manishkumar Prafulbhai Mehta, Non-Executive Director Mr. Tinku Kathuria and Ms. Preeti are
Independent Directors. The Board constituted committees include Audit committee, Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee. The role of the committees is defined by the Board and are in accordance with in the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE MEETINGS

The Board of Directors duly met 09 times during the year i.e.
30.05.2023
18.06.2023
14.08.2023
28.08.2023
03.09.2023
14.11.2023
27.01.2024
14.02.2024
19.03.2024

The attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the Annual General Meeting, Directorship and
Committee membership in other Companies are given below:

Name of the | Category No. of Attendance | No. of Number of No. of
Directors Board at AGM Directorship(s) | Committee position | Shares

Meetings | held on held in other held in other public | held
Attended | 30.09.2023 | public companies®

Companies Chairman | Member
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Mr. Abhishek = Executive Yes 0 0 0 0
Singh Director
Mr. Santosh | Executive Yes 1 0 0 300000
Kumar Director
Kushawaha
Mr. Tinku Non- Yes 0 0 0 0
Kathuria Executive
Independent
Ms. Preeti Independent Yes 1 0 1 0
Director
Mr. Non- Yes 1 0 0 0
Manishkumar Executive -
Prafulbhai Non
Mehta Independent
Director

The familiarization programme of the Directors can be accessed at www.afenterprisesltd.in

None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other.
Matrix of skills/competence/expertise of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of people with diverse knowledge, skills and expertise
and experience such as management, finance, tax, etc. The Board is led by the Experts who have immense
knowledge of Plastic Industries The Managing Director and Executive Director are in charge of the overall
affairs of the Company and at Plants respectively. The Independent Directors brings with them their
respective domain expertise which are accountancy and management.

Wherever needed, the proposals are placed before the respective committee for its consideration and if
recommended by it, then placed before the Board. All business transacted at the Board/Committee are with
the presence of only non-interested directors. All committees (except Risk Management Committee) are
chaired by the Independent Directors and the views of all members are taken into consideration before
decisions are taken. The major skills/competencies/expertise and the directorships held by the Directors in
other listed companies are summarized below:

Name of Directors Directorships held Category Skills/Expertise
in Listed Companies

Mr. Abhishek Singh Accounts, Finance &
Banking

Audit, Finance&
Compliances,
Finance & Taxation

Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha

Mr. Tinku Kathuria

Mr. Manishkumar Prafulbhai B . Project Set Up,
Mehta General Management
Ms. Preeti -Kotia Enterprises Director Secretarial
Limited Compliances.
-Vintage Coffee And Director
Beverages Limited
-Artificial Electronics Director
Intelligent Material
Limited Director
-Rajnish Wellness
Limited Director
-Elitecon International
Limited
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In the opinion of the Board, all the independent directors have fulfilled the conditions of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and that they are independent of the Company’s management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference and the role of the Audit Committee are as per guidelines set out in Part C of
Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee meets periodically and mandatorily reviews the
following:

The Role of Audit Committee together with its powers shall be as under:

1. Overseeing the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to

ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or

removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees;

3. Approving payment to the statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. Approving initial or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

5. Scrutinizing inter-corporate loans and investments;

6. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

7. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

8. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for

approval, with particular reference to; matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility

Statement to be included in the

o Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 134 of the Companies Act,2013; changes, if any, in
accounting policies and practices along with reasons for the same;

o Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by Management;
significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

o  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

o Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

o Qualifications in the audit report

9. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for

approval;

10. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of the uses/application of funds raised through an issue

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than

those stated in the offer document/Draft prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring

agency monitoring the utilization of the proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate

recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

11. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the

internal control systems;

12. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and

frequency of internal audit;

13. Discussing with the internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on;

14. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the

matter to the Board;

15. Discussing with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit

as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

16. Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,

shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors;

17. Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism, in case the same is exist;

18. Approving the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer (i.e. the whole time finance director or any

other person heading the finance function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background,

etc., of the candidate; and

19. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee or
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contained in the equity listing agreements as and when amended from time to time.
Further, the Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by
management;

3. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor.

The meetings of the Committee are held at regular intervals. The Audit Committee met Five times during
the year i.e

30.05.2023

18.06.2023

03.09.2023

14.11.2023

14.02.2024

In which meetings were attended by all the members of the Committee. The Committee comprises of:

Mr. Tinku Kathuria Chairman Non -Executive, Independent
Ms. Preeti Member Non -Executive, Independent
Mr. Abhishek Singh Member Executive

*Mr. Prateek Kumar has resigned from the position dated 14™ November, 2023

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. The Internal Auditors & Statutory
Auditors are the invitees to all Audit Committee meetings and have attended all meetings during the year.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a well framed vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy for its directors and employees.
During the year all the directors, senior management personnel and other employees complied the vigil
mechanism and none of the complaints are received against any directors and employees for any fraudulent
dealings. An Audit Committee of the Board of directors has the responsibility to review the functioning of
vigil mechanism and the same has been performed by the committee periodically. The Company has
established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism that provides a channel to the Employees and Directors to
report to the management concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Codes of conduct or legal or regulatory requirements, incorrect or misrepresentation of any financial
statements and reports, etc. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral
and legal conduct of business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company encourages its
employees who have concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express these concerns
without fear of punishment or unfair treatment.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee functions within the ambit of powers as vested by the
Board vis-a-vis Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act, which includes
amongst others policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees, formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and Board of
Directors, devising a policy on diversity of Board, appointment of directors, key managerial personnel,
senior management level employees, recommending to the Board the appointment of directors, evaluating
the re-appointment and determining whether to extend the tenure of the independent directors,
recommending to the Board the remuneration payable to senior management employees, The link to view
the policy is on the website of the Company at https://afenterprisesltd.in/cg-report/
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board is constituted in accordance with the
requirement of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Two-thirds of
the members of the Committee are independent directors. During the year, four meetings were held on ;
30.05.2023

03.09.2023

14.11.2023

19.03.2024

which were attended by all the members of the Committee. The terms of reference of the Committee are
defined as per SEBI Listing Regulations. The Committee comprises of:

1. Ms. Preeti Independent Director [Chairperson
2. Mr. Tinku Kathuria Independent Director |[Member
3. Mr. Manishkumar Prafulbhai Non-Executive - Non |[Member
Mehta Independent Director
4. Mr. Vikram Sharma Non- Executive Member
Director

*Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non- Executive Director), Resigned on 30.05.2023

Performance evaluation criteria of the Board and Directors

The criteria for the evaluation of directors are determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations on the basis of discussion amongst the Directors covering all aspects of the functioning of the
Board and the Committees. The evaluation criteria provide for different parameters for the evaluation of the
performance of the Board, its committees and Directors. The criteria for evaluation covers areas such as
functioning of the Board/Committees, discharge of key responsibilities, Board governance, attendance at
the meetings, independence of judgment exercised by the Directors, etc. Pursuant to the provisions of the
Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of its own
performance as well as the working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration, Stakeholders’ Relationship,
Risk Management, and Corporate Social Responsibility Committees.

All the Directors carried out the performance evaluation. The Independent Directors evaluated the
performance of non-independent directors, the Board as a whole and Chairman. The performance
evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire Board members in which the independent
directors who were being evaluated did not participate.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Policy of the Company strives to ensure that the level and composition of the
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the best talent commensurate with
the size of the Company.

The remuneration of the Directors is in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the approval of the
members of the Company. There was no pecuniary relationship or transactions between the Company and
any of its Directors apart from the remuneration as detailed below:

Sitting Fecs

Mr. Abhishek Singh 600000 600000
Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha - - -
Mr. Vikram Sharma* - - -
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Mr. Tinku Kathuria - 47700 47700
Ms. Preeti - 45900 45900
*Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non- Executive Director), Resigned on 30.05.2023

The terms of appointment of the Managing Director and Executive Director provide that the appointment
may be terminated by either party by giving to the other party three months’ notice of such termination or
the Company paying three months remuneration in lieu thereof.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee meets as and when required and reviews all matters relating to
the resolution of the investors grievances viz. transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
dividends, issue of duplicate share certificates, etc. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board
is constituted in accordance with the requirement of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Two-thirds of the members of the Committee are
independent directors. During the year, Three (3) meetings were held on;

30.05.2023

14.11.2023

27.01.2024

which were attended by all the members of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Committee are defined as per SEBI Listing Regulations. The investor
grievances are being attended by M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent (RTA) administered under the supervision of the Company Secretary and a periodical report on the
same is being presented before the Committee. The composition of the Committee and the status of the
complaints are given below:

Name of the Member Category Position

Complaints [Complain
Resolved t Pending

Mrs. Preeti Non Executive and ~ Member 0 0 0
Independent Director

Mr. Tinku Kathuria Non Executive- Chairperso0 0 0
Independent Director n

Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha Executive Director Member 0 0 0

Mr. Vikram Sharma Non- Executive Member 0 0 0
Director

*Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non- Executive Director), Resigned on 30.05.2023

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 25(3) of Listing Regulations, a meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company
was held. The Independent Directors of the Company had met during the year to review the performance of
Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, review the performance of the Chairperson of the
Company and had accessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the
company management and the Board.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The Company’s Last AGM (40" AGM) of the Financial Year 2022-23 was held on 29th September, 2023
through Video Conferencing
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Means of Communication:

The Company's quarterly results are intimated to the Stock Exchange and to the Public.
Generally, the results are published in the Financial Express (National newspaper) and Jansatta
(Regional newspapers). The quarterly results are displayed on the website of the company at
www.afenterprisesltd.in

Details of Shareholders’ Complaints received, resolved & pending during FY 2023-2024

Particulars Nos.
Complaints pending as on April 1, 2023 Nil
Complaints received during the year ended March 31, 2024 Nil
Complaints resolved during the year ended March 31, 2024 Nil
Complaints pending as on March 31, 2024 Nil

Name, designation and e-mail address of Compliance Officer
Ms. Neha Srivastava

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

During the year under review, your Company does not touch the threshold limit as per the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013, accordingly the Company does not require
to meet out the Compliance requirement as stipulated under Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Risk Management Committee

Your Company is not required to form Risk Management Committee as per Regulation 21 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Senior Management

There have been no changes in the senior management of the Company since the close of the
previous financial year.

Familiarization program for Independent Directors:

The Company supports Directors to update their skills and knowledge and improve their
familiarity with the Company, its business. Your Company provides familiarization programmed
in the form of interactive sessions with the senior management. The Company Secretary
periodically updates the Director(s) about regulatory changes. The Independent Directors are also
provided with financial results, internal audit findings, risk inventories and other specific
documents as sought for from time to time. The Independent Directors are also made aware of all
policies and Code of Conduct and Business Ethics adopted by the Board. The policy on the
familiarization programmes imparted to the Independent Directors is posted on the website of the
Company and may be accessed at the link:https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-
content/uploads/2021/09/Familiarisation-Programme.pdf

Formal letter of appointment to the Independent Directors (“IDs”) :

The Company issues formal appointment letters to the IDs. All IDs have confirmed that they have
met the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”). As required under Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations the terms and conditions of
appointment of IDs are available at https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/terms-
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of-ID-final.pdf
Declaration by Independent Directors (“IDs”):

The Board of Directors of the Company have confirmed that all Independent Directors comply
with the criteria of Independence as mentioned in SEBI (LODR), 2015 and have mentioned that
they are independent of management as on 31.03.2024.

Necessary confirmations have also been taken from the Independent Directors in compliance with
Rule 6 Sub Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2019,
as amended from time to time. The Board of Directors of the Company have taken on record the
declarations and confirmations submitted by the Independent Directors under Regulation 16(1)(b)
read with 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Pursuant to Section 150(1) of the Act, read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 all the Independent Directors of the Company are
registered on the website of Institute of Corporate Affairs.

In compliance with Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations read with the Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI), the required information about the Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed has
been annexed to the Notice convening the 40th Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than ten public companies. None
of the Independent Directors serve as an Independent Director on more than seven listed entities.
Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public companies as on 31st
March, 2023 have been made by the Directors.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Annual General Meeting September 25, 2024 (Wednesday)

Schedule:
2. Financial Year April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024
Dividend Payment Date Not Applicable

4. Name and Address of the Stock BSE

Exchange’ at ,WhiChl, Eihe Regd. Address: 15/18, Basement B Portion
ompany’s securities are liste West Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008

Corp. Address: Plot No. 8, Sector-5, Main
Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana-121006

5. Payment of Annual Listing Fee Yes, the Annual Listing Fee has been paid to
to Stock Exchange the BSE Limited for the financial year 2023-
24
Stock Code 538351

Registrar to an issue and share M/s Skyline Financial Services Private
transfer agents Limited

D-153 A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area
Phase-1, New Delhi-110020

Contact: 0129-2248111
e-mail i.d: admin @skylinerta.com
ISIN INE663P01015

Share Transfer System The company has delegated the authority to
approve shares received for transfer in
physical form to M/s Skyline Financial
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services private limited

10.  Dematerialization of shares and The company has an agreement with M/s
liquidity Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
for dematerialization of shares

11.  Outstandi GDR ADR we wish to inform you that the Board of
uistanding o o Directors of the Company in their meeting held

on Saturday, January 27, 2024 has, inter alia,
considered the Lapsing of 50,00,000 share
warrant at Rs. 101/- (Face value Rs. 10/-
including Rs. 91/- premium per warrant)
aggregating to Rs. 50,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty
Crores Fifty Lakhs Only) Fully Convertible
Warrants (“Warrants”) on 12th July, 2022, due
to non- exercise of option to convert warrants
into equity shares within the stipulated eighteen-
month period from the date of allotment.
Warrants have been forfeited by the company
due to non-exercise of Warrants within the
Warrant Exercise Period date on 11" January,
2024.

12. | Plant Locations Plot No. 8, Sector-5, Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad, Haryana-121006

13.  Corporate Secretarial/Investors’ Secretarial Department headed by Ms. Neha
Assistance Department Srivastava, Company Secretary of the
Company

warrants or any

Market Price Data

Market Price Data for the period April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024: The monthly high and low
prices are as under:

| perid  Hih Low

April 2023 15.20 12.50
May 2023 15.95 9.70
June 2023 13.49 7.56
July 2023 8.49 6.84
August 2023 8.19 5.60
September 2023 6.22 4.61
October 2023 5.35 4.30
November 2023 4.90 4.33
December 2023 6.06 4.67
January 2024 8.47 4.82
February 2024 10.86 6.25
March 2024 7.01 5.35

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2024 is as follows

No. of Share
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Promoter

807600

5.72

Public

13306036

94.28

Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity:

To facilitate trading in dematerialized form, the Company has entered into agreement with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited

(CDSL). Shares of the Company are traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

Investor Relations:

All queries received from shareholders during the accounting year 2023-24 were responded
adequately and in time. As required under Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the
designated e-mail address for investors services, i.e, info.afenterprises @ gmail.com or cs @ridh.in
is provided on the website of the Company to serve them better.

Categories of Shareholders as on 31 March, 2024

Sr. No. of ordinary shares held No. of | No. of | Percentage
No Shareholders | Shares held (%)

T NS0 h o o 0 oo~ N =

(@]

50 o o

Note:

Shareholding of Promoter and
Promoting Group

Indian

Foreign

Sub Total (A)

Public Shareholding

Institutions

Mutual Funds/ UTI

Financial institutions/ Banks
Central  Government/  State
Government(s) (IEPF)
Insurance Companies

Foreign institutional Investors
Alternate Investment Funds
Foreign Portfolio Investors
Sub-Total (B)(1)

Non Institutions

Bodies Corporate

Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital up to Rs. 2
Lacs

Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess
of Rs. 2 Lacs

Directors

NRI

Resident Indian HUF

Firms

Clearing Member

Sub Total (B)(1) + (B)(2)

Total Public Shareholding (B)=
B)M)+(B)(2) + B(3) +B(4)

o o oo

o oo o

7235

101

~ | —

95

7476
7476

807600
0

oo oo

o oo o

1103570
5865875

5426191

300000
24149

457411
128500

13306036
14113636

5.72
0

S O OO

(leielie]

7.82
41.56

38.45

2.13
0.17
3.24
0.91

94.28
100
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Pursuant to amendment in Regulation 31 of Listing Regulations, a public shareholder and a non-
public non-promoter shareholder has to provide the details of their shareholding along with their
PAN number. Earlier the details of the shareholding had to be given by the promoters and
promoter groups only. In addition to the above, the shareholding of the public shareholder and
non-public non-promoter shareholder has to be consolidated on the basis of PAN and folio
number in order to avoid multiple disclosures of shareholding of the same person. In compliance
with the above amendment, shareholding shown on the basis of PAN and folio number in order to
avoid multiple disclosures of shareholding of the same person.

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form. We have established
connectivity with both the depositories in India — National Securities Depository Limited
(“NSDL”) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”). The International
Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”’) allotted to the Company’s Share under the Depository
System is INE§20MO1018. As on March 31, 2024, the Company’s total shares representing
5897633 equity shares were held in dematerialized form with NSDL & 8080273 with CDSL.

Location of Business and address for correspondence

AF Enterprises Limited

Regd. Address: 15/18, Basement B Portion, West Patel Nagar, Delhi-110015

Corp Address: Plot No.8, Sector-5, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana-121006
Disclosures to Shareholders:

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large

No such transactions took place during the year ended 31st March, 2024. The transactions with
related parties for the year ended 31st March, 2024 have been disclosed in Notes of the Annual
Report and disclosures on the Related party transaction for the half year ended 30th September,
2023 have been submitted to BSE respectively and for the half-year ended 31st March, 2024 has
been submitted to BSE. The Board has approved a policy on materiality of related party
transactions and on dealing with related parties and the same is posted on the Company’s website
at www.afenterprisesltd.in

(b) Disclosure by Senior Management in accordance with Regulation 26(5) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations:

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 the Senior Management Personnel of the Company
has confirmed to the Board of Directors that they do not have any personal interest relating to
material, financial and commercial transactions entered into with the Company that may have a
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

(¢) Disclosures on Compliance of Law

There has been no instance of non-compliance with any legal requirement during the Financial
Year 2023-24 and no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory authority relating to capital markets during Financial Year
2023-24.

(d) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy which is posted on the website of
Company at the link: https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Whistle-Blower-
Policy-Final.pdf for its Directors and employees to report their concerns about the Company’s
working or about any violation of its policies. Besides, as per the new requirement of Clause 6 of
Regulation 9A of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations as amended by the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, our Company ensures to make
employees aware of such Whistle-Blower Policy to report instances of leak of unpublished price
sensitive information. The vigil mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against the
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(e)

®

victimization of Director(s) or Employee(s) or any other person who avails the mechanism and
also provides direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. No personnel have been
denied any access to the Audit Committee.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

In compliance with the SEBI Regulation on Prohibition of Insider Trading, the Company has in
place a comprehensive code of conduct for its Directors and Senior Management Officers. The
code lays down guidelines, which advise them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be
made, while dealing with the shares of the Company. The code clearly specifies, among other
matters, that Directors and specified employees of the Company can trade in the shares of the
Company only during the ‘Trading Window Open Period’. All amendments to the ‘Code of
Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI)’
are updated on a regular basis. Annual Declarations containing the annual disclosures of holding
of securities were obtained from all the Directors and the Designated Persons of the Company for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. Besides, a declaration has also been obtained from the
Managing Director of the Company ensuring compliance with Regulation 9 Sub regulations 1 and
2 of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations as amended. The trading window is
closed during the time of declaration of results, and other material events, as per the Code, and
the same is posted on the website of the Company at the link: www.afenterprisesltd.in

Ms. Neha Srivastava, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer also acts as the Chief Investor
Relations Officer.

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory
requirements

All mandatory requirements have been complied with and the non-mandatory requirements are
dealt with at the end of the Report.

(g) Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries

The Company has not any material Subsidiaries for the financial year i.e. 2023-24.

(h) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

()

@

The Company has no exposure to commodity price risk or commodity hedging risk.
Internal Complaints Committee

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of
The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013 (POSH Act) covering all women employees of the Company. The Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) is set up for the purpose of providing protection against the sexual harassment
of women at the workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual
harassment and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

Loans & Advances

During the year under review, Your Company has given loan and advances as per the provisions
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, please refer notes to accounts of the Financial
Statements for the year 2023-2024

(k) Certificate from the Chief Financial Officer

Certificate from Mr. Abhishek Singh, Chief Financial Officer, in terms of Regulation 17(8) read
with Regulation 33(2)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the financial year ended March 31,
2024, was placed before the Board of Directors of the Company in its Meeting held on August
28, 2024.

Declaration regarding Compliance by the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel with the Code of Conduct:
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As provided under Regulation 17(5) & Schedule V Clause D of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 this is to confirm that a “Code
of Conduct” has been laid down by the Board of Directors of AF Enterprises Limited, which has
been made applicable to all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company.
The code has been affirmed to by all members of the Board and the Senior Management
Personnel of the Company. The said code of Conduct has also been posted on the website of the
Company, namely, www.afenterprisesltd.in

() Acceptance of recommendations of any Committee of the Board

All the recommendations made by any Committee of the Board during the financial year 2023-
2024 have been duly accepted and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(m) Disclosure on Utilization of Funds as per Regulation 32(7A)

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) during the Financial Year 2023-2024.

(n) Certificate regarding non-disqualification of Directors

The Company has obtained a certificate from Mr. Sumit Bajaj (ACS No: 45042, CP No: 23948)
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
the Company by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

(0) Certificate on Compliance of the Conditions of Corporate Governance.

As required by Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V(E) of the Listing Regulations, a practicing
Company Secretary’s certificate is annexed to this report.

(p) Status of Adoption Of The Non-Mandatory Requirements

In terms of regulation 27(1) read with Schedule II to the said regulations the disclosure on
account of the extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in part E of schedule 11
are given below:

(a) The Chairperson of the Board is nominated by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. The Chairperson of the Company, does not maintain any office at the expense of
the Company. The Chairperson of the Company is not related to the Managing Director of the
Company.

(b) In view of the publication of Financial results of the Company in newspaper and
disseminating the same on the website of the Company as well as on the website of the Stock
Exchanges, the Company does not consider it prudent to circulate the half-yearly Results
separately to the shareholders;

(c) There are no audit qualifications with respect to the financial statements of the Company.

(d) Your Company has maintained a separate person to the post of the Chairperson and the
Managing Director or the CFO, such that the Chairperson is (i) Non- Executive Director and (ii)
Not related to the Managing Director or CEO.

(e) The Internal Audit Reports are shared with the Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee
reviews the internal Audit report in presence of internal & statutory Auditors.

Nomination Facility:

Shareholders holding shares in physical form and desirous of making a nomination in respect of
their shareholding, as permitted under the Companies Act, Companies Act, 2013, are requested to
submit their request in this regard to the Company’s Share Transfer Agents M/s Skyline Financial
Services Private Limited D-153 A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-
110020 Nomination facility in respect of shares held in electronic form is also available with the
Depository Participant (DP) as per the by-laws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL.
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Compliance:

In compliance with the terms of the Listing Agreement, a certificate from an Independent
Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the provisions of Regulation 27 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 is annexed to this Report.

No Disqualification Certificate from Company Secretary In Practice

The Company has obtained a Certificate from M/s. Sumit Bajaj and Associates, Company
Secretaries confirming that none of the Directors on the board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority, as stipulated under
Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (LODR) which forms part of this Report

By the Order of the Board
AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Date: 29/08/2024 Abhishek Singh Santosh Kumar Kushawaha
Place: Delhi Director Managing Director
DIN: 03603706 DIN:02994228
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Annexure-B
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED

15/18 Basement B Portion West Patel Nagar
Patel Nagar West New Delhi-110008 IN

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance A F Enterprises Limited for
the year ended 31st March, 2023 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations™).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the
representations made by the Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations
for the year ended on March 31, 2024.

We state that in respect of Investor Grievances received during the year ended 31st March 2024, no
investor grievances are pending against the Company as per the record maintained by the companies which
are presented to Investor Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Sumit Bajaj & Associates
(Practicing Company Secretary)
FRN: S2019DE677200

Date: 29-08-2024

Place: New Delhi . Sd/-. .
UDIN: A045042F 001068768 CS Sumit Bajaj
(Proprietor)

C. P. No: 23948

M. No.: 45042
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ANNEXURE-C
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED

15/18 Basement B Portion West Patel Nagar
Patel Nagar West New Delhi-110008 IN

Subject: Certificate pursuant to Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

A F Enterprises Limited (CIN: L18100DL1983PLCO016354) (“the Company”), a Listed Public Limited Company
incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 whose equity shares are listed on the BSE
Limited (“BSE”), has approached us to issue certificate confirming that none of the directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI or Board)/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority
and based on the individual confirmations received from the Board of Directors of the Company who were in their
respective office as on March 31, 2024 viz.

Name of Director . DIN | DIN Status

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 02994228 Approved
I1I. Tinku Kathuria 08699650 Approved
Iv. Preeti 09662113 Approved
V. Manishkumar Prafulbhai Mehta 07656957 Approved

and we certify that, none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority.

This certificate is issued by us only for the purpose of disclosure to be furnished in the Corporate Governance Report
of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, pursuant to Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and should not be used for any other

purpose.

For Sumit Bajaj & Associates
(Practicing Company Secretary)
FRN: S2019DE677200

Sd/-

Date: 29-08-2024 CS Sumit Bajaj
Place: New Delhi (Proprietor)
UDIN: A045042F001068900 C. P. No: 23948
M. No.: 45042
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ANNEXURE- VII

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

This report contains forward-looking statements, which may be identified by their use of words
like ‘plans’, ‘expects’, ‘will’, ‘anticipates’, ‘believes, ‘intends’, ‘projects’, ‘estimates’ or other
words of similar meaning. All statements that address expectations or projections about the
future, including but not limited to statements about the Company’s strategy for growth, product
development, market position, expenditures and financial results are forward- looking
statements. Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of
future events. The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are
accurate or will be realized. The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements could,
thus, differ materially from those projected in any such forward- looking statements. The
Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward- looking
statements on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events.

OVERVIEWOF FINANCIAL YEAR

The financial year 2023-2024 presented a mixed landscape for the global plastic industry. The
sector faced several challenges, including volatile raw material prices and shifting regulatory
environments, while also benefiting from strong demand across various applications.

1. Raw Material Volatility: The year saw significant volatility in the prices of key raw materials
such as Polypropylene (PP) and Polyethylene (PE). Prices fluctuated by over 30% due to supply
chain disruptions, geopolitical tensions, and fluctuating crude oil prices. These price swings put
pressure on profit margins for many plastic manufacturers, particularly those heavily dependent
on these materials.

2. Regulatory Changes and Environmental Pressures: Governments across the globe continued
to tighten regulations on plastic production and waste management in response to growing
environmental concerns. There was increased emphasis on reducing single-use plastics and
enhancing recycling efforts. Companies in the industry had to navigate evolving regulatory
frameworks, which demanded more sustainable practices and greater transparency.

3. Demand Fluctuations: Despite these challenges, demand for plastic products remained robust,
particularly in sectors such as packaging, automotive, and construction. The packaging industry,
in particular, continued to grow due to increased consumer demand for packaged goods and e-
commerce. However, the automotive sector's demand for plastics was affected by global
semiconductor shortages and supply chain issues.

4. Technological Advancements and Sustainability Initiatives: Many companies in the plastic
industry invested in research and development to create more sustainable products and
processes. Innovations included the development of biodegradable plastics, increased use of
recycled materials, and advancements in chemical recycling technologies. These efforts were
aimed at reducing the environmental footprint of plastic products and aligning with global
sustainability goals.

5. Market Dynamics: Emerging markets like India, Vietnam, and Mexico showed strong growth
in the plastic industry, fueled by increasing industrialization and rising foreign investment. In
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contrast, mature markets like Europe and North America saw slower growth due to regulatory
pressures and a shift towards sustainability.

6. Financial Performance: The financial performance of plastic companies varied widely. While
some companies struggled with shrinking margins due to high raw material costs and
compliance costs, others capitalized on strong demand and technological advancements to
achieve growth. Companies that successfully adapted to the evolving regulatory landscape and
invested in sustainable practices generally fared better.

7. Outlook: Looking ahead, the plastic industry is expected to continue facing challenges related
to raw material volatility, regulatory changes, and environmental pressures. However,
opportunities exist for companies that invest in innovation and sustainability. The industry is
likely to see a shift towards more sustainable practices, driven by both regulatory requirements
and consumer demand for environmentally friendly products.

Indian Economic Overview

India is the third largest economy in the world after US and China in terms of purchasing
power parity. It ranked fifth in terms of market exchange rates. According to high frequency
indicators, the Indian economy is maintaining the same momentum it had in the first half of the
year even in the face of many upgrades for 2023-24 and 2024—25 by multilateral agencies.
Companies in the oil and gas industry made up the largest portion of the profit gain overall,
aided by higher marketing margins. The announcements made in the Interim Union Budget
2024— 25 align with the goal of "Viksit Bharat," which is to create a prosperous nation that is in
harmony with the environment, has access to modern infrastructure, and offers chances for all
of its residents and regions to realise their full potential. The capital expenditure push,
particularly on roads and railroads, has persisted in order to maintain the economic growth pace.

Key performance indicators of the Company are given below:

There was a decrease in the company's gross turnover to 385,013.85 thousand in FY 2023-24,
down from 3241,847.93 thousand in FY 2022-23.

The total EBITDA decreased significantly to ¥132.51 thousand in FY 2023-24 from X17,982.87
thousand in FY 2022-23.

The net profit also saw a decline, decreasing to 32,474.93 thousand in FY 2023-24 from
%10,320.05 thousand in FY 2022-23.

The year was marked by significant volatility, with key raw material prices, particularly
Polypropylene and Polyethylene, experiencing fluctuations of over 20%.

The Company continued to focus on increasing market penetration to ensure entire product
range are available in deeper pockets of the Country. The Company continued to build strong
designing & manufacturing capability in production of Plastic Moulded Components which will
establish its competitive position of high-cost import substitution in the Plastic.

OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS & RISKS

The Company is mainly exposed to market risk (including liquidity risk), interest risk and credit
risk. However prudent business and risk management practices followed by the company over
the years helps it to manage normal industry risk factors, which inter alia includes economic/
business cycle, fluctuations in the stock prices in the market, besides the interest rate volatility,
and credit risk. The Company is confident of managing these risks by observing a conservative
financial profile in investment are trading of securities business. The sheer unpredictable nature
of the markets makes investments a risky proposition. An investment company has to live with
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the fear of falling markets and movement of the SENSEX. However, the Company hopes to
improve its performance on the strength of its long experience and its strong emphasis on the
fundamentals. Your management has got ample exposure of the capital markets, which provide
us an opportunity to make safer and profitable investments with minimum risks.

«» INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has an Internal Control System which is commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The Internal Auditors monitor the efficiency and efficacy of the
internal control systems in the Company, compliance with operating systems/accounting
procedures and policies of the Company. Significant audit observations and corrective actions
thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Company has adequate systems
and procedures to provide assurance of recording transactions in all material respects. The
Internal Auditor reviewed the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls as per Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 by covering the following broad
areas:

i. Material level assessment

ii. Entity level assessment

iii. Risk Control Matrix covering major processes and developing controls Internal audit and
compliance.

The Company conducts its internal audit and compliance functions within the parameters of
regulatory framework which is well commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of
operations. The internal controls and compliance functions are installed, evolved, reviewed, and
upgraded periodically.

The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the audit and compliance functions, the
effectiveness of controls and compliance with regulatory guidelines and gives such directions to
the Management as necessary / considered appropriate. The Company has framed a compliance
policy to effectively monitor and supervise the compliance function in accordance with the
statutory requirements.

<+ HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resource is the most vital factor to achieve the goals of any organization. Being a
progressive organization, A F Enterprises Limited firmly believes in the strength of its most
vital asset. The company recognizes the importance of human value and ensures that
encouragement both moral and financial is extended to each individual for motivating them to
perform to the maximum capacity, to contribute towards developing and achieving individual
excellence and departmental objectives and continuously improve performance to realize the
full potential of our personnel. The company Industrial relations are cordial and satisfactory
during the year under review.

<+ CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements in this Report may be forward-looking and are stated as may be required by
applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which could be
different from what the Directors envisage in terms of future performance and outlook. Your
Company does not undertake to update these statements.

<+ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
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The directors of the company take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to all
employees for their hard work, spirited efforts, dedication and loyalty to the Company which
helped the Company for maintain its growth. Your Directors also wish to place on record their
sincere thanks and appreciation for the continuing support and unstinting efforts of investors,
vendors, dealers, business associates and employees in ensuring an excellent all around
operational performance.

By the Order of the Board

AF Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Date: 29/08/2024 Abhishek Singh Santosh Kumar Kushawaha
Place: Delhi Director Managing Director
DIN: 03603706 DIN:02994228
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) 123, Vinobapuri, Lajpat Nagar - ||
/| 8. agarwal & co Now Dot 316 024
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Phones : Off. : 29830625, 29838501
E-mail : sagarwal1910@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF A F Enterpri Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of A F Enterprises
Limited (‘the company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of other comprehensive income, the
Cash flow statement and the Statement of change in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS Standalone financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2024 and its profit/(loss) (including Other
Comprehensive Income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described hereunder to be key audit
matters to be communicated in our report

As on 31.03.2024 the company has a liability of Rs 50 lakhs toward rent payable in respect
of a leased property attached by ED due to proceeding against property owner i.e. M/S
Horizon Global Limited for more than 6 months and TDS on the same also not been
deducted other than that our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the
above matter,
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Information Other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor’'s Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.

The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including

Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the Standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit,
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"”), as
amended, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the
matters stated in the paragraph below Clause h(iv), on reporting under Rule 11(g)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Cash Flow statement and the statement of changes in
equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to
time

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”; and

The provision of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act regarding managerial
renumeration have been complied by the company

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:
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iii.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Ilv. Based on our examination which included test checks and information given
to us, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books
of account, which did not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective softwares, hence we are unable to comment on audit trail
feature of the said software

v, The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph above on reporting under
section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph above on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000808N
b
S.N. Agarwal

Place: New Delhi (Partner)

Date: 29.05.2024 M. No.: 012103

UDIN: 24012103BKDHNT6092
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“Ann re A” to the Independent Audi 'R rt
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal &

Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the Standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024)

Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure A referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the

Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we
report that:

1) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including

2)

3)

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) As per information and explanation given to us, the company does not have any
Intangible asset hence the provisions of sub clause (i)(a)(B) of para 3 of the order are
not applicable;

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to information and explanation given to us, the company does not hold any
immovable property during the year dealt with by this report. Accordingly, the provisions of
sub-clause (i)(c) of para 3 of the order are not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or
both during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder,

(a) As per information and explanation given to us, physical verification of inventory has
been conducted once in a year by the management and no material discrepancie_s were
noticed during the course of verification furthermore inventory consisting of securities are
held in dematerialized form, balances of same has been verified with securities closing

balances available at Depository participant (i.e. NSDLjCDSL) further no material
discrepancies were noticed during the course of such verification.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets,

In respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or L..msecured given to the
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year -:
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(a) A. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

(B) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans to parties other than subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, during the year amounting to Rs. 9367.00 thousand and
outstanding balance of such loan as at 31March is Rs. 30281.68 thousand

(b) As in respect of the above-mentioned loans neither confirmation from parties nor Loan
agreements are available on record hence, we are unable to comment whether their terms
and conditions are prejudicial to the company’s interest or not.

(c) In absence of confirmation from parties and existence of loan agreements we are unable
to comment on the existence of schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
and whether the repayments or receipts are regular.

(d) In absence of confirmation from parties and existence of loan agreements we are unable
to comment on whether any amount in respect of such loans is overdue or not.

(e) In absence of confirmation from parties and existence of loan agreements we are unable
to comment on whether out of the above-mentioned loans granted any loans that have
fallen due during the year, have been renewed or extended or fresh loans have been
granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

(F) In absence of confirmation from parties and existence of loan agreements we are unable
to comment on whether they are repayable on demand, about the terms and period of
repayment in respect of the entire amount of loan,

4) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable in respect of loans,
advances, guarantees and securities so given. Furthermore, in absence of any agreement or
term of loans provided to us by the company, we are unable to comment whether the
provisions of Sec 185 are applicable to the company and whether the company has complied
with them or not or not

5) As per the provisions of Section 73 and 76 the company does not have nor has accepted any
deposit during the year.

6) The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act is not applicable on the Company.

7) (a)The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities and there

are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year
concerned for a period of more than six months from the date, they became payable except

the following:

'Name of Statute under which dues are outstanding Amount (Rs. In '000")
Tax deducted at source under the Income tax Act 1768.17
Tax collected at source under the Income tax Act 250.17
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Employee's provident fund 346.32
Employer's provident fund 403.10
Employee’ ESI Payable 5.74
Labor welfare fund 92.70

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, following are the outstanding
statutory dues on the part of Company which is not deposited on account of dispute

Nature of Dues Period Amount involved | Forum where
(Rs Forum where | dispute is pending
dispute in '000")

Income Tax AY 2017-18 1916.26 ITAT, New Delhi

8) There are no transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).

(2) (a)whether the company has defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the

payment of interest thereon to any lender, if yes, the period and the amount of default to
be reported as per the format below: -.

| Nature of Name of Amount not Whether Remarks, if
borrowing lender paid principal or Any
(Rs. In '000") interest
Car Loan Axis Bank 539.73 Principal Unpaid since Jan
171.03 Interest 2020

(b) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
company has utilized the loans against the purpose for which it was obtained

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination

of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-
term basis that have been utilized for the long- term purpose by the Company

(€) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

10) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) therefore clause relating to diversion of said funds is not
applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
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convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

11) (a) No fraud by the company or fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors)

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) No whistle-blower complaints, have been, received during the year by the company;

12) The Company is not a Nidhi Company defined under section 406 of Companies Act 2013

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177

and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) (a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business;

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by the us.

15) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him,

16) (a) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Non-
Banking Financial Company and registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934;

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, The Company has not conducted
Non- Banking Financial activities with a valid certificate from Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, provision of sub clause (xvi)(c) of para
3 the order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the provisions of sub clause (xvi)(d) of para
3 the order are not applicable.

17) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

18) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. We have adequately
communicated with the outgoing auditors and no material issues, objections or concerns
raised by the them.

19) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone
financial statements , the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans, there is no material uncertainty on the date of the audit report that company is
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capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

20) Provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 relating to CSR activities regarding are
not applicable on the Company

21) Reporting on any qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARQ) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated Standalone financial statements is not applicable in case of standalone financial
statements

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: O00808N

—
ke, —
S.N. Agarwal
Place: New Delhi (Partner)
Date: 29.05.2024 M. No.: 012103
UDIN: 24012103BKDHNT6092

@
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“"Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of the independent auditor’'s report of even date on

the Standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31,
2024.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of A F Enterprises
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the "Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
'Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
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the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and Directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone
financial statements .

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial contrels over financial
reporting were operating effactively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000808N

Sz

S.N. Agarwal
Place: New Delhi (Partner)
Date: 29.05.2024 M. No.: 012103

UDIN: 24012103BKDHNTE092
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN ; L18100DL1983PLCO16354
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

(Amt. in 000's)

As at As at
Notes 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
ASSETS
Mon- current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 41,802.93 52,755.61
Financial assets
Irpvesstrmenls 4 12,347.00 9.527.00
Loans 5 30,281.68 23,503.60
Other non current assets [ 2,568.22 f,054.52
Current Assets
Inventaries 7 15,314,42 15,760.76
Financial assets
Trade recetvables 8 9.41,401.13 10,62 ,809.63
Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,387.68 5.751.75
Loans 10 s 400.00
Other current assets 11 54,059.18 1 .0?,128.60_
Total 11,05,162.24 12,83,691.47
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share caprtal 12 1,41,138.36 1,47,136.36
Other equity 13 1,98,740.18 1,96,221.20
Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 44 530.37 42,156.79
Other financial Habilities 15 10,203.17 14;814.42
Pravisions 16 171,16 164.74
Deferred tax liabilities 17 3,678.80 3,784.64
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 18
Outstanding dues ta micro enterprises and small
enterprises b45.63 720.84
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 6,09,526.3% 7.73,730.85
Other financial biabilities 19 4 860,77 4,224.61
Other current (fabilities 20 90,312.23 92,958, 44
Provisions 21 0.47 .50
Current tax liabilities (net) 1,356.71 11.658.08
Total 11,05,162,24 12,83,691.47
Motes to the Standalone financial statements 1-53

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalane financial statements.

As per our report of even date ForAF ENTERPR SL ITED
For § Agarwal & Co. ForAF ENTERPRI '*J_IMLTED
Chartered Accountants :q} )

£1rm Regn. o, D00BOBN

CA SN, Agarwal@l
Partner \ —
Membership Na. 012103
UDIN:

DIRECTOR

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha

abnishBIRRGTOR

Director & CFO
DIN: 03603706

Faridabad, the 29th day of May 2024 Neha Srivastava .

Company Secretary
PAM:- EETPS51304

FRN 000803N
New Delhi
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED

CIN : L1B100DL19B3PLCO16354
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 3 1st March 2024

(Amt. in 000's)

For the year ended on
31st March 2024

For the year ended on
31st March 2023

Notes
REVEMUE
Revenue from operatians 22
Other income 13
Total revenue (1)
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24
Purchase of stock in trade i5
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 26
Operating costs 27
Employee bensfits expense . 18
Finance cost 29
Depreciation expenses 3
Other expenses 30
Total expenses (Il
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-1l)
Exceptional items 31
Profit/ (loss) before tax
Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit/ (loss) after tax (lll)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
39

(1 ftams that will not be reclassified to profit or
A, loss

{{ii} Income tax relating to iterms that will not be reclassified to
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

{ii} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
Total Other Comprehensive Income (IV)

Total Comprehensive Income (ll1+1V)

Earning per equity share (EPS)
[nominal value of share Rs. 10]
Basic {in Rs.}

Diluted (in Rs.)

Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares
Weighted Average No. of Dilutive Equity Shares

Notes to the Standalone financial statements 1-53

85,013.85 2,41,847,93
9,956.68 53,768.83
$4,570.53 2,95,616,76
18,450.32 76,075.45
5,184.20 1,49,972.18
115.15 718.80
B,850.78 9,561.13
3,229.83 13,108,72
1,692.36 1,850.81
11,010.14 12,296.92
36,305.24 27,124.88
1,04,838.02 21,90,708.89
(9,867.49) 4,507.87
10,000.00 13,075.00
132,51 17,982.87
2.221.77 i6,764.20)
120,64 1898.62)
7,474,593 10,320.05
58,83 145.50
(14.81) {36.62)
44.02 108,88
2,518.95 10,428,93
0.18 0.78
0.18 0.57
1,41,13,636 1.32,39,115
1,41,13,636 1,82,39,115

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For 5 Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. O0DBOBN
CA S.M, Aga

Partner = e
Membership No. 012103

UDIN:

Faridabad, the 29th day of May 2024

ForAF ENTERP

DIRECTOR
Abhishek Singh
Director & CFO
OIN: 03603706

Neha Srivastava

Company Secretary
PAN:- EETPS5130A
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIM ; L181000L1983PLCOY 6354

Standalone Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended On 31st March 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/ (loss) before tax and after
extra- ordinary items
Adjustments for items: -
Derecognition of financial lability
Fareign exchange fluctuation loss/ (gain)
Interest on lease liability
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment
Interest paid
Interest received
Proviston for Gratuity
Depreciation on Property, plant & equipment
Operating Profit before working capital changes
Working capital adjustments: -
{Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables
{Increase)/ decrease in Inyentories
{Increase}/ decrease in Other financial assets
{Increase}/ decrease in Other assets
Increase/ (decrease) in Current Assets
Increase/ {decrease) in Trade payables
(Increase)/ decrease in Other financial Liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in Other liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale/ (Purchase) of Froperty, plant & equipment
acquisition of subsidiary
Sale/(Purchase) of Investment
Loans (given)/recovered
Interest received
Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds From lssue of equity share capital
Proceeds from 1ssue of Share Warrants
Interest paid
Net proceeds from borrowings

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net cash flow during the year (A + B+ C)
Add: Opening cash and cash equivalents
Closing cash and cash equivalents

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)

Nates to the Standaione financial statements

(Amt. in 000's)

For the year ended on
31st March 2024

For the year ended on

31st March 2023

132.51 17,982.87
(9. 276.06) (53,676.124)
1,692.36 1.707.20

143.62
65.22 90.89
11,010.14 12,296.93
3.624.17 (21,454,73)
1,30,684.56 (1,55,556.94)
446,33 24,008. 46
3,486.31 (4:615.12)
53,069.37 51,452.56
(1,66,299.67) 14,025.98
(5,667.43) {5,537.11)
(2,646,20) (61,657.22)
16,697.44 {1,59,334.12)
(8,079, 60) 295.24
8,617.84 (1,59,038,88)
157.48) (3,041.01)
(2.820.00)
6,378.07) 19,026,92
{%,255.53) 15,985.91
- 16,200.00
1.26,250, 0
¥ (143.62)
2,273.58 (4,307.54)
2,273.58 1,37,798.84
1,635.93 (5,254.12)
§5,751.75 11,005.87
7,387.68 5,751.75
3,332.39 3,389.33
4,055.29 2.3162.42
7,387.68 5.751.75

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For 5 Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. Mo, GOOBOSN

CA S5.N. Agarw;

Partner R
Membership Mo, 012103

¥ 29th day of May 2024

Fo
For AF ENTERPRISES LIMITED rAF ENTERPR

-

DIRECTOR

Abhishek Singh
Director & CFO
DIN: 03603706

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha
Managing Dingghen

PAN:- EETPS51304
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED

CIN ; L18100DL1983PLCO16354
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

1 Corporate Information:

A F ENTERDRISES LIWITED (CIN. L18900DL1983PLCO16354) was incorporated on August 18th, 1983 under the Campanies Act, 1936 with the Rkﬂ'lstrﬂllof
Compantes &F Enterprises Limiter (the Company) is engaged = the business of manatactore and trading of plastic and related producty apart from trading
in other gonds such as fabric, emetald, plasses, elc. The Company Is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) [Script code; AFEL].

2 Gignificant Aeeaunting Policies:
(a} Statement of Compliance with Ind AS:
The Standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accardance with the Indian hccounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Companies Aet, 2013, read with Aule 1 of the Companies (Indian Atcounting standardsy Rules, 2015, The Company has
uniformiy applied the accounting policies during the pericds presented.

The financlal staternents are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs. In thousands) which 15 also the functional currency of the company.

{b) Basic for preparation of financial statements:
The Standalone financial statements have been prepared in histarical cost hasis except for certain finangial nstruments: which are measured at fair
value or amortised cost at the end which is generally based on the fair value of consigeration given in exchange for goods and services, All assets and
liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Campany’s normal aperating cycle, Based on the nature of services rendered to
customers and time elapsed between deployment af resources and the realisatian in cashand cash equivalents of the conskleration for such services
rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 manths,

(c) Use of Estimates:
The preparation of Standalone financial slatements reguires the managament of the compamy Lo make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and Uabilities on the date of finanelal statsments, disclosure of contingent labilitles as at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amaounts of income and expenses during the reported period, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed o an
ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting astimates are recognized n the perlad in which the estimates are revised.

(d) Significant Management judgement in applying accounting estimates:

{1} Income taxes;
Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for Income taxes, fncluding amount expected to be paid/recovered far
upCertain Lax positions.

(11} Impattrment of investments:
The carrying value of investments is reviewed at cost annually, or mate frequently whenever, there is indication for impairment. |f the
recoveranle amount is less than the carrying ameunt, the impairment loss is accaunted for.

{iif) Provision:
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an autflow of resources
will te reguired to settie the obligation, in respect of whith a reliable sstimate can be made, These ars revicwed at gach baiance sheet date
adjusted to reflect the current best sstimates.

{iv) Recognitipn of Deferred Tax Assets:
The extent to which deferred tax assats can be recognised Is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable incame against
which the deferred tax assets can e utllized.

(&) Property, Plant and Equipment:

PPE are stated at actual cost less accumulated depreciation and net of impairment. The actual cost capitalized includes material cost, frefght,
instaltation cost, duties and taxes, eligible borrowing costs and other incidental expenses incurred during the construction/installation stage.

The Campany has chosen the cost model far recognition and this model is applied to all class of assets, After recognition as an assst, an item of PPE
15 carmed at i cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impalrment loses

Depreciable ampunt of an asset ts the cost of an asset less fts estimated residual value.

Depreciation on PPE, including assets taken on lease, other than freenold land is charged based on Written Down Value method on an estimated

useful life as prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, The useful life of { i
e e eful life of asset taken inte comsideration as per Schedule |l far the purpose

Particulars of P r

k] MaChme:F::D::lzii;l: Egquipment Useful life {in years)
Furniture & fixtures =

Vehicles -

Office Equipment :
Computers & peripharals :

ﬁgﬂlﬁ:ﬂdﬂls:rﬂpé‘rof ”::. a:::r ::: Et;II-HDmiEnt iS_‘iemmﬂm upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arfse from the
" gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of i

i ; property, plant and equipment are delermined

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 15 recognised in the statement of orofit and lass. o

Al the end of each reporting period, the Compan
. Y ¥ reviews the carrying amounts of tangible and intangibl
Indication that those assets have suffered an (mpalrment lass, ’ bl Sesets fo determine whether there 12y
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN ¢ L1B100DL1983PLCO16354
MOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T mMaRCH 2024

(f) Revenue recognition:

Reven|

ue 15 recagnized when the control over the goods or services promised in the contract are transferred to the customer, The amaunt of revenue

recognized depicts the transfer of promised goods and services to customers far an amaunt that refiscts the consideration to which the Company i
entitied Lo in exchange for Lhe goods or services,
(1) Sale of aoads:

1if)

{iit)

Revenue from sale of goods fs recognised when control over such goods have been transferred, being when the goods are delivered to the
custamers, Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or delivered to the specific lacation as the case may be, risks of lass have
heen transferred to the customers, and either the customer has accepted the goods in accordance with the sales contract or the acceptance
provisions have lapsed or the Company nas objective evidence that all criterfa for acceptance have been satisfied, Revenue from these sales is
reécognized based on the price specified in the contract,

Dividend and interest income:

Uwigend income Irom investments s recognised when the shareholders right Lo recerve such amount has been establtshed [provided that it i
probable that the eccnomic benefits will flow to the Company and the amolint of incame can be measured reliably). Interest income from a
financial asset ie recagnised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amaunt of Income can be
measured reliably.

Dther Income:
In respect af other heads of income in the Campany's accaunts the income shall be recognised on accrual basis:

(8) Foreign currency transactions: )
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional and the foreign

currency prevailing on date of transaction. Fereign currercy denominated menetary assets and labilities are restated into the functional cuitency

using

exchange rates prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet. Fxchange differences arising on monetary [tems on settlemert or restatement a5 at

reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were inftially recorded, are recognized n the Statement of Profit and Loss n the vear in
which they arise,

(h} Financial Instruments:

(i)

fii}

Financial Assets: -
Recognition and initial measirement: -
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

financial instrument and are measured initially at falr value adjusted for transaction cast.
Subsequent measurement: -

Enuity instrument and Mutual Fund: - ALl equity instrument and mutual funds within scope of IndAS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity
instrument and Mutual fund which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit & loss (FYTPLL. Far all ather eguity
imetrumants, the Company decided to clatsify them as at fair value through other camprebensive incomes (FYTOCL.

Debt Instrument: - A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amart ised cost if bath the foliowing conditions are met, The assets are heid within a
business madel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash fows, and contractual terms of the aseets given rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. After initial measurement,
such Financial Assers are subsaquently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate [EIR) method.

De- recognition of Financial Assets:-

A Financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to recetve cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has transferred
itz right to receive cash flow fram the asset,

Financial Liabilities:

Recognition and inftial measurement; -

ALl financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the deguisition of the financial labilities
Is alse adjusted. Financial labitities are classified as amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement: -

Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measired at amortised cost using the effective frterest rate mathad,

De-recognition of Financial liahilities: -

A fimancial babilityls derecognized when the abligation under the liabilityls discharged ar cancelled ae sepirse. Consequently, write back of
unsettled credit balances 15 done on closure of the cancerned project or earlier based on the previous experience of maragement and actual
tacts af each case and recognized nather aperating revenues,

Further, whn::n an existing f!qan:lal lfability is replaced by another from rhe same lender on substantially different terme, or the terms of
existing Dability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification fs treated as the de-recognition af the original lability and the
reconition of a new liability, The difference in the respactive Carrying amounts |s recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instrument: -
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount fs reported in the Batance Sheet if there s currently enforceable legal

right to offset the recognized amounts and there Is an Intention to settle on net basis, to realize the assets and settie the \iabilitips
simultaneausty.

{1} Impairment of Financial Asssts

i

1)

Equity instruments, Debt Instruments and sutual Fune: -

in accordance with [nd AS 109, the Company applies Expected Cradit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impalrment loss for
financial assets. Expected Credit Lass is the difference between all contractual cash flaws that are dus to the Company in accardance with the
contract and all the cash flaws that the Company expects to receive,

Other Financial Assets: -

The Company determines whether there has been a significant increase In the credit risk since Initial recegnition and if credit risk has
Increased significantly, impairment loss is provided,

Page 75



A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIM : L1B100DL198IPLCO16354
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 15T MARCH 2024

(1) Inventories
Inventories (other than quoted shares andsecurities) are vaiued at cost or net realisable vaiue, whichever ls lower. Cost ls determined en FIFO and

inciudes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in Gringing Inventories to thelr present location and condition. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estinated cosis necessary to make the sale.

{k) Cash & Cash equivalents
Cash ardl cash equivalents i the Balance Sheet comprise of eash at hank and on hand and shart term drpngits with an origiral maturity of three

manths or less, which are subject to an instgnificant risk of changes in value.
{1} Taxatian
Tax exgpense recognised |n Staternent of Profit and Loss comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current ta Is measurad at the amount expected
to he pafd/recovered from the tax authorities, based on estimated tax liabllity computed after taking credit for allowances and exemption In
sccordance with fncome Tax Act, 1961, Current and deferred tax are recognised fn Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate 1o items
that are recognised in other comprehenzive income or directly in equity, in which case, the incame taxes are recognised in other comprehensive.
. income-or directly in equity, respectively Advante taxes ard provislons for current [neome taxes are presented in the statement of financial positian

after off-setting advance tax paid and Incame tax provision.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitiement s recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal

incame tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes elfgible ta be recognised as an asset, the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the Statement of Prafit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement, This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement |s written down to the extent it is reasonably certain that narmal inceme tax will be paid during the
specified period.

Deferred tax is recognised an temporary differences arising between the carrying amaunt of assets and lizbilitles and the corresponding tax bases
used in computation of taxable profit under Incame Tax Acl, 1961,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the year when the assel |s realized or the lability is
cottled, based on lax rates (and Lax laws) that have been eracted. Deferred tas relating to tems recognised sutside Statement of Pralit and Loss s
recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss (elther in other comprehensive income ar in equity).

{m) Earnings per shara:
Bacic earnings/ (loss) per share are calcuiatesd by dividing the niet prafit! |loss) for the period attributable to equity sharpholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The wnighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for any banus shares fssued during the period and alsa after the Balance theet date hut hefore the date the financial statements are

approved by the Board of Directors,

Far the purpose of calculating diluted earmings! (loss) per share, the net profit! (lass) for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares utstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all patentially dilutiveequity shares.

The number of squity shares and potentlally dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares as appropriate. The dilutive potential equity shares
sre adiusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been issued at fai value, Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed canverted as of the
beginning of the perind, unless issued at a later date.

{n} Provision, Gantingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
A provision i recognisad whan the company has = present obligation as a result of past event and it {s-probabie that an outflow of reseurces will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when apprapriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting (s used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of Lime 15 recognised as a finance cost,

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liatilities are nat recegnized (0 the finatclal statements.
(o) Leases:

::TEE d:f g:rj:ngac: Affairs (“MCA") thraugh L.u.mpames (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (indian Accounting
| Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the exlsting |ease standard, ind AS 17 Leases and other

interpretations, Ind A5 116 sets out the princi mi =closu 565 poth lessees and
ples for the recognition, measurement, presentation and di f

. . 1 } losure of

lessors. It introduces a tingle, on-balance shest lease accounting model for lessees, S

The Com ; i
pany has adopted Ind AS 118, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leacss using the

modified retrg Ie-appn h where i he new standard from the haginning of the current period. Th lessee il = L
SReCt ‘DA 2l @ lessee applios the andard fro d ] i 3 ] Colcwlates Live be
= 2

AEsel 3and lease ffability a5 at the heginning of the o i
: / urrent period and recognized an ad f i
acrordingly, o lessee will nal restate tts prior period financial nformation -|.|:§|er thin :ppri;it:'f"t i perit

The Company has elected nat to apply the requirements af Ind
less and leases for which the underlying ssset is of low value
straight-line basis over the lease term, -

A15_h 1 nf- Leases ta shert term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or
e lease payments associated with these leases are recagnised as an expense on a

The Company recognises right-of -use asset representing its right to use the
T e v ; underlying asset for the lease term
el i tr:agéﬂ';ss:';;:zir:: E-:-Jtrr:ﬂm::p;mn .-__I;a:L comprise of the amount of the initial measurement acrfttrh*eml:::ﬁ:brﬁft:fc:;}izze?::; ::e
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantlilemmnd o reeslipd, i TSt I It Emmﬂt:
bt st l ng and remaving the underlying asset or restaring the underlying asset or site o which It 1s |
sequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumutated impairment losses, if any ‘I‘hes :;:ILEE:‘
I 4 -oif-

use assels & de Ciat I T skrai ¥
d pre ed sl e skran i 54
asseL, % ght line gthod fram e cammencement date aver the sharter of lease tarm ar useful life o FlgMEsoluse
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NOTES TD THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

The Company measures the lease lability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease, The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannat be readily
determined, the Company uses Incremental barrowing rate, For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease
basiz, may adept either the incremmertal burrowing rate specific (o Lthe lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as & whole, The
lease liability i subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the |ease liability, reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment ar lease madifications or to reflect revised in-
substance flxed ease payments.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed to depreciation cost for the right-of-use asset, and finance cost for interest
accrued on jease lability, in place of |ease rentals payrments,
{p) Employee Benefits
(1) Short-term Employes Benefits: -
Liabilities for shorl-term empigyee benefits thal are expected (o be settled wholly within 12 manths after the end of the period n which the
employées render the rélated service are recognized in respect of employee’s services up to Lthe end of the reparting period and are measured
at the amounts expecied Lo be paid when the llabilities are settied.
{il) Post-Employment Benefits: -

befined Contribution Plans: The Company has defined contribution pians in respect of PF B ESI which are accounted for as and when
contribution payments are made.

Defined Benefit Plans: The Company has & gratuity scheme payabie to ernployees as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
The actuarial valuation of the liability against such sum fs made at the year end.
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Uniecured), considered pocd THUNIRATI 314t March 2023
daian o body corpocete
Lesan (o malated party w00
Lessl Expeviad Credit s
e 00, 0

Page 79




& F ENTERPRISES LIWITED
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2]

23

14

(Mupa i ST unlevy s wier stated]

CEhet Curment asaets sl A
Hist March 20034 115t March 203

Al o e iy
Bariarven with revanis sutharities (11.9) 1,947,513 2,000,949
imput crechl under GST (Mote 1.2 15,6105 15,680.31
Dbt dabwieszwy o AT, T2 B 71343
[ e — Ba 13 b, 18
54,059 18 1,07, 170 60

Balares =71 revenoes autboobies soicthec s woof B 7RG Do ks el laoged Dy thee ST e Gl pamoant e seweed) comius iee on Ath Seprember 7009, The mmeer n peading for anjumestion.

Irguit it Lindder GT inclikhen o slam of B, 25481, 40 hiuimngs chslisnged by the G5T Degertment pursimnl to search conducked on bih September 207%, The matbor i panding o adjudicarion,

Tquity share capieal 1M Maich J0ia Fiad March 3023
Kae. He in 0O} M IR in 0001
Autharized shares
Erpaily shares af #i: A0 gach A1 000 SO0 = 1 G000 A Tou0000 il 10 0N D0
4,10,00,000 #,10,.000.00 A,10,00,000 A, 10, 00000
s, subsoribad and fully patd- up shares
Ecpnty wrarey of Ry, 10 aaah fully Pl ug 141,10, 630 1,471,136 1 141, 13.638 1.41,138. 36
1,49, 13 63 §,47,136:36 qdd, 1%, 838 i41, 19638
Haconcillation of number of oguity chares snd emount cotitandng
A9t march 2024 It Match 1023
Mos. IRy In_DOC') B, |he in 000}
Exuity Sharwy
A the begirers of e penod 1 N RIA DD 1AL TIRIE (FIRERTTY 1,2%, 130,34
Add: Corwarsion of Shane Warrants (Mote 12,7} LVE L 12.000.00
sl Sespat Fepiity oo st (Hots 1))
Teital cutstandng at the snd f the parind IKTNERST 1,481,136 36 1,41,13,626 1,41,136.38

Termu and rights atiached to snuity sharm

The compary Fas fssuee only ore class of squity shares Faving & par vslos of Fs. 00 paer shans . Eacty boldsr of mguity shares (0 sntitleg &2 i per dhasm The tormeed declaie and pags dheicssd 1 any, in Indias
Pupees. The dividund pregused by the Beard of Sirectors ioaulgect o appresd of the sharehalders i G ensurng Anml Gl et

I the ewent of iquidation of the company, e ebden o aguity shases will be st 1o receive remadrlng sty of e cenpaey . sfier duirbuian of i the preferencinl imouns, The- metrbution sl ba n
prnnrtion to U rumber of egifty shares held by e shosholden

Dotailn of shareholdors hetding more than 5% shares in the company

31se March 2074
e, % holding ot % holding
Tnbwn ingh K Noah aR1 LS
ArLn Kinif Eeer E §.05,000 7.05%
Arugemed Hiur deer 17 /00, 000 BAN
il Meagas Py Lid B,07 500 T BT, B0 i
WETS Corparats Senacss Prvate. |1mited B, 000 560

Page 80



A F ENTERPRIEES LLWITED
CI 1 LTRINARL {ORPLED jEat
WATES T0 THE STAMBLONE FINKHCIAL STATEMENTS PLR THE YEAR ENDED 1157 MARCH 2084

(e D004 unfem sthi e srnted)

The  Deuably of sheres fuld by E?nnhr- i Uy Company.
Promaier Rame Sharus. huld by the promsters af tha and of thaperind | Shares held by the promoters il tho end of kv paerlisd 39T March % Charge durlng the jmae
arch BHE4 nia
W of Share | % of toksl Shares. Mo of Sharms % uf tokal Shares
(A8 Moo Fricate Limited B.G7 ) | 572 507,60 3Tl .

Tisaew 15 changs in provaiens sasebclding dufing the yesr saded Maren P et ST O,

13 Tiher squity i at At
Rmanrva i Surplin it March 1074 H13 Harch 3023
(apttal Pmarva

Operary belarca
Aad i iemy) | Changes distrg-ihe yeal 1 IR NG .
¢ lmuirrg Filancs 9,16,250-00 .

Serupiy Fissum.

Tigening balapoe R EN ] T8 55F1L8
e L) Chamged cluHing e year G, 00 1 i
Cilitg hsinnee: A1 Az aiea

Reftanes] nanings
Openirg balance 2raTi a3 17,151.40 BTN
A ffiess) : Profity pam) for e year 147496 10,20,08 R
Cipring halanee 295641 17 AT

71,260,080 Y, 7509

Momey recaived syalinit share warrants
Dpenary, bilancs 1,2 605000 & 40,
i pecetosd durmg the year 1,76 2800 13,400.00
Lems: convensan of warrant Inko eguity shares i, 400 00 B, D007
Loz~ haie Farfienss 1,20,790,00
[lening Galance e 1,26, 150,08

¥aar Valiis through Othar Compreheniiva income
Rengasiremeil of Detined Beeefi| Coligation

Dpeniry balance (L8R e 1}
didel f sl | Ehammges during the pesd Inet al taxi Aa0 Hw
Clouimg Dalancs 230,73 L1 AR
Tatal Othar Equity [ RICHT 1.9, 121,30
14 llorrawings: nan-curtent s at ba it
116t parch 1035 3t March 1015
Frram Hanks
Secured loans:
Tinance ieese abligatling |Hate 14.7) VAT 300
L e gt e 1 1 ot Tt fad e frane 1 (L] 1134 bt
[T [
From ottes Pariiss
Unseoared lpant
From Lakars LA S PRI
3433007 PRI

14,1 Fennen fsazs chiigstion reflecty ear loang ' sbtamed from Lot &ank L #nd HOFC Bank LIS,

Lemital R, 1, 400,00 thousands Bas ban abtained from Avis Bank Led repayanle in &0 Fqustad Bonthy Installmenss of fs, 19.57 thousand
. 4 . nowlwemas #1 0 mdA Th thosands S beent obtained Trom HOFC Bank L0
repayalile fn 60 Zquated Menthiy wetallments of He, 2931 thousaeds. Such loane arm sacured sgrimt hypathecation of rmpee G wnhicies. )

1% Dther financial liab|lities - nan serrent As at
. Az
Jisl saich 2024 31st Marsh 3033

marsan i imbibiiy qan pa indd a5 116) 1,101, 1
JJa1, «f

td 4
ELRL] TAEIAAL
B Prevelsisen Hon carrenl
A a
L]
31gt March 2024 Yist 3013
Brovivon for gralaity
7117
7
LAY o
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[upeet i BNy s arherwise shebed)

1T Doferred Las (sisetsptisalintim irml)
A3 ot AL at
31l Ml 1024 B st dharer s
AL the-start ef the yeat 1,784,644 z.;l;ﬁ.!ﬂ
Eharge! cond fo sbafamant af peahit and laes B O 1105. 1) 304
3.678.80 a2, 7Ra L4

At the and uf year

7.9 Dstarna tax aseet & mecognized 1o 1 Sxtent 1 iz probabile that table profit will be avatable agaimt whilch the deducTine TeTporay ditteamcesamd the caity foreard of Lriaed ta credity and nuisll i losees

can be btz

47.2 The tai effeck gl significant Vering Sviterences fhas fas st (i1 Galeiid 148 Aasees amgive bt

For tho year untled on 3162 March 7014 (R in 060

Particulats
ot 131 april, Apcognized in Erant Recognrud s O] Az ab 3130 March, 1014
w3l and o
B ety plant mhil expipmant 1,68 F1EL 5] 17819
Lizes snpramt b lindas the mmes Tas Ao, 10
Provisien For Gratdity 41,50 113 20 [N
(Batwrs B2 13 | FRE
Teta | 3,784.64 | [ 48| 1
Particulars | For the year endad on 3 ial March 1023 (B [
[ Raut 16t April, | Mwcognized 1o prodls Retognized in G0 | 8% 118t March, 2081
2032 and iom
Firsrerty, pard and wijuipmet 2.804.93 ¥ 2
| Lomsen carriesd dnrward undef thie Income Taa A, real ]
Provision For fipsiaity 36,84 1.1 1643 415
Oubary. | [TER]] 619
Total 3,B45.41 | EUH 61 36 62 | 3,784, b4 ]
18 Troe e s L E
o st march 1024 Atat March 1023
Olaladieg s £n micre enipTpenes and = Al esmomes Mote 28 1) 5,41 Tan, e
Dutatanding s of ereditsr cther thin micro enteriaes and swal exterpr 41, s bk e
€,10,172 01 7,7 4T0 68
Particnilars [ from gue date of pryment 2 an s March 2014
L= than 1 Year - ¥ean | 3:3 Yearn i than 3 Yeers Tirtal
il BEMT [ER: . a5, A
(i) Ot 31 AF359: 5,088 AL 1005 97 &, 50 0 i &;09 53838
{ii] Doinputeil s 1 MSMAE -
T Drisputerd chues - athors =
18| Trmde payalels shiw o paprnni s tha agmmg schids|s o1 hetnw:-
Particuian utstanding fram due data of paeyment & on Fiat March 2013
Laan than | Toar 12 Yaury 1-3 Yeary Weats than 2 Yeary Total
[ WAL Ta0.84 = T8
Vil Ot 1,00 W74 TR [ 4,15, 17545 7,73, 4l BS
[ s Qe | MG :
iy} Tiapwitee] diem | cthers
T2 dtelitional disciore pelariyg o micio, smadl and medium emerprises covered untes Micro. Sl and Mediar Citempres Developrent | WSWED) act, 200s:
ek it Harsh 3234 st March HIEE
fa| Principal wmount remainimg urpesd et the snd of fe ymar w5 Al -84
1) int et dis on Prncijal armaunt remadning unpaie ot the enid of 1 vear
ic) Interest paid i termn of section W of the MAMET Az, 2004 daring the pear
(€] iborest acened s remaining npiale af the end of e year
|#] Iivtevest remmiivyg slie and payable refered b i section 2 of the MEMED AT, 2008
TR TH 84
19 O fimancial labibies current
i A5 AL
Current matiibes of france igase chlbgetces | efer pots 4] =PRI HIAD, Ivak March 1023
Lmmns Laabattity 1as sar 60 A% 1985 &1,h) .08
#7735 3 689 55
- 4,034 A1
0 Other current Uabilviie
X
As
Al peceioes T s — il dos 113t March 2023
TOS Payubile ke e
TES. puyaldy e 2900 1
IRF, 257 ahd LWE paymbim 19654 194,04
Dby Fapanass: oy ihles R ML20
30 :1Mj ; o]
L 91,958 44
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HITTES T0 THE STANDALOHE FHANCIAL STATEMENTS POR THE YEAR ENDED 35T MaRCH 2024

11 Fravisiohe curment
Far Gty

#1 fowenus from aperation

Hale ol gooch:

Praary Foucey

Lrwernli arwd Dthine St
Sple ot abmren B vecuritles

I3 Oahir incoma

Fnrmpgn excharge flictoation gain
Hacsant mceves
Hisoelangous income

14 Comt uf matertals consumed

Opeming viock sl raw matsriily
el gruns basirs g the gear
Lissal choning stock of rdw materiais

24 Parchase of itech R trase

Emarnld ard 3tk G
Shanes  secunitien

% Changes in MVERTOMNES

Dpenig badaii of s20ch In tnde
Ciming balance of stock in Lrace
Ehanges in investharies of stocs m trade

17 Dporating Costy

wagen

ah Wik Expenbis
Finl B e euperee
Commimabley

Lailirg B i

0 Emplinees binafits espanss

Tirwcior Remuneration (Hote 33}
Salarins and allowanoes
Employer cantributisn to FF
Erplower contFIbLLon Lo ERIC
Gratuity Enparie (Hale 33|
Staff ‘Weltare

&3 Al
11k Mmarch LLEES
o ar
T.47

For tha year srded on
113k March T024

05 Y
A AR

e
B%,013.83

Far the year ended on
d1st Mareh 1012

A BT

BN

14,471,800}

W, 450,31

Fir tha yaar snded on
1168 Maieh 1014
R

3,184 30

13 33,

Far tha yea anded o
J1st parch 101
KL

1.04%.19

ai, s

1,25

a5.72

180,21

1,219.43

[Rupeen k1 0003 uniFe: obherwise stuted]

st
31at March 2013

£.50

.50

For thie year onded on
31uk Mareh 2013

4 A3EET
AT e

1,47, 847,91

Far the year shded o
st March 2013

5167024
AT
43,04

53,7680

For the year endad on
39ut March 2023

i CRRELT
o=y
|14, B, 7

Th,O75 44

For tho year ended an
2 1st March I023

1.48.9772.'0

V48,677 10

For {hw yudr ondid of
31at March 2011

1,E677.29
{958,497

EELE ]

Far tha yasr snded an
315t March 3633

7,080, 34
20,04
108

1,601, 25

47,70

W, 581,11

Far the year anded on
31l Mareh 2029

¥ 200,00
§:377.78
104.01
(ER]
LK
12880

13,108 71
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dRupees in 00 univss etherwlss ot

2% Finence cox For the year enided an Fror Vhe year snded un
31s8 March 2014 21w March 2073
bl o [ease ikl ity oo oerInd A% 1rE) 107238 1,707.0
i o blnka - K-
hemst to atiien 14,8
1.6%1.36 1,850 &1
A0 Other sxpenses For thee puar endesd an Fur the year ended on
1t Marvh 2014 Biat March 2023
AfvertTsEment o penes 1K,211,56 s 14
Pyt ta SERTINEY @it | ot 170 . fLea]
Hank charges 9,83 29.0%
Halonce wrmten ot i 120,58
Cortifieabion rurges 1100 513
Cormeyarce expensin. 145 m
Dismtion 1,00
Electricity and maintanancs sapsnien - i 6L
Expacted Dol Lo 7,590
Fstrel uxpenses ¥ T
Flimrgs - 140
Fremgnt & cariage BT 1188
Iitmsmat drd et i 14470 19775
Lahrair welafars il 1170
Lrgal & professcnal charges whBE R TTE.6F
itvcrilarnn eapame LR EAR ]
memirership & regiimtion == B iy nBR TR
Gflcw wapemey AEERT] LU
Printing B vintiorery B L 2
Bant, rele G taves [ILERi]
Aepair & mmntensree of planf & machinery 1,050 1.016.5
Apcruitminl = kpemses 4.0
HTA nxperum (R 117,38
RO eipemnes 1,488,574
secunty charges Bel: 93 1.3
Fervice Charge .oa 51,83
Sitting Peey . Pia,00
Software Aenewal L] a5
Stamp Papers E-]
Tulaphors B ntermel sxpeims 1.9 LI
Teiider Feag To.ek .08
Tour tE Travels B e 48,47
wrhueln runnmg & maintenants BETR 14054
Ok e Experseiinail a4 L
6,108, 1% FYNITE ]
31 Enceptional Tiams Far L yisar anded e Fur the year snsdei on
315t March 2038 31t March 2033
AmvErtisEment supovees (Kot 1 L) 13,07%,00
Capsial Aecemi fram FOSL | obe 11 1) 1000830
—
10, 000.00 13,075 00

310 Eagwiil |l iy af Re 14 Lakiis s Nelated bi the compemation received for the o) fid iiment of inderwriticg comevittments retatad g the wilbserigiion of i rights s, The upderwriting agreermsnt
refquated the undersnten b wiscribe to any umubscrbed sares I Pae nights saee, However, as the crdsrwriters falled o Fulfitl thi abligation, te amount recesaed erves @ 8 comeemistion for T mon-
Tulfillment :
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN L8100, 1 983PLCO 1654
HOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 35T MARCH 2024

(Ruzess in Q0D uniess clierwise srated)

32 Thie books af accounts af the Camaany are maintatted in Corporate Office situatad an Pl Mo, §, Soctor-S moim Mathura Ried, Ballabearh Faridahad and wele cneched
taerent by the anditees of the Company|

33 felat=c Farties: -
A3 per (A5 24, the disclomures of transictiany with the related Parties are ghven beyow;

1l Listof reated parties where contiolexists and ales mlated parties with wham transaclum have taken place and relEtioniin:
ial Subsidiary associate Entity Ui [T Solutions Private Limtsd 1

fhi Kay Menagomint Personne) Mr. Santosh Kumge Kushwaha (Managing Directar)
Mr. Abhistisk Singh |Dliectar & CFob

|Me. Memish Ko Bratul shi senta iDdresto) |

Mr. Yikram Sharma i Fast Directorn

Mr. Sahil drorg [Pas Cirecrar
e 0 Afman: [Pase Lor

M Prerna Seth |Paw Dérecrar)

Y5, Payal Sachdeva iCatipany Serretary |
ME Mehia Srivistave iCampany Secretany|
(] Enbee prirs it or syniTicantly Il ereed by The Hery Manaenwine Perainnes ar el |Mds RDS Qo ate Serviies Privete Llited
Fetatives Wils SWP Infowlution LLP
Mis RMS Mosouto Privete Limieg _{

I MJE Cangider Bane

BT 1 -
| | Traraactions during the year ended
Trsikamtien with Mitine SR T [ 313t March 7024] 1t March 2073

|&] H i Iy -
Aunik [T Ssivitiens Private Limrteg |Loans Givan | il | Hil
|Loan Recoveras | HiL | Hil
Ihi it Pt sonne;
s, Sahl, aroca [Lomns recelved Hl | il
Loans repaid hil T Hil
Remuneration (Sweat Equity Sharet N3 Hil
Ma Shagun Limani L& recetosg LT il
Loans repatd il il
Remuneration (Swent Equity Sares Hil Hij
M. abhshel Singh Remuneration 800,00 54673
Redmbursament of Experies 1,079,480 185,20
Acvance agairst salary
Agvance against salary recovered - 500,01
Mr. Santesh Kursar Kushwaha Paymend Lewards Bemuneration payatle 7,200,080 Wit
Reslminirsemient of Expeine G200, 75 & B9, 84
Remmararing - 720000
Loana fecetond 2,334.50
Payerent towirds exmenses payable 3,446,500 NiL
Ma, Payal Sachoeva Remuneratizn - 410,00
Wi Kohs Srivastavi Remuneration T3 Hil
fe1 Pelatlves of fey Manggeent Penanpel - Nar
Enterneets i which ey Magagemerst Persnnvel and Reatives are baying sanificant e cas -~ o
M3 ROS Corporate Services Private Limited Loans given 13,503.50 a-ﬁl_?
Loans recoverad #3450 & :T
Sake of goods i) ﬁ'::'m
Servines receved -‘-“w:“"" o
Isziie of Share Warrants AL
Mis Cardey Dons :ﬁﬂ m“ 5, UB7.00
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN : L1E100DLT9B3PLCO1 4154

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2024

{c) Balance with the Related Parties:-

{Rupees in 000 unless athierwise stated)

T
Transaction with J Nature of Transaction | Datarice as ot
: [ st March 2024 315t March 2023
g Subsidiary Company;
Alnik [T Solutians Private Limited [Investment i Equity Sharcs | 5.577.00 | 5.527.00
{b) Key Management Perscanel; - ]
Ms. Shagun Ajmant Borrowing 78,00 |
M, Abhishes Singh Remuneration Fayable 49.98 4898
Expentes Payable = 140.53
Advance agalnst salary il
Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushwaha | Remuneration Pavahle 7,400.00
Expenses Payable 3,446,724
Loans & Advances - nlL]
Ms. Payal Sachdeva Remuneration Payabie Hil 2.00
M. Heha Srivastava | Remuneration Payable T.13 Hil
ic) Relatives of Key Managament Parsonnel - Hong _‘
[CT] m@wﬂwﬂﬂel and Relatives are having stanificant frifiuences: -
Mfs ROS Corporate Services Private Limited Loans & Advances | 5,778.07 | Nil
Trade Recelvable 1,606.07
 Trade Payables 13.00
M5 SNP infosolutions LLP Advance received fram custamer | 195.00 | 195,00
Mis Consider Done Loans & Advances | Hil | il

34 Segment Information:

The Campany has fdentified five reportable segments vz, shares and securities, rou

nature of product. and worvices and the differing risk and returns an such products a

accounting policy of the company with following additianal policies tor segment rep

11} Revenue and expenseshave been identified to a segment on the basls

enterprise a5 @ whole and are not allncable

i) Segment Assets and Segment | iabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in raspactive
reasanable basis hove been disclosed as “Un-allocabie”,

Ifii} Segment Informatiog:

orting: -
of retatien 1o o

gl emerald, fabric, Rlasses and plastic molded
nd services, The accounting polictes ad

Compaonantsafter taking into account the
onted for sagment reporting are in line with the

perating activities of the segment. Revenue and axpenses that refates to
t0a segment on & reasonable basis have heen disciosed as "Un-allocatle”

seaments. Assets and lizbilitles that cannet be allocated toa Segimentt on

Particulars 315t March 2024 I I 315t March 2023
Segment Reyenue:
Lfithas =
rtsh 8¢ 4,453.94 1,57.012.10
e - 84,835.83
[Plastic molded compenents sg _;.::;; 635,
Lnallaeable 94.570.51 | 2.41.847,93
jlml Revenue 5
Segment Results
{Profit/ loss before interest and taxes) Ty Fi9.000
Trading in shares 15032 7,019.9%
Rough. e 1,220.01 1,064.36
Plastic molded companents % Ia.?l_}m i1, 850811
Less: Interest ET) 12,447.50
aan! Other Un-allocable expenditure (net) ‘“':';:_: 1:' 17.982.87
Total Profit Before Taxes
gnt 843,00 I,‘I'i“ﬂ?‘lm:
ares B Securities 1.2,073.37 |
5 1,30,167,00
Romh Emerald 3, 86650
LU 1,17,142.00
|Glasses 2,15.736 86 TR,
Flashc indided tosyienents | 2l 13,83,691.47 |
Un-allocabie | 11,05, 162.24 |
Total
Segment liabilities 1,025,00
nt liabilitie: 119.00 T 5 805.00
Shares & Securities 2,04,359:10 “10.105.00
fough Emerald 1,833.07 1,67,008.00
Fabrics 1.57,123.96 .58, 490.91
plastic molded compenents 4ot 5,48,333,91
Un-allocable i 7,6%,205.70 | :
Tatal
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN © L1B10GCL1983PLEN14 354

MOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2024

{Rupees fn 000 unless otherwise stated)

[Sapital emplayed

Shares & Securities [ Tee00 | (967.00)
| Rough Emerald (B3, 285.84) 10, 266,00
Fabrics 3,033.44 1,20,062.00
Plastic molded compaonents 58,612.90 SD'1 34.00
Un-ailocable 3.60,792.04 1,5?:“1 .-56
Totai 3,39,876,54 3,37,357.56

(iv] Secondary Segment infiarma tion: -

The Company does ot have secandary segment division in respect of reporable SEgments.

Financlal instruments and its falr value measurement
5

_ As at March 31, 2024] As at March 31, 2023
amartised oost
il Trade reveivahle 9.41,401.13 |
. i 10,62 BU%.
1 Cash and cash Equivalents 7.387.68 rﬁ: ?‘51.?;3
i} Loa 30,281.68 | 13,503 &0
o | 8.527,00 | | 9,537.00
Investmant in ather Entiy [ 2.820.00 | |
Total I %,91,417.49 | [ 11,01,991.98 |
Financial labfiitins | As at March
w 31, 2024 at March 31, 2023
A As at March 31, 2023
T Booowings 44,530,37 41 256,79
tit)_Dther financial liahiiities 15,063,594 19,0390 |
FE[,]_’_ﬁd! and other payables B10.073.02 7.76.471.69
Total ! 6,69,756,31 8,37, 767.91
The fair values of cuerent debtors, bank balances, current creditors and current borrawings are

maturtles of these assees and liabilities.,

36| Particulars

aisumed 16 approximate thelr carmyl

fg amounts due to the shart-term

Far the year ended an

For the year ended on

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Expenditure in forefen currency Ml il
Earning! Income in foreign CUTTERDY Ml Hit

Break. up of payments made ta statutory auditors (inciuding tages) are ditclosed as uider

Particulars

For the year ended on

For the year ended on

315t March 2024 31st March 2023
In respact of statutory audit | 120.00 1 ;gg
It respect of certification >
Tor';'!iL e [ 120,00 157.50 |
34
i ded For the year ended an
| Particulars For the year ended on

315t March 2023

Comitingent Liabilities not provided for; -

315t March 2024/
T

Search and Siezure conducted under CGST/SGST Act: - . ) | Unascertainatle Unascertainable
On &th September 2019, a search has been conducted under prowision of CGST/SGAT Act, 2017

wherein the appropriate authorites hsd selred certain documents and freeze the bank accounts ;f

the company. The bank accounts were subsequently unfreerd through stay order 01'. High Court

Punjab and Haryana wide Interim order dated 10 Febrary 2020, The matter s pending for

el 1.916.26 1,916.26

= tax Appeal: -
::E:T-:.l ml::nr af addition u/s &8 of the Income tax Act, 1967 for &Y, 2017- 18 yvide order dated 28th

September 2022 passed by CIT |Appealsi for a stm of Rs. 46.39 Lakhs. The Company has MEd:n
Appeal against such arder with Homble Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Deihi, which is pending
Tor disposal.
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

(Rurress fn 000’5 unless otherwise stafed)

39 Nocessary disclasires as per requirements of indian accounting Standard

19 on *Emplayes HBenefits' are made as fallows: -
In respect of ‘Gratuity Scheme's -

Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet: -

Particulars As at As at]
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Present Valug of the cbligation 171,639 165,24
Fair Value of Plan sssets Hil it
Furided Status [Surplus/ (Deficit )] {271.64) [185.24)
Unrecognised Past Sorvice Cost Ml il
Asset/(liabllity) recognised in Balance Sheet 171,64 165,24
ifiy Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss:
Particulars For the year ended on Far the year ended on
31st March 2024 315t March 2033
Current Service Cost 52 83 74,598
Interest Cost 1239 15,94
Expecied Return on Plan Asset Hil il
Past service cost Ml sl
Expense to be recognized in profit and loss 55,22 90.89
[ Cther Comprehensive {income)/ expenses (Reameasurermisnt )
Particulars For the year ended on Far the yoar ended an
I 31at March 2024 315t March 2023
Cumulative unrecognized acturial (zain}/lass opening, B/7 48,71 103.21
Actuarial (gain}fioss- Obligation 5883 145,50
Actuarial {gain)/loss- from changes in financial assumptions - =1
Actuarial (#ain)/loss - Plan assets :
Total Acturial {gsin)/ioss 58.81 | 145.50
Cumulative Total Actuarfal (gain)/ loss_C/F 307,54 | 248.71

vy

Frinclpal sctuarial sssumptions:

wMethnd of Valuatfon

Prodiect ndt ¢ redly Methnd Project init Credit Mathod
Discounting Rate 7.50% Per Annum 7.50% Pur Annum
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% Per Annum 5.00% Per Annum
Mortatity LALM F012-14 LALM 201214
| Withdrawal Rate | 5,004 Per Annum 5.00% Per Annum
40 Ratio Analysis and its components
5.Mo. |Particulars ! 313t March 2074 31st March 2023 %change from March 31, 2023
2:1
Marrh 31 30324
1 Current ratin Likio 1,33 L
1 Debt- Equity Ratlo 0.13 g1 fin
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1,50 5.69 | ::’;‘i
4 AEtuim on Equity Ratio {0 %) 0,73 1560 -37‘10'1
s Inventary Turnover Ratin 3.4 ﬁ;; 5639
[ Trade Recelvabls Turnover Ratio g?j T 3 60,990
7 Trade Payable Tumover Ratio = D TE5.AT%
B |Met Capital Turnover Ratio T FIT T -31.78%
5 Het Profit Ratio (in %) T 063N 240,50
10 Return an Capital Employed (in ) T 0.00%| 0.0
4] Returm on Investment {in K1

40,1 Reasons for variance of mare than 25% in above ratios :-

Reasons of variance of more than 25%

5 Mo, || Partisular ;:T:;z Duo to decreasa in the earnings available.

| {OWtR Service Caverage T Rioree e to increase in rofit after tax is proportionately more than the increase i total equity.|
2 |Return an Egaity Ratio {in %) Decrezse i the revenue from operation for the year.
3 Ivinkoey, TUrncher Ratio Lecreays Due o Decrease in the revenue from oparation for the year,
3 |Trade Recelvable Tumover Ratio |Decrease D 10 Dacesst T the revenue from Speratin for the year,
4 Trade Payaple Turnaver Ratia Hecrsse Oue to Decrease in revenue from aperations, |
3 ::‘: C""‘"ﬁ:;"t:‘:“;::; s ;:E;:::E Due to decrease in Prafit Befare Interest |, Tax and Exceptional [tems|
3 Lrm on : k
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN : L1B100D01983PLED16354

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 115T MARCH 2024

(Rupees in G00s unfess atherwlze stated)

40,2 Companents of Ratio

March 375t 2024
s pation | March 37st 2023 ]
e — ::r:erutnr | Denominater Mumerater|  Doneminatar Wumerator|  Denominator
u 4] |Cu|‘l‘el'lt Liabitities 10,18.162.41 7,08, 702,20 11,91,850,74 B.85,113.32
i Debt- Equity Ratio  |Borrowings Total E i
quity|Ecuity Share capital-Gther 44,618.00 1,39,876 54
St 9,876, 42.491.,85 3,37,357.56
| DOelt Service Earnings available for debt | Finance (<=8
) principle repayment of 2,835,
Coverage Ratio SErvice {Net profit befare long term barrowings duﬂarf; the * Py REHES e R
exceptional items & tax perod/year
2xpense = depreclation &
amortization + Finance
cost - Nan cash coerating
2 = 7 1, thiar actipcronsasy |
I on ty Net prafit after fax- Average Total Equity [{Opesing Equity T l
Ratio {in %) Exceptional {tems Share capital « Crpening Othar eqmuw . i R TR .
Closing Equity Share Capital « Closing
Qther Equity)/2]
§ tnventory Tumover |Revenue from sales of Aval
rage faventory [(opening batance - A5,011.85
i ; £ sl ihpiing € 15,517.59 7,41,847.03 27,764,99
[ Trade Receivable  |Revenue from operations  [Avera
g trade recefvable [(Opening R5.013.85 1,02, 108,
Turnaver Ratio batance « closing balance)i2) o b e i
T |Trade Payable Revenue from apsrations | Avara ( [
ge trade pavables [|Dpening 85.013.85 6,93,321.85 L.41,847.93 7
Temover Ratio Ibalanca « closing balanee) /2] i ol EHTRED
E Het. Capital Risvenue from uperations Working capital (Current asset current
B5,013.85 311, 460,21 3,471,847, i .
Turnower Ratio labilities) i e
L] lHEt Profit Ratio (In | Net prf‘rﬁt oiter Lax- Revenie from operations 1.474.93 B5,013.85 10,320,054 1.41,847 .93
%) Excentional ftems
e Return on Capral. | Profit Before Interest, Tax | Total Equity « Total Debts (Including (B 17513 1 05,162, 24 B, 758.68 12.63,691.47
Employed (in %) & Excentional ftem preference share lability)
11 |Return on Interest Income on fised  |Current investments - Nan current . 1Z,347.00 * IR0
Investment (in %) | deposits + Profit on sale of |investments « Fixed deposits with bank
imvestments + Incoma of
Investmant - impairment
an vilue of fnvestrment

47 Financial risk management
The Company has sxpesurs to the follawing risks arsing fram financlal instruments:
11 Market risk
() Interest rate rsk;
(1] Credit nsk and ;
(1i1) Ligundity msk

Risk management framework .
The {um:::v’t activities expase It to o variety of financial risks, including market risk . The Company's primary rish management focus {s Lo minimize potential adverse

4 BCEESES dent! alyse the
sffects of rsks on e financial performance. The Company's rish management assessment policies and pr - 1a':'ra esmt:bigl;u:u“::!:mmlf:n:l:ja::a::md
risks faced by the Company, 10 56t appropriate risk limits end controls, 2nd to monitor such risks and CUH:!PH-‘!I‘ICE with the same. i o e
thesn policies and processes are reviewed regulaly to reflect changes (n market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors omm

are respansibla for sversesing these policies and processes.

1) Market sk —
L:ﬂrkir: sk l: the risk of changes n the markst prices on account of foréign exchange rates, interest rates and Commodity prices, which shall affect the Comparrys

¥ Fe within table
ar the value of its holdings of Its financial instrements . The ohiective af market risk monagement |& to manage and cantral rnurhgr rish ouperin arcan

parameters, while optimising the returms

(4] Interest rate risk ) . _—
l::mt rate riskfs the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of o financial instrument will fluctuate because aof changes in market Interest rates, Thi

banks and others.
Company's exposure ta market risk for changes fn interest rates relates to borrowings from banks an

interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments - i s
Anrucmhly possible change of 100 basis points in nterest rates at the reparting date would have increased J (decreased) equity and prafit or by

i BSIUMEs
shown below, Thic analysis assumas that all other vanables, in particular, mre_ﬂin currency cm.'hanuelmtﬁ. T!.'::I:I‘Iﬂ:x::ﬂlﬁl- This calculation alse
that the ehange ocours at the balance sheet date and has been calcutated based on risk exposures nutstanding as at tha A
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MNOTES TO'THE STAMDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2074

(Rupees fn 000 unless otherwise stated;

‘ For the y&ir ended ITst March | Ter the year ended YIS Rareh
L0724 2043
Particulars it 100 Bp 100 bp
| bp incraace Trareaes 100 bp decroase
Ot account of Variable Rate on Lokhs and advinces ] 302,82 1302427 2139.04 173804}
On account of Variable Rate an karrowings 1445301 445,30 [422.57) | 412.57
et impact on profitability {142.45) | 142.49 {183.53} | 183.53

(1) Sredit risk

Credit risk 15 the riskoof financial loss to the: company i a custemner or caunterparty to o Unancial instrement falls 1o meel ity contractual ohligations and ariees principally
from: the campany's recelvables from customer. The Company estabdishes an allovance for doubtful debts, impairement snd sipected credil s that replesents || estimaie
ait allowance for doubtiul debis, impairment and expeeted cradit lass that representy |1s exlimate on epectsd crodit Loss.

A Trade receivables

The: Compaty's exposurs to credit riskis influsnced matnly by the individual characteristics of sach customer, The demagraphics of the cudtomar | including the default risk
of the industry hms an influeace on credit neh assesament, Credit rish Mmittged through credit approvals Jestablishing eredit limits and continously monitoring the
creditwor thiness of customers to which the. Company grants credit terms in the anrmial courss of business,

However, the company doesnol expect any losses fram non-pesformance by these counter-parties apart fram those alevady given in finaacials, and does not have any

sgmficant concentration of exjposires,

B. Cash and cash equivaients

The: Compary holds cash and cash squivalents with creditwartly banks of 2 7387, 68 thousands: The credik wartdiliess of suih banks 15 avaluated by the managsment on an

- gaing busls and {5 considered to be good.

iiif) Ligulaity risk

Liguidity riak i3 the risk that, the Camgany will noi be able t@ meet its financtal obligations as they become due. The Company s been Lakirg meawures 19 @nsuie that the
Compainy's cash Mow fram business barrowing is sufficient e meet the cash teguirements for the Comgany's aperatians. Tiw Company NG 1 lguidity teeds by
maetoning (orocasted cash inflows and oueflows i day to day business, Ligquidity needs are monitar endonvarious time bands, on a dny to day and week tn week basis, st
well as on the besis of a olling 30 day projections. Met cash reguirements are compared to avallable warking capital faciiities in order to debsemine head eam or any
shartfalls. Presently company's absjective s to maineain suf ficient cash o ment (s eperationn Hguidity requmements.,

The below table summaries the maturity profile of the Company's financlal liabitity

’ Particulars Contractual cayh outliow 3
& at March 31,7094 l Surying amaumt Total | fvesrorless | 1.2 venr 28 vears o g
w I 1,41,307.57 1.41,307.52 | 171,18 141,136 36] 000 0.00
el €L Habily I 3.476.80 | 167880 | 1,676.860 0.00 0,00 0,00
| Particulars Contractual cash outflow
&s at March 31,2023 Carrying amaunt Takal 1 year or less 1= year 2-5 years * 5 years
Other firancial latlities 19,009.03 19,01%.01 | 4,224,861 14 B14.47 0,00 0.00
Other current liabilites 92,958 44 | 93,956.44 | 92,958.44 o.00 0.00 0.00

42 The Company did et have any lang- term contracts including derivative cantracts for which thers were any material foreseeable Lo,

43 The Company hay complied with number of Layers of subsidisries as prescribed under Section
Layers) Migles, 2017

1B5(1) of the Compantes Act read with Comparies (Restriction on number of

44 The Company doss not have ransactions with the comparies strack off undes section 748 of Companies 4ct 7013,
45 The Company does not have amy Benami property, whers anmy procesding fas been imbated or pending against the Comparry for solding any Benwmi property,
46 The Company does not hove any charges o sabisfisc thon which & yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutsey pecod.

47 Thet Compary has not been declared wilful defaidter by any bank o¢ financial insbitution ar government o any govermment authoriy,

48 The Company has not any mch tansaction which 13 not recorded i the books of accounts thet has bees surrendesed or disciosed s income during the yenr in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 [sich as, seprch or survey o sy other relevant provisions of the freome Tae Act, 1981},

49 There lny been no delay (0 tarsfernmy amewits, requined 1 be tarderred, to the investor Education and Protection Fand by the Comparmy

50 The fimancial statements vere approved for swe by the Board of Directors on 2¥th day of May, 2024

51 Previous yoear's figures have baen re-armnged or re- grouped whareer consider recessany.
52 Figures have been rounded off to the nearsst thousands of rupess.
53 Flgures in brachets indicate negative (4| Migures.

Segned for e purpese af (dentlfleation
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Independent Auditor's Report

To
The members of

AF ENTERPRISES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AF ENTERPRISES
LIMITED (“hereinafier referred to as the "Company™) and its subsidiary (“company and its subsidiary
together referred to as group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 3 1st March 2024, the
consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the vear then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
tfinancial statements except for the possible effects of the matier described in the "Basis for Qualified
Opinion"section of vur reporigive the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the group as at
31"March, 2024, and the consolidated net profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated
changes in equity and its consolidated cash {lows for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We have not audited the financial starements of Mis, Awynik [T, Solutions Privare Limited (“the
subsidiary ") included in the consolidated financial resuits of the group whose financial statements reflect
tofal asseis af Re. 23737 lakhs as at Mareh 31, 2024, total revenue of Rs. 1,17 lakhs and net cash outflow
of Rs. 0.31 lakhs during the vear ended on that date,

Ax referved to in Note 6 of the consolidared financial results, the Independent Auditors of Més Aunik IT
Private Limited ("the subsidiary”) have given a Disclaimer of Opinion on the separate financial
statements of Mrs Aunik 1T Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 vide their report dated
May (04, 2024. The basis for Disclaimer of Opinion described by the Independent Auditors of Mis Aunik
IT Privare Limited is as wmcer:

") The company has shown a sum of Rs. 23,43.08.599 as Trade Receivable for which we have not
received any third- party confirmation. During the course of our audit, we have not found sufficient audi
evidence to prove the reliability of these recoveries These trade receivables are outstanding for more
than 2 years, Also, the Company has not made any provision against these long outstanding.

i) The company has shown a sum of Re, 22,98 21,646/~ as Trade Pavable to Morpheus Care Limited,
for which we have not received any thivd-party confirmation, During the course of our audit we have not
Jound sufficient audit evidence to prove the reliability of his claim and company s ability to pay. These
irade pavables are outstanding for more than two vears. Further upon our verification from MCA portal
we came (o know that the company. Morpheus Care Limited, is not filing their veturns on MCA portal
Jrom March 2020 onwards

i) During the vear under consideration the company has taken unsecured loan of Rs 2,12,08, 604/~ from
Mr. Sourabh Koolwal, divector of the company, i violation of section 73(2) of The Companiés Act,
204 3. The said loan was given by the divector out of borrowed fimd which is violation of section 73(2)
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of The Campanies Act, 2013

v} As on March 2024, the losses of the company accumulate to Rs 2.45 Crores and its net worth is fully
eroded. The company has also taken unsecured loans from director of the company. The Companies
current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 1.73 crores. As per the management the company is
still a going concern entity because it is in process of identifying new plans to improve the performance
of the company. During the course of our audit we came to know that the company has already
surrendered its GST registration during the year. In absence of conclusive evidence about management
plan for improving the financial position of the company and considering large liabilities outstanding as
on balance sheet date we have doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
However the company has prepared its financial statements on a going concern basis. The financial
statemenis do not adequately disclose this matter..

vi The matters as stafed in para 1 to 4 of Basis af Disclaimer of opinion give rise to the material
uncertainties ay regard possible marerial adjustments that may require to be made (o the values of
recorded assets and liabilities. These matters indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern

Considering the ubove, we are unable to determine and comment on the extent of adjustments, if any,
that may be required to these Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31"March 2024 on
account of inter- alia, lack of sufficient audit evidences, doubt about the subsidiary's ability to continue
ay going concern, and non- compliances with various provisions gf Companies Act, 2013.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company and its subsidiary in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described hereunder
to be key audit matters to be communicated in our report

As on 31.03.2024 the company has a liability of Rs 50 lakhs toward rent payable in respect
of a leased property attached by ED due to proceeding against property owner i.e. M/S
Horizon Global Limited for more than 6 months and TDS on the same also not been
deducted other than that our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the
above matter

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information,
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures (v Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not
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express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Managemeni and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiary in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its Subsidiary are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries respectively, and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Company. as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the company and
its subsidiary are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company and of its Subsidiary to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or its Subsidiary
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the company and its Subsidiary are responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Company and its Subsidiary respectively.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

FRN 000808

Naw Delhi
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(ii) Obtain an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company and its Subsidiary to
continue as a going concern.If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if' such disclosures are inadequate, to meodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company or its Subsidiary to cease to continue as a going concern,

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statement, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decision of reasonable knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statement may be influenced.

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and, (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the consolidated financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonable be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relevant
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, or when in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give inthe Annexure A a statement

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable on the
consolidated financial statements.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. Except for the matters described in the “Basis of Qualified Opinion " .?r__’c!ir:ln of this report, we
have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
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iii.

knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, and the consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

Exeept for the matters described in the “Basis of Qualified Opinion" section of this report, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company and its
subsidiary as on 31*March, 2024 taken on record by the board of directors of the company and
on the basis of report issued by the auditors of subsidiary, none of the directors of the Company
and its Subsidiary is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in Annexure-B. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over finaneial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and on the basis of report
issued by the statutory auditors of the subsidiary and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated financial statements have disclosed the impact, it any of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the group in its consolidated financial
statements (Note no. 30).

The group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by group.

(a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(s), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(s), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the

*
O3\ FRN 00D30SN J.es
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understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that caused us to believe that the
representations referred to in (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

(d) No dividend has been declared or paid by the company during the period covered by
this report in pursuant to Section 123 of the Companies Act 2013

() Based on our examination which included test checks and information given to us,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which
did not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares, hence we are unable to
comment on audit trail feature of the said software

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FEN: 000808N

-

S.N. Agarwal
(Partner)
M. No. : 012103

Place: MNew Delhi
Date: 29.05.2024

UDIN: 24012103BKDHNV5060
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“"Annexure A" to the Independent Audi 4
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the Consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024)

We have qualified the information required in sub- clauses (iii), (iv), (vii), (ix) of para 3 of
the Companies Auditor Report Order (CARQO), 2020 in our report of separate financial
statements of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2024 as included in the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion and According to the information and explanations given to us, the auditors
of subsidiary i.e. M/s Aunik IT Solutions Private Limited, have qualified the information
required in sub- clauses (ii)(a), (v) and (xix) of para 3 of the Companies Auditor Report
Order (CARO), 2020 In their report of separate standalone financial statements of the
subsidiary as Included In the consolidated financial statements

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: DOO808N

Cho, -

S.N. Agarwal
Place: New Delhi (Partner)
Date: 29.05.2024 M. No. : 012103

UDIN: 240127103BKDHNV5060
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of the independent auditor’s report of even date on
the Consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended March
31, 2024.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act").

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of A F Enterprises

Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the "Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of
Internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequaf:y_ of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 1nc|uded
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements , whether due to fraud or

error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Consolidated financial statements .

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an at.:lequate internal Enanclzi
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial contml:s ove;—l ng:tc:m
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based or?dthg m';:tla-.r:aes(;ential
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company confsl erln?[ Asili
components of internal control stated in the Guidap-::e Note on Audit of In e::rnnats C:Hm“a.
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accoun ar

For 5. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 0D0808N

e ¢
S.N. Agarwal
Partner)
Place: New Delhi M.{Nn. - 012103
Date: 29.05.2024

UDIN: 24012103BKDHNV5060

CA

0o0gos
Hew Delhi
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ASSETS

Hon- current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment
Goodwill

Financial assets
Loans
Dther non current assets

Current Assets
Inventories
Financial asséts
Trade receivables
Cash and cash eguivalents
Loans
Other current assets
Total

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Man Controlling Interest

Liabilities
Mon- current labilities
Firancial lHabilities
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax Liabllities (nel)

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables

A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN : L18100DL1983PLLO16354

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

(Amt. in 000's)

Notes

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

"
12

13
14
15
16

17

Qutstanding dues to micra enterprises and

small enterprises

Qutstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Other current labilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)
Total

Notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For 5 Agarwal & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. DODBOBN

CA 5.N. Agarwal R
Partner /E'lz' —
Membership No. 012103

LUDIN:

Faridabad, the 29th day of May 2024

16

19
20

1-50

41,548.55
1,820.00
16,566,598

30,281,867
1,56B.22
15,314.42

11,75,709,74
7.531.73

54,059.18

13,46,800.89

1,41,136.36
1,92,219.45
{907.80)

66,407.98
10,612.53
171.97
940,49

645,63

8.39,348.04
4,451,47
90,411.24
Q.47
1,356.71

11,46,800,89

-0.00

For AF ENTERPRISES LIMITED

< A_g,":L
DIRECTOR

Abhishek Singh
Director & CFQ
DIN: 034603706

53,004.33

16,566.98

23,503.60
6,156,52

15,810.86

12,97,118.22
5,%26.87
400.00
1,07,947.17

15,26,434.57

1,41,136.36
1,90,369.98
1868.58)

55,125.16
14,814.42
164,74
1,281.39

70,84

10,05,592.41
4,224 61
1,02.214.65
0.50
11,4658.09

15,16,434.57

-0.00

Company Secretary
PAN:- EETP551304

DIRECTOR
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN = L187100DL1983PLCO16354

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2014

(Amt. in 000's)

For the year ended on
31st Mareh 2024 .

For the year ended on
31st March 2023

Notes

REVENUE

Revenue from operations 21

Other income 1
Total revenue (1)
EXPEMWSES

Cost of materials consumed 23

Purchase of stock in trade 24

Changes in inventories of stock in trade 25

Operating costs 26

Employee benefits expense 7

Finance cost 28

Depreciation expenses 3

Other expenses 29
Total expenses (Il)
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (|-11)
Exceptional items 30
Profit/ {loss) before tax

Tax expense

Current tax
MAT tax
Deferred tax 16.2

Profit/ {loss) after tax (Ill)

STHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A, (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

{11} Ineorne tax relating o items that will not be reclassified
B. (1) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(1) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
Tatal Other Comprehensive Income (V)

Total Comprehensive Income (Ill+1V)

Net Profit attributable to: -
a) Owners of the parent
b} Mon controlling interest

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to: -
a) Dwners of the parent
b) Non controlling Interest

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to: -
a) Owners of the parent
b) Non controlling interest
Earning per equity share (EPS)
[rominal value of share Rs. 10]
Basic (in Rs.)
Diluted (in Rs, )

Weighted Average No, of Equity Shares
Welghted Average No. of Dilutive Equity Shares

Notes Lo the financiat statements 1-50

85.013.85
10,073.87

95,087.72

38,450.32
5,184.20
165.23
8,850.78
3.179.83
1,835.26
1,112.83
37,064.31

1,05,892.78

{10,805.08)
10,000.00

(805.08)
2,211.75

355,71

1,771.40

58.83
(14.81)

44.02

1,816.42

1,805.63
(33.23

44,02

1,84%.65
133.23)

0.13
0.13

1,41,13,636.00
1,41,13,636.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finaneial statements. Fgr A E ENTERPRISE S UM*TED

As per our report of even date

For 5 Agarwal i Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. Mo. 0
il

CA SN, Agarwal
Partner

Membership No, 012103
UDIN:

Abhishek Singh
Director & CFO
DIN: 03603706

2,41,867.93
54,179.45

2,97,147.38

76,075.45
1,49,972.18
71B.80
9,561.13
19.,051.20
2,611,356
12,544.99
30,921.64

3,01,456.95

(4,309.57)
13,075.00

8,765.43
(6,764.20)

1,403.35

14,126.28

145,50
(36.62)

14,235.16

14,671.15
(344.87)

108.88

14,780.03
(344.87)

1.07
0.77

2,39,115
2,39,115

Company Secretary
PAN:- EETPS51304

Neha Srivadtava.
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CiN : L18100DL1983PLCO16354

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2024

For the year ended on

31st March 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/ iloss) before tax and after [957.32)
extra- ardinary ftems +
Adjustments for ilems: - =

Derecognition of financlal lability .
Foretgn exchange fluctuation loss/ (gain) (9, 276.06)

Loss/Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment
Interest on iease Lahility 1,692.36
Interest paid 142,90
Imerest paid on-advance tax (4.08)
Cepreciation on Property, plant B equipment 11,112.83
Provision for gratuity 65.22
Operating Profit befare working capital changes 2,775.85
Working capital adjustments: -
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 1,22,841.07
{Increase)/ decrease in |nventories G68.62
(Increase)/ decrease in Othar financial assets "
(Increase)/ decrease in Other assets 4,304.90
Increase/ (decrease) In Current Assets 52,558.24
Intrease/ (decrease) in Trade payables (1,66,074.00)
Increase/ (decrease) in other current Liabilities 19,156.20)
({Increase)/ decrease in Other finarcial Liabilities {5,667.43)
Increase/ (decrease) in Other liabilities {2,322.54)
Cash generated from operations (71.50)
Direct taxes paid (208.02)
Met cash flow from operating activities (&) (279.52)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Amt. in 000's)

For the year ended on
31st March 2023

8.765.44

153,676.24

1,707.20
204,37
9.63
12,545.00

(419.73)

(30,164.33)

(1,17,799.95)
74,008.46

(5.086.89)
51,074.89
(17,158.08)
8,345.41

1,920.67
(68,737.32)

11.33,597.14)
210.18

(1,53,386.96)

Sale/ [Purchase) of Property, piant & equipment (57.46) {3.041.01)

Sale/ (Purchase) of Investment (2.820.00)

Loans (given)/ recovered (6,378.07) 19,044,593
Net cash flaw from investing activities (B) {9.255.53) 16,003.92
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds From |ssue of eguity Share Capital 16,200.00

Proceeds From lssue of Share Warrents 1,26,250.00

Interest paid (142.90) (904.37)

Met proceeds fram horrowings 11,282.82 19,950.65)
Net cash flow fram financing activities (C) 11,139.94 1,31,594.99
Nel cash flow durlng the year (A + B +C) 1,604 84 (5,788.05}
Add: Opening cash and cash equivalents 5,926.87 11,714.592
Closing cash and cash equivalents 7,631.73 5,926.87
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 3.13

Balances with banks 1n current accounts af?ngz 3:?;2‘::
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 7,531.73 5,;;15:3?
The accampanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemeants.
As pel ul reporl of even date
For S Agarwal & Co. For AF ENTERPRISES LIMITED ForAF ENTERP ES LIMIT
Chartered Accountants ED
Firm Regn. No. D00BOBN A

TOR

S N DIRECTOR
CAS.N. Agarwal Abhishek Singh
Partner Diractor i CFO
Membership Ma. 012103 DIN: 03603706

UDIN:

Campany Secrétary
PAN:- EETPSS1304

o~ N
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
Civ : L181000L1983PLCO16354
HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

1 Corporate Information:
A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED (€N L181000L1983PLC016354) was incorporated on August 18th, 1983 under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Reglstrar af
Companies AF Entarprises Limited {the Company) is engaged in the business of manufacture and trading of plastic and relased prodicts apart Trom
trading in ather goods such as fabric, emerald, glasses, etc. The Company is listed an Bombay Stock Exchange (BSF) [Seript code: AFEL],

2 Signiffcant Accounting Policles:

{a) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS:
The Conselidated financial statements have boen prepared in accofdance with the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Companiss Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, The Company has uniformly
2polied the accounting palicles dliring the periods presented,
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the functional currency aof the company,

(b) Basls for preparation of financial statements:
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in historical cost basts except far certain financial instruments which are measured at
fair value or amortised cost at the end which 1z generally based on the falr value of consideration given In exchange for goods and services, All
agsets and iabiiities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle. Based o the nature of
services. rendered to customers and time elapsed between deployment of resources and the realisation in cashand cash equivalents of the
consideration for such services rendered, the Campany has considerad an operating cycle of 12 manths,

€} Principles of Consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements comprise of the holding company A F Enterprises Limited and all ity subsidisries and associates in
acrordance with the reguirements of Ind AS 110- Corsolidated Financlal Statements and ind AS 78 - (avestment in Associates and Joint Venturss
(1o the extent applicable). The consalidated financial statements hawe been prepared on the following bases; -

(f} The financial statemants of the halding Company and its subsidiaries are combined an o line by line basis by adding together like items of
assets, Uabilities, equity, Incomes, expenses and cash fiows, after fully eliminating Intra-group balances and intra-group transactions,

(1] Profits or losses resulting from intra-groun Transactions that are recognized in assets, such as Inventory and Property. Plant and Eguipment.
are eiiminated in full,

(i} Goodwlll represents the difference between the Company's share in the net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of acquisition at each peint of
time of making the investment In the subsidiaries.

(i) The financial statements of the associate/ subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reparting date as of the
Company i.e. vear ended March 31, 2024,

v} The Comsolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using untform accounting policies for ke transactions and other events fn
similar circumstances,

Iwl) The carrying amount of the parent's Investment in each subsidiary & offset (eliminated) agalnst the parent’s portion of equity in each
subsidiary,

(vil] The difference belween the proceeds from disposal of Investment in subsidiarfes and the carrying amount af Its assets less liabilities as on
the date of disposal is recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit & loss being the profit or loss on disposal of investment in
subsicary,

{vill) Investment in Adsociates and Joint Ventures has been accounted under the Equity Method as per Ind AS 28 - investments in Assocfates and
Jmint Ventures,

11z] The Group accounts for ts share of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associates and faint ventures, after eliminating unreslized
profits and lesses resulting from transactions between the Group and |ts associates and joint ventures.

{2} Mon-Controfiing interest's share of profit ! loss of eonsetidated subsidiarfes for the year |s identifled and adjusted against the income of the
Group in arder to arrive at the net incame attributable to sharsholders of the Company,

(%) Mon-Controllireg Interest’s share of net assels of consalidated subsidiaries 15 identified and presented in the Cansalidated Balance Sheet.

Changes in a parcnt’s pwnership (ntenest after control is pbtained that do not result i & change 1n control of the subsidiary are accounted for as
equity Transactions. The carrying amount af the nan-contralling Interest 45 adjusted ta reflect the change In the nom- controlling interest's
awnership interest In the subsidiary. Any.difference between the amoeunt by which the nan-cantrolling interest &s adjusted and. the falr value of
the consideration paid ar recefved fs recognized In equity and attributer 1o the parent's equity holders

{d) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of cansalidated financial statements requires the management of the company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reparted] amounts of assets and Habiiities on the date of financial statements. disclosure of contingent liabllitfes as at the date of the financial
statemants, and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reported perfod, Estimates and underlying assumptions are revicwed on
an ongaing basis, Revisions te accounting estimates are recognized In the period n which the estimates are revised

{e) Significant Management judgement In applying accounting estimates:
(I} Income £axes:

Significant judgments are involved fn getermining the provisian for ncame taxes, Including amount expected to be paid/recovered for
uncertain tax positions.

(i) Impairment of investments:
The carrying value of investmants it raviewed at cast ansuslly, of more frequently whenever, there is Indication for fmpatrment. If the
recoverabie amount {s less thar the carrying amaunt, the impalrment loss is accounted for

(1) Provision:
Provisions are recognized whien the company has a present obligation as a result of past avenst and it is probable that an outflow of resaurces
Wikl be required to settle the abligation, in respect of which a relfable estimate can Se'made. These are reviewed at each balance sheat
date agiusted to reflect the current biest estimates,
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{f) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Properties, Plant & Equipment are stated at actual cost less accumulated depraciation and net af Impatrment, if any. The actual cost capitatized

Includes material cost, freight, installation cost, dutfes and taxes, eilgible borrowing costs and other incidental expenses incurred during the
constrisction fnstaliation stage.

The Company has chosen the cast model for recognition and this model f= apptled Lo a3l clasn of assets. After recognition as an asset, an item of
PPE is carried al its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumuiated impairment losses,
Depreciable amount of an asset is the cost of an asset less its estimated rasidual value,

Depreciatian an Property, Plant and Equipment, including assets taken on lease, other than freehold land is charged based on written down
mathad on an estimated uselul life s prescribied In Schedule 1| (o tie Companies ack, 2013,

Particulars of Property, Plant & Equipment Useful fife (In years)
Plant & Machinery [Tools & Dies) 15

Furmiture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 3

Qffice Equipment 3

Computsr 3

An item of Property, Plant-and Equipment s’ derecognized upan disposal or when no future cconomic beneflts are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gatn ar loss arising on the disposal or retirerent of an ftem af property, plant and equipment are determined as 2
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

AL the.end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying ameunts of tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffared an impairment lass.

ig) Revenue recognition:

Revenus fs recognized when the contral aver the goods or sefvices promisad In the contract are transferred fo the customer, The amount of

revenue recognized depicts the transfer of promised gonds and services to custamers for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

Company Is entitied to in exchange for the goods of services.

11} Sale of goods:

Revenue fram sale of woods 7 récoginised when contiol ové) such goods have been transfened, belng when the goods are delivered to the
cuslamers, Delivery accurs when the products have been shipped or detivered to the specific location as the case may be, risks of loss have
been transferred 1o the customers, and efther the customer has accapted the goods in accordance with the sales contract ar the acceptance
provisions have lapsed or the Company has abjective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satfsfied, Revenue from these sales
i= recogmzed based on the price specified in the contract.

{1y Dividend and interpst income;
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the sharehalders’ right 16 receive such amaunt has been established {provided that it
15 probable that the sconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the amaunt of income can be measured reliably), Interest income from
a financial asset 6 recognlsed when it 15 prabable that the sconomle benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured refiably,

[t) Other inenme:
In respect af other heads of Incame in the Company’s accounts the fncome shall be riecogrised on accrual basts,

{h) Foreign currency transactions:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by apolying the exchinge rate betwesan the functianal and the fareign
wurrency prevailing on date of transaction. Forelgn curmency dencminated monetary assets and Gabilities are restated into the functional currency
using exchange rates prevailing on the date of Salance Shest. Exchange differences arising on monetary (tems on settlement ar restatement as at
reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were Initially recorded, are recogrized in the Statement of Profit and Loss fn the year
i whiich they arisa.

{l) Financial Instruments;
('} Financial Assets: -
Recognition and Initial measurement: -
Financtal assets and financial Habilities are Initlally recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial fnstrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction cast,
Subsenquent measurement: -
Equity instrument and Mutual Fund: - All equity tnstrument and mutial funds within scope of IndAS 109 are measured at fair valise. Equity
Instrument and Mutual fund which are held far trading are classified as at fair value through profit & loss {FYTPRL). For all other eguity
instruments, the Company decided to classify them as at fair valie thraugh other comprehensive Income (FNTOE1)

Debt instrument: - & ‘debt Instrument’ 5 measured at the amartised cost if both the lallowing conditions are met. The assets are held
within a busingss model whose objective fs to hold assets for collecting contractual cash Tows, and contractual terms of the astels given
Tise on specified dates to cash flows thal are salely payments of i incipal and nterest on the principal amount cutstanding. After imitisl
meatirement, such Financial Assets are subsequently measured at amoctised cost using the effective (nterest rate (EIR) method.

Le- recognition af Financisl Assets:-
A financial asset |s primarily de-recogniséd when the rights to recefve cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has
transferied its right to recelve cath flow from the asser

fii} Fi ia] Liakilities: -

All financial labilities are recognised initlally at fair value and transaction cost that fs attributable to the acquisitlon of the financial
Iiabilities is also adjusted. Financlal (fabilities are classified as amortised cost.

Subseguent measurement: -
Subsequent to [nitfal recognition, these Habilfties are measured at amortised cost ueing the effective interest rate method

ﬂ’
&%
B
&

oo
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De-recognition of Financial liabilities: -
& financial liabilityls derecognized when the chtigation under the Liability 1s discharged or cancelied or explires. Cansequently, wiite back of

unzettled credit balances is done an closure of the concerned project or earifer based an the previous axperienca of management and actual
facts of each case and recognized In ather oparating Feverues.

Further, when an existing financial liability i replaced by another from the same lender an substantially different terms, or the terms of
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchangs or modification s freated as the de-recognition of tha original Hability and
the recognition of & new lfabllity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 1s recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass,

difsetting of financial instrument. -
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount s reported in the Balance Sheet if there 15 currently enforceable

legal right to offset the recognized amounts and thers ic an Intantion ke eattle an net hasis, ta realize the assets and settle the Habilities
slmililtaneousiy.

{1y Impairment of Financial Assets

(1) Equilty Instruments, Debt Instruments and Mutual Fund: -
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company apolles Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model far measurement and recognition of impairment loss
for financial assets. Expected Credit Loss 45 the difference hetween all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,

(it} Other Finangial Assets: -
The Compaiy determines wiether thers has been a slenificant Increase in the credit risk since Initial recognition and If credit dsk has
increased significantly, impalrmant loss is provided,

{k} Inventories

Inventories {other than quoted shares andsecurities) are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever fe |awer. Cost I determined on FIFG and
inctudes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing inventaries to thelr present location and condition, Met realisable valus s the
estimated satling prics in the ardinary course of business, less estimaled costs of campletion and the estimated cotts necessary to make the sale.

(I} Cash & Cash equivalents

Cash and cath equivalents In th Balance Sheel comprise of cash at bank and on hand and shart term deposits with an ariginal maturity of three
manths or less, which are subject o an inslgnificant risk of changes in value,

{m) Taxation
Tax expense recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss comprises of current tax and deferred tax, Current tax 1t measured at the ameunt
eapected Lo be paidirecovered from the tax authorities, based on estimated tax linbility computed after taking credit for allowances and
exemption {m accofdance with Income Tax Act, 1961, Current and deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to tems that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the income taxes are recognised In other
comprehensive incame or directly in equity, respectively. Advance taxes and prowisions for current income taxes are presented In the statement of
financial pasition after off-setting advance tax paid and incame tax orovision.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) eredit entitiement is recognived as an asset only wher and 1o the extent there fs convinclng evidence that normal
fmcome tax will be paid during the specified pericd. in the year in which MAT credit becames eligihle 1o be recognised as an assel, the said asset
i Created by way of 8 credft 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This i reviewed at each talance shest
date and the carmylng amount of MAT credit entitiement fs wrillen down to the extent it is reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid
during the specified period.

Deferred Lax Is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carfying amount of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases
used In computation of taxable profit under Incame Tax Act, 1981,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected ta apply In the year when the asset s realized ar the liability Is
settled, based on Lax rates (and tax laws) that have been enactod, Deferred tax relating Lo ftems recognised outside Statement of Profic and Loss
Is recognised outside Siatement of Profit and Loss (either in ather comprehensive incame or n equity),

{n) Earnings per share:
Rasic eamnings! {lnss) per share are caloulated by dividing the net profit ! (Ioss) far the perind artrbitahie ta prity sharehnldars fy this wetghted
average number of equity shares ourstanding during the pericd. The welghted average number af equity shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for any banus shares fssued during the period and also after the RBalance Sheat date but befare the date the consolidated financial
statemnents are approved by the Board of Directors,
For the purpase of calculating diluted eamings/ (loss) per share, the net profit/ (loss) for the period attributabie Lo equity sharehoiders and the
welghted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted far the effects of all patentially dilutive equity shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equily shares are adjusted for bonus shares as appropriate. The dilutive potential eguity
shares are adjusted for the procseds receivable, had the shares been issued at fair value: Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted
as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at & later date

(o) Pravision, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assets;
A provision 16 recognised when the campany has & pesent abligation as a result of past event and it s probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made, If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted UsIng & current pre<tax rate that feflects, when aporapriate, the risks specific to the liability. Wnen diseaunting is used,
the increase in the pravision due to the passage of time is recsgnised as 2 finance cost.
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities are nat recognized in the consolidated financiat statements,

(P} Leases:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA™| through Companles (Indien Accounting Standards) amendment Rules. 2019 and Companias |Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has netified (nd AS 116 Leases which reslaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases and
ather interpretations, Ind 45 114 sats out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for bath [essess
and lessors, [t fntroduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for (essees.
The Company has adopted |nd AS 116, effective annual reporting perind beginning April 1, 7019 and applied the standard to fte feases using the
fied ratrospective approach whereby o lessce applies the new standard fram the beginning of the current period. The |essee calculates the
and lease liability as at the beginning of the current perfod and recognized an adjustment fn equity at the beginning of the current
ordingly, a lessee will not restate its priar period Hnancial information under this apprazch,
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The Company has elected not to apply the requiremients of Ind A5 116 Leases to short tarm leases of all assets that have = lease term of 12 months
or less and leases for which the underlying assel (s of low value. The iease payments associated with these ieases are recognised as an expense on
A stralght-line basis over the lease torm,

The Company recognfses Hght-of-Use asset representing Iis right to use the underlying asset far the lease tarm at the lease commencement date.
The cost of the rightofiuse asset measured at inceptfon shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the cammencement date less any lease fncentives received, plus any Initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lesses in dismantling and removing the Lnderlying assel or restoring the underlying asset or site on which
it 1s located. The: right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated Impairment lasses, if
any. The rlghil-of-use assers 1§ depreciatad uslag the stralghe-line method from the commencement date wer Lhe shortér of lease term o useful
Hfe of right-of-use assot,

The Company measures the lease (iability at the prasent valie of the feasc payments that are not pald at the commercemant date of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if tel rate can be readily détermined. |f that rate cannot be
reaclily determined, the Company uses Incremental barrswing rate. Far ieases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, ona lease by
lease basis, may adapt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the fncramental borrewing rate for the portfalio as a whale,
The lease Ifability s subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount 1o reflect interest on Lhe lease Liability, reducing the carrving
amount, (o reflect the tsase payments made and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflsct any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

On application af Ind AS 118, the nature of expenses has changed to depreciation cost for the right-of-use aseet; and finance cost far interest
atcrued o feaze Hability in olace ol lease renlaly payments.

() Employes Benefits

{1} short-teom Emplovee Benefits: -
Liahilitles far short-temm empiovee benefits that are sxpected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end af the periad n which
the emplayees render the related service are recognized in respect of emploves's services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be pald when the Habilities are settied,

(1) Post-tmplovment Benefits: -
Defined Contribution Plans: The Company has defined contribution plans In respect of PF & E51 which are accounted for as and when
cantribution payments are made,
Defined Benefit Plans: The Company has & gratuity scheme payable ta employees as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
The actuartal valuation of the tability against such sum is made at the vear end,
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3 Proporty, plant and equipment

Earryipn gropent:

Bullding Premises (BOL duset)
Plant & Mashinary

Firnitire B Fdures

Vehicles

Dffice Eqsipmant.

Camaniters i peripharals
Tetal

Coat of Deemed Cost :
Bakance as at 315 March 2022

additsans during the year

On ucyuisitson of wbsidiary
Saln! diponal during the year
Balance as ab 315t March 2023
Adrditiens during this year

On: acquisithon of subsidiary
Salet disposal durlng the year
Balance as &t 31st March 2074

Accumulated Depreciation ;
Balance as ol 315t March 2022
Charge for the year

DOn acquishiion of subsidlany
Audjustmend fod Sale) disposzal
Balance as at 115t March 2023
Charge for thie year

Qn acouisition of subsilary
Aziatmant for Sales disposal
Balwnce s at 315t March 2024

Estrylog amount -
Balance as.at Y1st Mareh 3071
Salance as at 315t March J0Ea

A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED

CIN : L1871 00DL1983P LO0 6354

HETES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS FOS THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARTH 7004

3.1 Al the ahove property, plant & equipement sre ownod By the compary,

4 Loant | non-current

Considorod good - ursacuresd
Laans (at amartissd coat)
Dthees
Reinted Parties

Less: Expected Credlt (o

1in As DO
AR at An st
It March 1S 1zt March 2073
13,002,197 16,097, 14
I6,290,43 32,102.08
1, 17393 1.583.97
54514 FLTAr]
17152 236,24
10274 21778
41,948.95 53,004.33

Bullding Premises  Computers & otor Car Furniturs & office Flant & Total

ROU hsset peripherais fixtires Equipment Machinary

11,794, 87 191183 3,640,555 473581 821,79 G 041,64 Bo,948.29
L1978 B4 447 40 4178 I.470.%8 15.206,32
0.7 485 0,55
33,954 42 1,977.34 4,107,895 4 738 &1 B60.72 65,512, 42 1,12,14% .04
- : 5748 57,46
33,994,632 1,977,324 4,107.95 4,735.84 918 18 &6, 512,60 1,12,206 52
11,472.08 1,486,923 3,001 45 1,508.59 445,68 27,582.0% 46,595 75
4,384 40 T 131,38 55525 .8 £,418.54 12,544.9%
15,857 48 1,75% 56 3,340.81 3,151 84 614 4B 34,410.57 59, 144,74
4,471,958 115.04 A2T.00 410,04 ikl 5311.62 11,112.83
20,289 43 1,874 60 3 56281 3,561,88 Tak. 6 40,272,19 70,257,587
T804 14 157,78 a7, 14 1,581 97 k1 e | 32,1060 5004 37
13.685.19 102874 545 12 11739 1782 24,250.43 41, 48,54
As at As at
315t March 2024 __ 315t March 2023
I0,TEY.4T 11,418, 80
14,4981
741151
10,201,87 23,500, 40

4.1 aduitional disclodure in respect of non current loans and advances:-

| As ak 3ist March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
et | Amount of loan | Percontage of | Amount of loan Percentage of the
outstanding the total loan | outstanding totzl lsan and
and advances | advances
Ligra and advaicens graniec 1o oromoters, difeceors, KMPs zna ather related parties that ETH Mi il Nl
are-|a) repaysble an demard; or (5| witheur specifying any termy or period of repayment, |
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN | L1B10RDL198I7LC016354
ROTESTO THE CONSOLIZATED FINANC AL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAA ENDED 1157 MARCH 2004

{1 Re T007)
5 Other non current ssasts Az at Asat
313% March 2024 315t March 2023
Sacurity deposit 155822 4,054, 52
Aulvaine Laxaind TAE oel of provisien) . LD
—_—
2,568.22 6,156.52
& Inventories At ks Bt
31t March 2024 115t March 2021
atock ip frade
Quevted Equity Instiumments |at Falr Valus Throiigh Profit & Loss FVTPL| B3, 34 Q58 4%
- Slnglasses
- Others 0,70
R Materinls
+ Plastic moulgee contponents
Fipighed goods -
Blastic produrts 14 471,00 4B 7T
15,514 4% 15,810, 84
7 Trade receivables: current As at Az at
It March 2024 31st March 2023
Corsidared good - unsecurad 11,75, 709.72 12.97, 118,22
—
11,75,709.72 11,97 118,22
T:1 Trade recelvables sgeing schedule
Particutars ) DOutstan from due d.mm'pqmen:;_fan J1at March 2074
Less than & & months - 1 12 ymars ] 2-3 yoars More than 3 Total
) ) months year | yRare
fi} fUnsisputed Trage Roceivables | Cansidersd guad 3729148 1,.031.17 | 45,090.02 2374781 §.40,108.95 19,75, 700,72
(1) [Undispiied Trade Receivabies @ Considered doubtfiil . - - -
1) |Aispoted Trade Seceivables ; Cons:dered good | =
|| [Disputed Trads Receivablas ; Considerad doustful | | 5
7.1 Trade recetvables ageing schedule
Particatars Outstanding from due data of payment as on 313t March 2023
Lessthan & | & manthe - 1 1-2 yeara 2-3 years More than 3 | Total
manths yoar years
- Undtipuien Traoe Recebvabivs  Consivereg guud (I T 2 M) 33973 | 488 TAL 13 AT 2 | E.0% T 630 VLY idEl
(1} |undisputed Trede Receivabies - Considersd doubtiur -
ffiny |Disputed Trade Receivables ;| Condldered goon
1h| | Dlspided Trace Receivables | Canvidered daobrful
|
B Cash and cash eguivalents As at AS at
315t March 2024 A5t March 2023
Cashan hatd fas cerifies 13350 3.507.03
Balances with banks in curmnt accaunts 4,190, b4 141954
7531.73 5,916.67
¥ Loana: current Asat As at
315t March 2024 315t March 20123
binseoured, consigered good
Lozn o body corparate 400,00
Adivance o others -
Lomn ta related party
Less. Expixcted Credit Logs -
= 400, 00
9.1 asitional diselosre b rogpact of Turmnt oam gnd ssvancet-.
[ Az at 312t March 2024 s st 313t March 2023
!
of
Amount of |aan PeTcuntage Amaunt of loan Ferpentage of the
s the total loan neil total loan and
o and advances pd Bdvances
Loang and advances granted ta pramaotens, dicsctar, Kees and other related parties that il Ml [ Wil
are () repayable on demand: ar (b1 withaut specifying any terme or period of TEpayInent
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN @ L18100DL1983PLC0O 14354
HOTEETO THE CONSOLIBATEDR FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED-315T MARCH 20024

10 Diheer current assets A5 at

n

Jist March 2024

Ingit credit of GST

18,413,80
Balances with ravenie suthortis: 1,947.53
Othar acvances 16,47h 72
Prepald expemses 14,13

54,059.18

(tn s TO0°)
Az at

315k March 1023

35,662,22
1,927.58
88,711,141
i, G

1,07, 94718
—

9.9, pamance wilh ievishue authoriiies tnclydes a sum of R T, 702.32 thewsands chnilanged by the S§T Beparimert pUrssant 1o warch canducted on &th Seplembe 2019,

Theematter 1s peading for adjudication

10.2 Input eredit wider GST includes & sen of Rs. 78, 487,90 thewsands challanged by the GET Dapartinent pusuznt to search conducted on 660 Septamber 2619, Tha

matter e pending for adiudlcation,

Equity share capital 31at March 2024 S15t March 2023
Mo, [Ra, T D007 Has. (R= §n 'DOG')
Authorized shares
Equity shares of By 10 each 4,10,00.000 4,10,000.00 4.18,00.000 4,160,000 00
4,16,00,000  4,10,000,00 4,16, 00,000 4,1G,000.00
tssued, subscribed and fully paid- up shares
Equity shares of Ry, 10 each fully Pzid up 141,131,836 441,136,368 1,31,13.415 1,81,136,36
1,41,13,636 1,44,136.38 1,41,13,636 1,41,136.36
11.1 Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amaunt outstanding
st March 2024 315t March 1023
Moe. (Ra. i 000} Mas. (Ra. in '004")
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the parion 1,41, 13,638 1,419,136 1,29.12,836 1,29,138.34
Agd:Tonvermon af Shase Warrants [Nata 11,2} - 12,100,000 12,000, 00
Add: Sweat Equity shares tsued (Note 11.5) - . -
Total outstanding at the erd of the period’ 1p41,13,636 7,49, 136,36  1,41,13,p38 1,47, 136,36

11.2 The company has Issued 40,00,000 Shars WaITants ab an ldsue price af f5: 16 earh a4 per terms apprsd by shuretalders in pastal oallot held on Sthjuy 2021,
Every share wirtant him &n eption of convertion inte one equity shire of Rs. 10 ach 16 be eurcised by the warranthtider within 18 manths of the issus by the
Lompary. Sut of 40.00.000 share wirrants, 28,00,000 share warrants were converted into the squity shares during the wear ended Jist March 2622 and temaining

12,009,000 shie v ants are convarted 10te equity shares m the Hlancial year ended 3490 March 2023,

11.3 Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The compony has dssusd anly ore classof 2quily sharés having & par velue of Rs. 10 per share. Each hoider of deully thares 5 2ntitled (o vate par shae. The
company Seclaies and pays dividend I any, i Indian Bupesd. The dividend proposed Sy the Board of [Mrectors fs dibject to approval of the shareholdars inthe

nuLing annual General Meeting

T the event of Friidetion of t-campay, the hoidors of sguity shares will b entitied 55 recein teratming amety of the compaiy, after divtributian of all the

proferential amaunt. The distribution will be In geapartion 5o the Tumbe: of sty mies held by the sharebaldemm.

11.4 Details of sharsholders hoiding mare than 5% shares in the company :

31a March 2024 34wt March 2023
Hea. % holding Mos. % helding
Risnan Sinah Kesr - ¥,48,483 0718
Aruva Baur Kesy 095,000 T.058
Anuprzet. Kaue Kewsr 12,0000 .50
AME Mosgquio Byt Lid 8,07 600 LRl BT &00 Lot
RIS Carporate Servicon Private Limits £,00,000 LT

42 per recarde, registars and other declargtians raceived from shasshatders regarding Sencficial interest, the above Siarehniding fepreseats otk lopal and

Diereficial ownership ar shares.

11,5 Detalls of shares heid by promoters in the Company

Promoter Hame As at 315t March 2024 As at 315t March 2023 | % Change during
Wo of Shares | % of total Shares | Maof Shares | W of tocal the year
| i Shares
B Moaguito Private Limited 8,07, 600 | L i 8,07 500 STl 0. 0,

Therz iy o change in promoters sharehodding daring ths year sacen March 117674 ard sarch 20,7023
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN | LEBT000LT S8IFLCO1 6354
HOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANE (AL STATEMENTS FORL THE YEAR ENBEE 1157 Mg 2074

12 Other equity

Capitsl Reserve
TOoenine balanca
Add ffless) | Changes during Lhe pear
Clessng balnnge

kY P
Qpening balance
Adtilemn) ; On Ings of equity shares
Cleningy bl ance

Retained earnings :
Doeanirg balince
Ak |less i 0 Frofitd [os for the vear
Lasg: #re- acquisition pradits of the subsidiary
Lhoming el noe

WRFTAR
Opening balance
Add; racelved during the year
Less: conversion of warrant inte equity shares
Loge:- Share Farfiatsd
Closing balance

Fair Yalue through Gthver Comprehensve [reome
Remeasuremeo: of Dofined Berefit Obligatian
Ooening balance

Aaofiiess) | Changss daring the year inel of @)
Claslny bailance

Total Orhar Equity

13 Borrowirgs (other than debt securities)

Froir Banks
Sacurad loany
Fimance tease ohligations (Noto 13,1

Liss: curvent partion traasfer to sthor fnancial (abilites |note T8)
Fram athey Partien

Lnse e lomra:
From Otkers

14 Other financial liabitithes - non current

Lerase Lisbility (as per Ind A5 114)

15 Provision -Men current

¥or Gratuity

16 Deferred tax assets/Uiabllithes (net)

At Lk sturt of the year

{Eharge)/ cracit to statement of profit and ios and reseevies B surplis
At the £nd of year

18,1 Deferred tas asiet is mongnizes to tho outant it fs probable that Laseble

forward af unised tax cradits and uniisad tax lasies con be utilized.

i Ry 0007}

AS At As at
3ist March 2024

1t L1500

1,26,250.00

9230384 3T,713.64

- ,400.0C
42,3164 42 31184

P Piabrs] 1TATOTY

1 800 Ak 3,549 44
PEEEFT R 623

1,28,250.00 B AD0LED

" 1,24,250.00

3,400.00

1,28,250.60

1,26, 250:00

188,11 .2

a0 108,88
2T 186,71

1,910,219 66 1,580,180 98
———— —

A3 at Az &L
313t March 2014 315t March 2023
1,085.15 930100
(87,631 (235,06}
65,435,448 54,430.22
66,407 98 55,125 18
Mg 3t As at
315t March 2024 31st March 2023
19,412.83 14,814 43
10,612.53 14,B14.42
LTE 45 at
313 March 2074 315t March 2023
17117 184.74
17147 144, T4
Ag at Az at
Fist March 2024 st March 2023
1,281.39 2
34050
waAD, 49

prafic will e svisliable sgainat which Ue deductible tempuraly differerces and the carry

16.2 The tax-effect of significant tming differsntes that has resulled in defered ta asats are fiven bedowe: .

Particulars

Far the year-ended on 142t March 2024 1

Opening Balance | Recognized in | Recosnized in Closing Balance
profit and loss ocl
Fioperty, plant and equipment I,660.07 | 1142, 50} - 2,517.57
Lossies carriad forwiird undor the Incame Tax Act, 1941
Provision For ratulty B9, 73 13.30| 1481 0104
[ I1,48E. 411 200,02 11,688 42|
Total 1,281.39 1355.71) 4 940,49
Particulars For the pesr ended on 3138 March 202]
| Opening Balance | Aecognized in | Recognized in | Closing Balance
prafit and jass | o)
Praperty, plant and squipment 2;895.81 4,5 - 2.660.07
A ratulty 11,30 41,8 .42 5.7
| 118,691 11,445,72] = 11,468.41)
| Z,648.13 | 11,403 35| Itbd 1,281.39
)
New Deihi /&

31st March 2023
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN 5 L1B1000L1983RLE01 6354
MDTES T THE COMSOLIDWTED FIMaNCiAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 3157 MARCH 2004

A RgooaT)
17 Trade payables: currant A at A at
15t March 2024 Fist March 2023
= Dustaniling dues &2 inicm Enf R ises ang small entorprisss [Mabe 7. 1] L4843 720,84
Quistanding duesaf ereditors othar than micrs snserprises and smail énisrprises #, 39,348, 04 10,085,552, 41
B,39,#93.67 10,06, 311,25
17.14 Trade payabie due for paymant and the agming cehedule as befow:-
Particulars | Outstanding from due date of payment as on 21st March 2024 1
| Leas than 1 [ tzvesm | 23 Years Mors than 1 | Total
Yoar Yaars
1] [msmE B45.h3 - - 64583
) Others 37,445,569 15,088 42 3,13,807,33 4,69.008 80 B,36 146,04
N Drisputed doms @ GEE R X 5 5
ilv |Beputed dues ; oihere | o] | .
Particulars [ Outstanding from due date of paymant as on 3131 March 2023 ]
I Less than 1 vtivesn [ 23 vears ‘ Morethan § | Tatal
Tiear fears
1] |wsme 720,64 - - a8
Uil _lSthers 2,03.518.34 3,49 840, 07 165, 59 4,35,179.45 10,05, 5% 21
i [Ensputed dies | WSME R &
1} |Msputed duss - others ] |

111 hddltianal discicaure relating 1 micra, sinall and megium entermvises covered under Micra, Small and Medier Enterpisss Cevelopment |SMID) Act, 2008 -

315t March 2024
(a| Principal ameunt rEmaining ungaid at the End of the year B 8]
fBh intarest sue o Fripcipal amuaunt Emairing uhpaid 2t (e end af Th vear
{eh Interest pard in terms af-section 16 of the MERED Ane, 2006 diwing the yeas
() Intermst aceruad and remaiming isomld ot the snd of the yirar
12} interest cemaining due and payuble refemmd Lo | seciion 23 of the MAMED Act, 2006
645,83
18 Other financial |fabifities: current s an
Yt March 2074
Curran), matirtes of Mnnnce laase obligations lrefar note 13) BT 43
Litate Linbility jas per ing 25 ) 4,363.7%
4,451.43
19 Other current Habilities Az at
A3t March 2024
Advarice vecelved om customery il 244,30
TO5 Payasie A i
Onstanding statutary Dues 10.00
TCE payalbls 29858
EPF, ES| and LWF pavabie Ba5.80
Uther payaliles 6,532 18
50, 412.24
Az at
20 Provisions: current 31t March 2024
Foar-gratuiny Q.47
047

21

2

Révenue from operations
Sale of produgts ©
Plastic
Rough emerald
Othems
Sale of shares B gecuril ey

Other {ncome

Feretgn eaiange fluctuation (24
FrofilE Lons an Sale of 5FE
Intsress On income TaxRefund
Derecognition of financja| Habilllzy
Discount recaived

s allansouy income

Prior period incame

For the year anded an
3ist March 2024

B2,850.51
4,453,094

EE—
5,013 8%

For the year ended on

Jist March 2023
TH)BA

T84

A= at

3151 Merch 2023
$35.08

3 589,53
4,224, 61

Asat

315t March 2023
79,988, 01
2,349, 14

TRZ. 15

96,06
4128
17,9741

deat

3181 March 2023
0.50

a.50
—t

Fer the yoar ended on
31t March 2013

l

l

84,535,837
1,57,612.10
1,020,00

2,42,867.93
Far the year anded on

A95t March 2023
5067834

510,62
47,04
45.55

54,179.45
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23 Cost of materfals consumed

24 Purchase of stock in trada

5

T4

i7 Employee benefits expanse

in

ri

Opening stock of raw matesials
Add: purchases giring the year
Less: ciosing wtock of raw inalorials

Fabiics

Ruugh smesaid
DOl

ananet B securities

Changes in inventorses

Qpening balance of atock In trads
Closing balance of stock in trade
Changes in inventoes of stock I tade

Opersting Costs

Wiages

Iob wark matetiais
Fuel b paws: axpanses
Consumnabiles

Loading & freight

Birector Remuneration (Bashc Salai

Salaries and allowances

Employer contribution us PF
Employer contributien o ESIC

Staff welfars
Gratuity expense

Finance cost

Interess on loasie lability (o per g 25 114)

Interess o banks
Interest 1o alles

DOther expenses

Advertisament expenses

Payment ta statutary stditers (Note 359

Bank charges

Balance written off
Crodit card charges
Beaimemy promot|on
Certifirntion charuss
Consalidated rharges
COnveyance sxpening
Dopatisn

Electrity and maintenance oxpenses

Expected Crodit Loss
Feanival Expenses
Fittings

Froight & cartasge
e al Bxpenses
Interest anu pedalties

Labaur wolnfare

Loy b professlunal charges

wiscalianenns exponun

Wemberinip B registration fees

Dffice axpepues
Frinting & stationary

Profesbanal B consurany ohayges

Rent, rate & taxes
Repair b malntemncs
Recrultment mepanses
AT& exp=nnes

ROC expenses
Security charges

A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN | LTB100DL1983PLC016354

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FibANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENGED 1:5T MARCH 2024

For the yesr ended an
I1st March 2024
14,802.27

AN ATENF

(14,471 08}

38,450,312

Fiar the year ended on
313t March 2024

5.1B4.20

Far the year ended an
315t March 2024
1,008,559

165.25

For the yeer ended on
315t March 2074
1,408 88

3ar.3a

§,184,53

V0,48

159.55

B.850,78

For the year ended on
115t March 2024

29529
Gl B4
1.25
#5.72
16033

3,129.83

For the year ended on

For the year ended on

st March 2024

18,223 8
220,00
196,83

1784

2300

1.43
521.00

Tl

Aaes e
89.34
154,70

8.61
UH L Y
45,57
2o
11498

(o R 000"}

Far the year endad on
31k March 2023
38,091,%2

52,785 80

(14, 502271

6 075 45

Far the year ended on
315t March 20723

1,48,972,8

1,49 972 18

For the year ended on
31sk March 2023
1,637.19

3

T18.80

For the year ended an
381 March 2023
T.80.84

200,04

124.08

160825

4761

8.561.13

Far the year anded on
315t Mareh 2023

9, 600, 10

048118

104.83

1374

L3337

328.80

19.081.20

Far the year ended an
31zt March 2023

* 70720

15

88535

2,611.56

Far the year ended on
31st March 2021

Bag, 13

Jz0.00

6,05

4,128,565

350.73

.70

97,85

w1316

6,673 81
7,503.92
18,90
2.40
1,280, 80
210,85
W

13.70
133347
.30
1,688, 5%
5.5
305,77
210000
11769
2,037.80
4415
11735
1,485.74
780,18
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30

2.,

i

Service Charga

Sitting fees

Software Aenowal

Etamg Pagors

Telaphons exjenue

T e

Toir & Travel

Yehice running & malnienance
‘Workspare SxpenassiMail |

ExcepTional Mem

Advertisment expeives
Capilel Fecwipt fram FOSL

A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CAN ¢ L1E1000L1 $EIPLCDIS354
MOTES TO THE CONSGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR SHDED 115T MARCH 2024

1n Ry 00y
£2.08 31,43
104,00 116,00
28.35 &5.80
d 4,81
112.2% BBLAT
Tias 409
Bi4.14 847,54
Banog 18 fin
34 4a 44,45
T 37.064.31 30,927,864
For the year ended on For the year ended an
3151 March 2024 Mstarch 2023
- 13,075.00
10,0000
= 10,000.00 13,075.00

Eecrpuinnal feem of Ra 14l Lakks 15 Relited 1o the comperation meeived far the: renshatilment of undsrsriting commiftments felated tothe suine ripkian T the rights imue, Tha
urderdriting Agresment required the angerwritens 10 substribe to any unsubacribed shaies n the rightsSsie. However, gt the undenuritars falled s (il b ahligaties. the
STOUNL recelod soTves 35 3 Compensation for thfs pon-1ANLmerd

Felated Parties: -

A et IND A4S 24, the disciomres of transactiong with the related partios are given below:
I Listaf related parties wherer control axists and also related parties with whom tronsactions have Lsken place and relationsp:

3] Submlctary f dssoe|ate Entjey

Aunk T Sedutioms Private Limjped

ih Ky Manageen Parsonne.

Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushwahe (Masaging Director)

Mr. abnisnel Singh [Ditectss & CF01

Mr. Manish Kurnar Praful bhai mehts (Directe)

Mr. Wikram Sharria (Past Birectar)

|Mu Sabil arora (PRst Girsctar)
ME, Ehagun ddmar| (Pass Director

;A.n. Prerma Seth! |Past Oifectot
Ms Paval Sachdeva (Company Sscretary

Mz, Neha Srivastavs {Corpaiy Socretary|

Redabives

(3] Entetprines owned ar significantly (nflusnesd (v the Key ManagEmENt Fersaiiel or Lheir

ffx RES Corporate Services Privage |imited

Myis §NF |nfosolutions LLP

IS RS Masgito Brivate Limiies

My Coraider Dorg

(i) Tramsaction with Related Parties:-

| Transactians during the year ended
Terrmattinni s == 315t March 2024] T8t March 3023
LTI tary C =
fumnil TT Setistinan Private Limiteo TLoans Given | it | HEl
[Lpan RArcovered | [ Wil
1oy e A gement Persunel: -

i Satil Arora [Loans receives Hil il
|“nana repald il Ml

|Remureration [Sweal Equity Shares Wil Ml

halied)

M. Shagun ajman Leang recrived il NIl
Loans repal il Hi,

Remnimerat wed| Efulty Shares il il

M. Abstishen Singh Refuneration I B0 00 545,73
Relmbursement af Expenses . 455,20

Advanie againsk aslary x
) [Bdvance agarmst salary recovered ERE]
W Santos Kumer Kishwsaha Payment towards Remureation

payabile 7,200.00 Hif

Reimbursemant of Expenses %,201.75 i 893.84

Remuneration - 720000

Loy Recelvad 2,324.50

Payment lowsl ds expenses payable 3,448 00 Ml

Mo Payal Sachdevi REmuneration 420,00
s, Mehn Srivastava REmunsration | .13 Kl

[ e al e 1 il - faoaio —
EErprises | rﬁhf\:hﬂ!’_'&m\ TRane an vieg s rilficent influances |

M RDS Corporate Services Privais Limiied LOANS gives [ 13,503,580 bt
| Loant recoversd %,331.50 b, #8287
Sale of goods il 1 924,97
Seivices receivad 3. alit.00 FEA. |

M Consides Diing Lozn Given TEF 48
Loah Recovered | 5.087.00
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN = L181000L1 9BIPLCO16354
METES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIHANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED TST MASCH 2074

(i e DO
1ifi]  Balance with the Related Parties: -
| I . [ Balance as at
| "PrfisiLion afth | Katurw of Tr g | 31st March 1024 I1at March 2023
ti Subaigiory © any;
Bunfe IT Sniutions Privata Linited [Uitsmsmmnr i Sty Srares I 387,00 | w5570 |
by |Mey Mansgement Faronngl:
e, Abh|sbek Singh [ Agvance againsl aalary Al
Mr. Santosh Kumar Kishwiaha Loans & Advarces - nil
. Piryal Sechieys Remineration Payakie Tl Toa
ME. WEhg Srivastavy Reminzratlan Payahie T3 [ET
gl | Beattvme of Ma et P Dl - None
fdl [Entecprives in which Key Management Fersannel and Relatives ars baving significant infiuences:
#fs AD Corporate Sorvices Private Limited Loans i Advances 5 TTHO7 il
Tragde Recervahls * 1,806, 07
Trade Paysbics: 1300
e RS Mosgute Private Linited Advance received [TOm cLtamer 19500 1%5.00
%04 Congiger Dane Lanns & a.m-n'nrwr | Nl il

3 Segment Information
The Campany Bas identified M iepertable Seyinents WIZ., Wares and wourlties. rough emerale, fabre, glasses and plastic molded companentsaiter taking into acceunt
the rature of preduct and serdces and the dtfering risk and retuine an steh products and services, The aczountig palicies adepted for segmmit reparting ara i line with
the accaunting policy of the campany with fellowing additsmnal policies 1ar SBment regdrting: -

il Revai and expenseshave been identified ta 2 segment an the sasts of relarion to'aperating activities af the ségment. Reweniis sid exnenses that mlates to
enterprise uy 0 whale aag are fat sliocable to & wqment o1 & rwasnasiz basis have been disciosed o “Un-allocable”.

I} Segment Assets and Seqment Lishilities represant Assetz and Labiites in rRspRCtive seements, Assets and |labililes that cannor be aliocated to.a sEgmenl on
reasanable basis have hoen ditclossd ok ¥Li-allocahle!

(1) Segment Information:
Particulars | 31st March 2024] 115t March 2023
Revenue -
Rough #rorald :.483.94) 1,80 2.58
Sofiware Services - 1,820,00
Flastic molded components B0, 559.5% B4 B35 41
Linalincable 995700 | -
Total Revenue B5,010.45 | 1,41 B&7.93
Segment Aesults
|Profity loes before intorest and tanes)
Tratling i slares 13418 171900}
Fizugh Emerald 158,32 ¥,039.92
Saltware Services | (#37.57) 19,217,411
Plastic metded companents | 41,220,801 1.064,86
Less; Intmrest |1,452_36) 11850,81)
Less; Gther Un-glivcable expeieiiure Inet) 39,439.31) 1244750
Totsi Profit Before Taxes | (BO5. 081 B, 765,43
Trading in snares [ 950,00
Frough Ereraid Ll | 1,99.071.00
Fabricy 5.Bh4.50 +,30, 167,00
Gl eses - .
Flastic molded components 1,05734.86 1,97, 142,00
Software Serroen 1,14 708 60 1,38,703.00 |
Lin- gl lscaple TARETS A 1,23, 770,00
Total 13 44 BOO. B 15,26 434.57
Habild
Tradimg It shares - 1,%25.00
Ea_m]t Emerald 131,870,327 2,06, BA5,00
Sultware Services 1,219,821 &5 2,49 461,00
Fabricy 28,33, 047,75 | 10, 105.00 |
Mastic mulded companants 157,121,958 T a7 008 00
Wn-ailocabie 123,28, 739.94) 5 58,860.00
Total [ 10,14,348 68 11,95.796.81
Capital employed
|FiLigh Fmerald 10, 26400
SOftwire Secvices £,486.95 1, 19.3%5.00}
|F2hiicu (28,27,200.25) 110, +85.001
PFlaatic meided componarts 58,512.90 o# 695,00
Urrallocabie 30,56, 588,57 1,64,901.00
Totel | 3.32,454.18 ] 3,21,601.00
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4 F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN ¢ L1BI00DLTSEIPLCOTAIS

ROTES 70 THE CONSOLIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Fod THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

¥l Sacandary Segmong i formiaticn:

The Sompany doss net ke sondary wegient division in respect of reporabie segments.

¥} Categories of Financial Instruments and it fair value messurement

11 Bs- D0

Financial assets S I Az at 315t March, 2024 As at st March, 2623
Measured at amortised cast |

1] Loans I I0,261.87 1390340
11} Trade racatvables | 11,735,769, 74 12.57.118.22
\eCash and Bank bafeicp | 7.501.72 552607
’Ynt.l.l | 12,13,523 44 13,26 048 69
[Financial liabiiities A at 315t March, 3074] A= at 313t March, 2023
e e R e

11 Borrowsngs 155,407, 9% 35,125,168
(111 Othr finarcial abiifties | 15,063,095 | 19,019.03
1Hi] Trade and ather Dayabies | 8.9, 34604 | 10,685,547 41
Totsl | ,20.819.97 | 10,79, 75660

Tha falr values of currint destors, sank balances, current creditoes and eurrent Dafrowings ate ansiméd ta approdmate thaly CATYINg amounis

MHITWItieR Of thewn gsssts ard |lahfinrse

due 10 the short-tamn

.'Mrm*ueurm

For the yoar ended on

st March 2024

For the year enced an
st March 2023

Bl

il

Expenditure in fareign tlrreney i.= lade
Eatning) Income in farelm currency

Hii |

Hil |

35 Break: up of payments mads statulory auditars lInciuding taxes) are disclosed & Gnder

Particilars

Jist March 2024

In reapmes of statuisry 3ud)t finetuding wax sty 2000 2000
In respect af certification . 51.50 |
TOTAL 210.00 37150 |
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN | LTB100DL19EIPLCO14354

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATERENTS FORU THE YEAR ENBED ST MARCH 2034

[ R TG}
Partieulars For the year ended on For the year ended on |
1ist Warch 2024 31at March 2023

Lantirgent Liabilicy not provided for

Search and Sz conducted under CGST/SGET Al -

O &th Bepleiiber 2018, 3 warch has besn condacted Lnder pruvision of Co5T/SGST AL, 2077
wherin the apprepelate authorites liad weized corain dociFients and fronge thie Bank acehiE

of the campany, The bink acoounts were subsequently unfreezd [hrough staw oroer of High Coort
=f Punjal and Haryass elde foterim orded dater] 10 February 2920 Tne mstter i pending for)

Uasrermainatie

Unascertninanio

ad|ud Tt
Income tax Appesl: 1,818.05 1,940,286
|11 the mater of pddition u/s 68 of the ncome Lax ACt, 1981 for &.Y. F0AT- 18 vide arder dated
2Eth September 2092 passed by CIT (Sppeals) for & sum of fa 48 38 Lahfs, The Comsdtry fag
filed an Appeal against wich order with Honble Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, Mew Delhl,
WHICH In pemding for dispossl.
37 Tha fallnwing subridiany company e comcidaras i rap Cansabdatad Fipancin Statamante: -
5 Mo, Hame of Eulaldiary Country of Incorporation % af Equity holding mither directly] & of Equity helding either diractly]
or thyough Subsidiares or through Subskdiaries
315t March 1024 315t March 2073
Lirocs Subsidiany
ifl Iaunlk LT, Salitions Private Lim|ied [ inria | 95, ITH! 95,274
38 Mecessary disclasures requitements of Indinn accounting Standard (ind 45) - 19 o0 Emploves S8enefits” in reipoct of gratulty ars made s ragulred @ -
in respect of *Gratuity Schama't
I amoum Recognized in the Balance Shest:
Partlculars A5 At A at
313t March 2024 313t March 2023
Present ¥aiue of the oobigation 171 i 16524
Fair Value of Plan &susts il Ml
Funded Status [Surpluay (Defisit)] 117184 (165,241
Unrecognisad Past Service Cost Hid Hil
hsset/{lability| recognised in Balance Sheet 171 44 16524
lilp amount Recogaised i Statement of Profit B Losa:
|Particulars For tha yesr srded o) For the yesr ended on
315t March 2024, 3151 March 2023
‘Cirrent tarncs Cost 52.83 7495
Iileimal Cost 1238, 18.59
Expected Retum on Flai st Ml Wil
Past smrvics rost Ml Nl
|Expense to be recognized in profit and loss 65,21 $0.89
Hy Other Comprehenstve |Ireumeld sxpemes [Reameasurament) B
Particulars For the ywar anded a|=| For the year ended on
15t March 7074/ 313t March 2013
Cumnulative uniecogrized Acturial (i) o3 0peoing, BiF Rl 103.21
[Actuarial {gain)/ioss Obllwation 55.83 145.50
b Raturn on Plan assothcrusisl igain]/losy fram changes i financisl -
[ tparial dgaindsings - Plan piels -
Total Acturial (gain /o 36,63 145,50
Cumylative Total Actuarial {gain)/ less. C/F 307,54 148,71 |
(vl Principal Actuarial sesanpiions: - = -
Wethad =t Yaluatian B | 2-ajoes Ui Sredit Msthod
DHecounting Rale 1005 Par anum
Salary Growth Rate 500 Per &nnum
el ity lalid 2012-14
[ Withdrawal Rete 5.00% Per Annum ]
38 Ratbo Analysis and s companents
% change from March 31, 2023
5. MNa. Farticulurs 313t March 2024 315t March 2023 o
) March 31, 1024
1 |Curremt ratio 1.34 12T S.q1
2 |Dwbi- Equity Ratis 2.0 oY 19_80%
3 |Debt Service Covorage Rt 82 .69 =83, 285
4 |Return o Eouity Ratii jin %) G.0 0.08 90,2854
5 |Inventory Ternever Ratio 548 873 3T A4
& | Trdge Recatmble Turnaver Ratio 007 0,20 65T
¥ |Trade Bayable Turmousr #atla 0.0 0.24 B1,87%
8  |Mt Capital Turnaver Ratio 0.7 0,80 B BT
® | Mer Frofie Aatio (in % T.08% ERL EYES
10 |Retinm on Capital Emplayed o 4 AA 0,87% 399,548,
11 [Retum on Investment fn %) 0.00% 0,008 u.a}ﬂ

FRN 0oos0AMN
ew Dalty
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A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN - L1B1000L13B3PLCOT 6354
HOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FiNARCIAL STATEWENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 19ST MARCH Az

i B 007
Reazans for vatince of mare than 25% in above Fatios
S.Ho. [Particulars [Vartance R
1 [Debt Sapvics Covarage Ratin |Decraase Becrease in the sarmings available and Increase I the finance cost for e current wEar.
2 [Return an Eguity Ratin {10 &) Decreass Increage (0 profit after tax i propartionately more:than the ncroase | tatal eguity
3 [inventary Tumaver Aatla Gecrease Decreats iin the revenus from operation for the year.
4 [Tiade Rgceivalile Tunower Aatin Decreass Decrease in e rewenue fom operatan far Lhe year,
5__|Trnde Fayabla Turnnver Ratiz Detrease DBCTRAsE in the reverue from aperation for the year.
& |Met Capital Turnover Ratlo Decrenye \NCreese In warking eapits] and decreass in revenug fram speratfon,
7 [MetProfit Bati jinx Decrease Diecrmase In profit aftar taa is propartianately more tham decreasy In Toba! Revenan,
8 [Retien on capital Emplayed (i % |Becrense Dus ta destmzss In Profit Beforn Interest | Tazana Exceptional Hems
Components of Ratia
| Warchiistzond [ March 31at 2023
S.Me. Ratios Humarator D o bor Numaratar Denominator | Numerater Denominator
1 [Current Ratln  [Curmant Assets Currant Liasilitios 14,52, 61567 9,386,214, 51 14,27, 203, 14 11,28,411,10
1 |Debr- Equity Rorrowings Tatal Equity (Equity Share: 84,407 .08 133,384,017 53,725, 14 331,506, 34
Patin empiLad=Dther equity)
3 |uebt Service [Earnings #vaitatiln for deft service Fimance cos - principle repayment T T8;415.90 1335090 1%,396.20
Coveragn Aatin | (Ned prodit before #xteptioml 0f |ong torm borrowirigs during the
ftets & tax pupenze - eeriolyear
deprecistion. & amartieation -
Financa cost « Ken cash ooeratiing
ftarma « other adjustrsent)
4 |Return an Equity|Met profit afinr tas-Eaceptional Average Total Equity [[Dpening 177040 3,32,411.18 14,126,328 L,58,252 18
Ratks {in %1 ftems Equity Share sapitat « Dpening
Dther eguity + Cloving Eguilty Shara
Capital » Ciaing Diper Eonlty 2]
5 lliwentony Revan fir. siles of prinducks |Average inveniony [iopening 8501305 15,562, 84 L42,867.93 P T
Turnovesr Ratin balance = closing auhn:e:.n'E]
& (Trade Revenue fram coerations Averags Uice receivable [iOpaning) B5.013.85 92,30,413,58 4186791 13,11,380.13
JReceiabie balance + closing batance) /)
Turmover Rotin
T |Trade 2ayable  |Revanus from operatiom Averags trace payalile [(Dpening RA,03.85 F2N 5044 1,42.867.91 10,18, B9 IR
Turnawi Rotie Balanee » cloing balanes1iz]
8 (e Capital Ravente from apmrafinne Warking enpital (Curfent assot 85,011,565 116,400, 58 1,47,867.93 0L, Taz.04
Turmover Ratls currant Liahrirtles|
# Mel Frofit Ratlo |Net proft after tax Exceptiona) Revertie fom eesrationy 1.772.40 B5.013.88 14,126.20 142,867,931
fin%l itarms
10 |Returnon Profil Befors |nterest Tas & Tatal Equity - Tatal Debta 18.96%.80) 1,070,524, 22 1,658,01] 1,96,267,52
Capital Excepticaal item {incluing preference hare
Employed |in %) Haksility)
11 |Return an Interaat Incocte o A dopGHtts - | Eorrant invmaments = Nim corem : = 3
imwstment (in [Prafit on sale of investrments - |iwestments = Fixod deposits wich
| Iroom af ivestmont - bark,
[mpaiimsens on valie ef meiteet
|

5% Flnanclal risk management
The Company has exporirg to this follawing sfehs aizing feam financial istuments
(1} Markel righ
) INEen st rae msh;
(I} Eredit Fisk and ;
(1) Liguadity risk

Risk management framewark

The Campany’s activities expose it ts o vriety of finencial s, ncluding marset rish . The: Company's primary ritk managemant focus i ke minimize patentlsl adverse
offects of risks e lts Finanelal performance. The LOMp&in’s itsh manzgement atsssment policies erel processes e estabijshed o fdentify and analysa (he
risks taced by the Company, 1 et apprtpriate rlgk Lmit and enntrals. and Lo monitor: sueh ks and complisnce with the sama Frik assEmment and managenent of
thiese policies and processes are reviowed regularly Lo reflect changes In Farket canditions and the Compary's setivities, The Board of Dirsctors and ihe Alrdit Ceenmittes
are rospostiie fod overee g Lhese oolicies g proceses,

11} MErket risk

Mitrkes rish (2 Lhe rissof changes In the matket prices on accolnt of forzign eschange rates, wterss mtes and Commedity prices, which shall affect the Companys Incoma
er the valis ol jtx haldings of s finarcial instramente | Thee obfective of market risk Mianagrament &t manzge and control arkiet ek Exposiee within arceatahis
paramaters, while optimising the retums,

Interast rate rish
IMESTES: rala righ is th risk that the fal value dr future cosh Naws of & finarcral ingtrumant will fluctuste becaise of chinges in Market interest @iy, The
Comparty's expiaune (o maske: Fisk for changes in interes rntes rolates to barrowines from basks and athers,

Interwst rate sensitivity - variable rate instremants

A reesanably possible change of 100 basly POFNER 11 intereet rates a1 the reparting date wauld have tncreases {idecredsed | equity and profit or loss by amoints
shown betow, This analysts sssumes teat 2l athar variases, in particular, Fareign euerency eschange rates, semain constant. This calzulation ale assumes
that the change ooours at the halance shent date and nas beer calculated based on risk sxoosures diitstanding ae ar that date,
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fim R 009

ended 315t March 2024

Far the year ended 313t March 7073

100 bp decraass 100 bp incroass 100 bp decrease

cau?.aﬁr_ 139,04 (239.04)

On account of Varable Rate an Laans
and edvances given

On account of Variaole Rate an ‘

borrowings 1.65""'[;'31[
Net im on bil 361.26
{it] Credir risk

Credit risk [z the risk of financial loss to the company i & CUSELINTIEF or cauntierparty to a financial Instrument fzils to meet {ts cantractual chifgations and arises principally
from the COmMpany's recetvables. fram Cistamer, The Company estanlishes an allowance for doubeiul debts, Impajrement and expacted crediy loss that represants it
estimate an allowance for doubtful debts, impafrment and expected eredit loss that represents its estimate on epected credit loss,

A, Trade receivables
The Company's SXposure to credit rskis influenced manly by the Individual cthamacteristics of sach ustomer, The demographics of the customar v Including the default

risk of the industry has an (fluence on credit rsk ussessment. Creeit rick managed through credit approvals -establfshing eredit mits and centinuouzly monitoring the
creditwor thimess of custamers to which the Company grants credit terme in the normal, conrse of business,

However, the COmpany doesnot expect any losses from hor-perfammance by these eounter-parties agart from those already gi

ven in financlals, and doss nat have any
wgnificant concentration of EXPOSLINeS,

B. Cash and cash squivafents
The Company holds cash and cash

Bquivalents with credivworthy banks of 37,531.73 thousands. The credi worthiness of such banks i evaluated by the management an ar
On-gaing basis and is considerad to he good,

(11i) Liquidity risk

41 The Company dees net have tramsactfans with the Companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act ,2013,

42 The Campany does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been mitlated ar pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

43 The Company doss nat Hawe any charges or satisfaction which is et to be registered with ROC beyond the statutony period.
44 The Campany has not been declared wilful defautter by any bank e financial institation ar FOvEMMeEnt or any governmant authority,

45 The Company has not any such Uansaction which fs not recorded in the bagks of accounts that hes been surrendered or disclosed at income during the year in the tax
AIEYMENLS under the Incame Tax Act, 1964 {such as, search or survey ar 2ny other relevant pravisions of the income Tay ACT, T961).

46 There has been no delay in Eransterring amounts. requlred o he transferrad, to the Investar Education ang Pratection Fund by the Company.
4T The comsalidated financisi statements were anpraved far issue by the Brard of Directors an 29th day of May, 2024,
48 Previous vear's flaures have been re-arraneed of re- greubed wherever conside: MECRSEArY.

49 Figures have been rounded off 1o thit nearest thousand of fupaes,

50 Figures in Brackets indicate nogative () figures,

Staned for the nurpose of Identification

ForA F ENTERPRISES LIMITED ForA F ENTERPRISES LIMITED

For § Agarwal E Co. and an bishalf of the Board of Dire
5

Chartered Accountants A F ENTERP|

Firm Regn. No, 000B08N

]

Abhishek Singh
IE‘.II'E:INr s MHrectar & CFO
i e

: D360
Membershiz No, 012103 DiN: 03663706
UDIN;

®ha Srivastava

G }i%ﬁrggi:‘_ RETARY

Faridabad, the 29th day of May 2024
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